Finance & Audit Committee

SPECIAL MEETING AGENDA

Date: 1/18/2017

Time: 3:00 p.m.

R City Hall/Administration Building
MENLO PARK Admin Conference Room, 2" Floor
701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025

A. Call To Order

B. Roll Call

C. Public Comment

Under “Public Comment,” the public may address the Committee on any subject not listed on the
agenda. Each speaker may address the Committee once under Public Comment for a limit of three
minutes. Please clearly state your name and address or political jurisdiction in which you live. The
Committee cannot act on items not listed on the agenda and, therefore, the Committee cannot
respond to non-agenda issues brought up under Public Comment other than to provide general
information.

D. Regular Business

D1.  Approve minutes for the Finance and Audit Committee meeting of December 7, 2016 (Attachment)

D2. Presentation on 2015-16 CAFR — by Ahmed M. Badawi, CPA and President of Badawi &
Associates (Attachment)

D3.  Provide update on IT Master Plan (Staff Report #17-001-FA)
DA4. Discuss potential topics for future meetings

E. Adjournment

Agendas are posted in accordance with Government Code Section 54954.2(a) or Section 54956. Members of the public
can view electronic agendas and staff reports by accessing the City website at www.menlopark.org and can receive e-
mail notification of agenda and staff report postings by subscribing to the “Notify Me” service at menlopark.org/notifyme.
Agendas and staff reports may also be obtained by contacting City Clerk at 650-330-6620. (Posted: 01/17/17)

At every Regular Meeting of the Committee, in addition to the Public Comment period where the public shall have the
right to address the Committee on any matters of public interest not listed on the agenda, members of the public have the
right to directly address the Committee on any item listed on the agenda at a time designated by the Chair, either before
or during the Committee’s consideration of the item.

At every Special Meeting of the Committee, members of the public have the right to directly address the Committee on
any item listed on the agenda at a time designated by the Chair, either before or during consideration of the item.

Any writing that is distributed to a majority of the Committee by any person in connection with an agenda item is a public
record (subject to any exemption under the Public Records Act) and is available for inspection at the City Clerk’s Office,
701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025 during regular business hours.
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Persons with disabilities, who require auxiliary aids or services in attending or participating in Commission meetings, may
call the City Clerk’s Office at 650-330-6620.
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Finance & Audit Committee

SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES - DRAFT

Date: 12/7/2016
Time: 2:30 p.m.
R Administration Building
MENLO PARK 701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025

A. Chair Craib called the meeting to order at 2:38 p.m.

B. Roll Call
Present: Ohtaki, Tronson, Denend, Craib
Absent: Cline
Staff: Administrative Services Director, Nick Pegueros and Finance and Budget Manger,
Rosendo Rodriguez
C. Public Comment

e No Public Comment
D. Regular Business
D1.  Approve minutes for the Finance and Audit Committee meeting of August 25, 2016

ACTION: Motion and second (Craib / Tronson to approve the August 25, 2016 minutes passes (4-0,
Cline absent)

D2. Presentation on CalPERS Actuarial Issues — 6/30/15 Valuation by Doug Pryor, Vice President and
Actuary from Bartel Associates, LLC

No action was taken on this item.
D3. Provide update on 2015-16 Audit and CAFR

Finance and Budget Manager, Rosendo Rodriguez updated the Committee on the status of the
City’s pending audit

No action was taken on this item.
D4.  Discuss opportunities for optimization

The Committee discussed the transparency of the City’s financial data and what other cities are
doing in this regard.

No action was taken on this item.
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D5.  Discuss future meeting dates
The Committee planned the following tentative meeting dates:

e Tuesday, January 3, 2017 — to discuss the annual CAFR
e Monday, February 6, 2017

e Monday, January 9, 2017

e Tuesday, March 7, 2017

E. Adjournment

Chair Craib adjourned the meeting at 4:20 p.m.

City of Menlo Park 701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025 tel 650-330-6600 www.menlopark.org



B - MENLO PARK

i T !:“«
J‘ g

ul M

CITY OF

MENLO PARK, CALIFORNIA
COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL
FINANCIAL REPORT

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016







COMPREHENSIVE
ANNUAL
FINANCIAL REPORT

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016

CITY OF

MENLO PARK

CITY OF MENLO PARK, CALIFORNIA

PREPARED BY

Administrative Services Department



This report is printed on recycled paper.



City of Menlo Park
For the year ended June 30, 2016

Table of Contents

Page
INTRODUCTORY SECTION
Letter Of TTANSIMUEEAL ...ccoeeeeeeeeeeeee ettt e e et e e e e e et e e eeeateeeseeaeeesesanteessasaseessassseeesanas i
Organization CRATT ...........cooiiiiii s X
Principal Officials of the City of Menlo Park, California ..........cccccooeueeioinneccinneeccreeceeeees xi
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting -
Government FInance Officers ASSOCIAtION ........ecivvuviiiiiieiieeeeeeieeeeeeeeee et eeeereeeesseeeeeessnneeesssnes Xii
FINANCIAL SECTION
Independent AUditor's REPOTIt .......cc.cooriiiiiiiiiiiiiiin ettt 1
Management Discussion and AnNalysis.........c..cccociiereiiiiniiiininiciecneceeree e 5
Basic Financial Statements:
Government - Wide Financial Statements:
Statement Of INET POSITION. ......coviiiiiiiiiie ettt e et e e e eeeteeseeeaaeeeeesiaaeeesssaseeesssnnseesssnns 25
Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Position...........cccccoeeciiiiinniiniiniinincinee, 26
Fund Financial Statements:
Governmental Fund Financial Statements:
Balance Sheet - Governmental FUNAS...........ooooviviiiiiiiiiiiieieeeeeee e 33
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet
to the Government -Wide Statement of Net PoSition.........cccoccvvvvvevevieeivieieeeiiieeeeees 34
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance......................... 35
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Government- Wide
Statement of Activities - Governmental ACtiVItIeS.....ccoovveeeeeoeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e 36
Proprietary Fund Financial Statements:
StateMENt Of INET POSITION. ....coooutiiiiieieiee ettt ettt et et e e e e eaeeeeeseasseesssenseessssaseesssnnneeas 38
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position ............c.ccccccccoveninnnee. 39
StAteMENTt Of CaASI FLOWS ..ottt e et e e e e e e eeeaeeeeseeaaeeeessneeas 40

Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements:
Statement of Fiduciary Net POSIHON. .......c.ccceoiiiiniiiiiiiniciiccceceeeeeeene 42
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net POSition...........cccoceceveieincincinincninccnicceenn 43



City of Menlo Park
For the year ended June 30, 2016

Table of Contents, Continued

Page
FINANCIAL SECTION, CONTINUED:
Notes to Basic Financial Statements....................c.ccocooiiiniie, 45
Required Supplementary Information:
Budgetary Principles.........coiiiiiiiiiiiicnceecct ettt 96
Budgetary Comparison Schedule:
General FUNd ..o 97
Below Market Rate Housing Special Revenue Fund ............cccccooiciinnne. 98
Housing Special Revenue Fund..............ccccoiiiiiiiiice, 99
Transportation Impact Special Revenue Fund .........c.ccccceveneninincncnnene. 100
Defined Pension Plan - Agent Multiple Employer Plan............cccccoeiviiiniinininncnnnee. 101
Defined Pension Plan - Cost Sharing Plan.........c..ccccoveoviiniiininiiicinciececcneees 103
Other Post Employment Benefits..............cccoouiiiiiiiiiiiiicccccccceces 105
Supplementary Information:
Major Governmental Funds Budgetary Comparison Schedule
General Capital Improvement Projects Fund............cccocccviiniiiiiniiiine 111
Non-Major Governmental Funds
Combining Balance Sheet.............ccoeoiiiiiiiniiiiiiiccecceceee e 116
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balances ...........ccccoocoiiiiiiiicccccccee 120
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual:
Highway Users Tax Special Revenue Fund ............ccccccooiiiiiniinine. 125
Federal Revenue Sharing Special Revenue Fund...............c.ccocccviinnn. 126
Landscape Tree Assessment Special Revenue Fund............cccccceeininnnne. 127
Sidewalk Assessment Special Revenue Fund............c..cccoeiviinninncnnnne. 128
Landfill Post-Closure Special Revenue Fund..........c.ccccccovecineinncnncnnnnee. 129
County Transportation Tax Special Revenue Fund............c.cccccviciinn. 130
Public Library Special Revenue Fund...........c...ccccccoviiiiinniiiiiniccne, 131
Literacy Grant Special Revenue Fund............cccccccooiiiiiniinniiniie, 132
Narcotic Seizure Special Revenue Fund ............coccoeceveneinincniincncnene. 133
Downtown Parking Permits Special Revenue Fund...........cccccoeeincnnence. 134
Storm Drainage Fees Special Revenue Fund.............ccocccviiniiniinnnnne. 135
Solid Waste Service Special Revenue Fund............cccceeciniinncincicnncnnnnee 136

Bay Area Air Quality Management Special Revenue Fund ........................ 137



City of Menlo Park
For the year ended June 30, 2016

Table of Contents, Continued

Page
FINANCIAL SECTION, CONTINUED:
Storm Water Management (NPDES) Special Revenue Fund............................. 138
Supplemental Law Enforcement Special Revenue Fund ...........c.ccccccveininnes 139
Construction Impact Fees Special Revenue Fund ...........c.cccccviiniinninnnnn. 140
Bedwell Bayfront Park Maintenance Special Revenue Fund...............c.ccc........ 141
Recreation In-Lieu Special Revenue Fund...........ccccoeveeincinicnncincinicinnne. 142
Sharon Hills Park Special Revenue Fund...........ccccocccveiniiiniinninncincines 143
Vintage Oaks Landscape Special Revenue Fund ..............cccccoiiiinnninne. 144
Community Development Block Grant Special Revenue Fund........................ 145
Miscellaneous Trust Special Revenue Fund............ccccceveveinincinincncnincene. 146
Library Bond Debt Service FUNd ........ccoccciiiiiiniiiiiiiiiiiccceccces 147
Recreation GO Bond 2002 Debt Service Fund............ccooeiiiiiiiinnnicnne, 148
Library Addition Capital Projects Fund .............cccccocoiiiiiiie, 149
Measure T 2002 GO Bond Capital Projects Fund ... 150
Enterprise Funds:
Combining Statement of Net POSItION.........cccccciviiiiiiniiiniiiiiiiiciccccccees 152
Combining Statement of Revenues,
Expenses and Changes in Net Position..........cccccccuveiviiininiccinicinicieccnccieccne, 153
Combining Statement of Cash FIOWS ... 154
Internal Service Funds:
Combining Statement of Net PoSItion..........ccccccevviiiiiiiniiiiiniiiiiicicccccees 156
Combining Statement of Revenues,
Expenses and Changes in Net POSition..........c.cccccveiniiininicinieiniicinecnccecene, 157
Combining Statement of Cash FIOWS ...........cccccoiiiiiiiiiiccccces 158
Agency Funds:
Combining Statement of Net POSItion..........ccccccevieiiiiiiniiiiiiiiiiiicccccccees 160
Combining Statement of
Changes in Assets and Liabilities ...........cccccoeiviniiineiniiiinicicccccceee 161

Private-Purpose Trust Fund - Successor Agency
Combining Statement of Net POSItion..........ccocccevviiiiniiiniiiiiniiiiicccccccee 162
Combining Statement of
Changes in Assets and Liabilities ..........ccccccoeininiiinieiiniiiincicccccceeee 163



City of Menlo Park
For the year ended June 30, 2016

Table of Contents, Continued

Page
STATISTICAL SECTION (UNAUDITED)

Net position by COMPONENt .........ccceiiiiiiiiiiiicc e 166
Changes in Net Position - Last Ten Fiscal Years...........cccccoccoiviiiiniiniinniiiciicicccceeens 168
Fund Balances - Governmental Funds - Last Ten Fiscal Years.........ccccccooeiniicncinninncinecee 170
Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds - Last Ten Fiscal Years.........c..ccccccceveueuneee. 172
General Government Revenues by Source - Last Ten Fiscal Years..........ccccoccococinniiiiinnnnnne. 174
General Government Taxes Detail - Last Ten Fiscal Years...........ccccoccociiiniiiiiinniiincee, 176
Assessed Valuation, Tax Rate and Tax Levies — Last Ten Fiscal Years .....cocoovveveeevoeeeeeeveeeeeennen. 177
Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates — Last Ten Fiscal Years...........ccccccccviiiiniinnnnnnne. 178
Principal Property TaXPayers.........cccc ittt 179
Property Tax Levies and ColleCtions............ccuvveuiriiievinueiiiiiiinciiciiectnieeeeeeeteeee e 180
Ratio of Outstanding Debt by Type - Last Ten Fiscal Years.........cccccccoeeiniinnicniinicninccincenne 181
Direct and Overlapping Debt ... 182
Legal Debt Margin Information - Last Ten Fiscal Years...........ccccccoviiiiinniiiiiiniiccce, 183
Demographic and Economic StatistiCs..........cccooiiiiiiiniiicii e 184
Principal EMPLOYETS........ocoouiiiiiiiiciciiisie ettt 185
Full Time Equivalent City Employees by FUNCHON ...........ccccccciviiiiiiiiiniiiiiiccccccee 186
Operating Indicators by Demand and Level of Service by Function/Program ........................... 188
Capital Asset Statistics by FUNCLION .....c.cc.ceoviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiceceeee e 190
Capital Asset and Infrastructure Statistics by Activities.........cccccoveciniinineiiniiiniiiinciccieene 192
Water Sold by Type of Customer - Last Ten Fiscal Years..........cccccoceeiiiniiiiiiniiiiiicce, 194
Water Service Rates.........coooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiic 195

IMISCRIIANIEOUS STATISTICS oo eeeeeeeeeeeee et e et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e eeaeaeeeesesaeaaaaeaaeeesasaeaaeseeaeeesesasaaananes 196



INTRODUCTORY SECTION






CITY OF

MENLO PARK

City Manager's Office

January X, 2017

Honorable Mayor
Members of the City Council
And Residents of Menlo Park

We are pleased to submit the comprehensive annual financial report for the City of
Menlo Park, California, for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016. Responsibility for the
accuracy of the data and the completeness and fairness of the presentation, including
all disclosures, rests with the City. To the best of our knowledge and belief, the data
is accurate in all material respects and is reported fairly and honestly. All disclosures
necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the City's financial
activities are included.

The comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) is presented in three major
sections that provide introductory, financial as of June 30, 2016, and statistical
information about the City. The introductory section includes this transmittal letter, the
City's organizational chart and a list of the City’s principal officials. The financial
section includes the independent auditor’s report, basic financial statements, notes to
basic financial statements, required supplementary information and supplementary
information on nonmajor funds. The statistical section, which is unaudited, includes
selected financial and demographic information.

The notes to the financial statements are provided in the financial section and are
considered essential to fair presentation and adequate disclosure. The notes include
the summary of significant accounting policies for the City and other necessary
disclosures of important matters relating to the financial position of the City. The notes
are treated as an integral part of the financial statements and should be read in
conjunction with them.

Generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) require that management provide a
narrative of introduction, overview and analysis to accompany the basic financial
statements in the form of Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter
complements the MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it. The City of Menlo
Park’'s MD&A can be found in the financial section of this document, immediately
following the report of the independent auditors.
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Background

The City of Menlo Park is located in San Mateo County, midway between the cities of
San Francisco and San Jose. It is an area of comparatively high property values and
is a vital part of the region commonly referred to as the Silicon Valley. One of its
noteworthy adjacent neighbors is Stanford University. Because of the number of
venture capital firms and the amount of venture capital invested through local
companies, the City is often referred to as the “Capital of Venture Capital.”

The City maintains a healthy balance of residential, commercial and industrial uses.
Residential home prices are still among the highest in the area, reflecting the
desirability of living in the community. Home to the headquarters of social networking
giant Facebook, other major companies that have facilities in Menlo Park include the
Rosewood Hotel, Intuit, Pacific Biosciences, and SRI International. Menlo Park is also
home to the Western Region Headquarters of the United States Geological Survey, a
major Veterans Affairs medical facility, and the U.S. Department of Energy-funded
SLAC National Accelerator Laboratory.

Reporting Entity

The financial reporting entity (the government) includes all the funds of the primary
government (i.e., the City of Menlo Park, as legally defined), as well as any applicable
component units. Component units are legally separate entities for which the primary
government is financially accountable. Prior to the dissolution of the Community
Development Agency on January 31, 2012, it was reported as a blended component
unit of the primary government. Activities of the Successor Agency acting on behalf of
the former Community Development Agency are reported as a Private-Purpose Trust
Fund as of the financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012.

The City of Menlo Park provides a varied range of services, including police
protection, public works (engineering, streets, parks, building and vehicle
maintenance, water distribution and maintenance and transportation services),
community services (recreation, child care and senior services), community
development (planning, zoning and building inspection), code and parking
enforcement, library services, housing and general administration (finance, human
resources, information technology, housing and economic development,
environmental sustainability, legal and city clerk services). Fire protection services are
provided by the Menlo Park Fire Protection District, an entity separate and distinct
from the City. Sanitary sewer services are also provided by a special district, the West
Bay Sanitary Sewer District.
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Economic Condition and Outlook

The information presented in the financial statements is perhaps best understood
when it is considered from the broader perspective of the specific environment in
which the City operates.

Local economy

As reported by the California Employment Development Department, the
unemployment rate in San Mateo County fell from 3.2% in 2015 to 3.1% in 2016. The
Menlo Park unemployment rate is lower than that of the County at 2.4%. This
compares with an unemployment rate of 5.4% for California and 4.9% for the nation
during the same period. As of June 2016, there were an estimated 445,600 jobs in
San Mateo County, an increase of 5,200 jobs from a year earlier.

The City’s largest revenue sources continue to show strength. Property tax growth
remains strong with the total taxable assessed valuation of real property increasing
11.4% or $1.36 billion from 2015 to 2016. This increase in assessed valuation
resulted in secured property tax revenues increasing $1.53 million, year-over-year.
The City’s second largest single revenue source, hotel occupancy tax, also
experienced significant growth year-over-year. For the fiscal year ended June 30,
2016, hotel occupancy tax increased $1.55 million or 33% due to higher occupancy
and room rates as well as new facilities opening. The increases in revenue have
allowed the General Fund to maintain service levels and continue to appropriately
fund infrastructure maintenance. Absent these increases, the impact of a year-over-
year $1.10 million reduction in sales tax revenue resulting from the loss of a major
sales tax generator in 2015 could have negatively impacted services to the
community.

Outlook

The City’s financial outlook remains sound. Property values continue their upward
trend, and with a number of large-scale development projects in process, the outlook
for future property tax revenue growth is strong. Being the General Fund’s largest
revenue source, at 32 percent of the total, a healthy property tax base is essential for
continued sustainability.

One ongoing threat to the property tax base is the uncertainty of what is called
“excess ERAF” (educational revenue augmentation fund). San Mateo County is one
of several counties in the State of California where the amount generated from the
ERAF shift of local property tax exceeds the amount required to meet funding levels
for local schools. As a consequence, those funds collected in excess of the
requirement have traditionally been redistributed back to the taxing entities. With such
a unigue circumstance, this revenue source is under scrutiny at the state level,
leaving applicable local agencies to determine how to handle the uncertainty in their
financial forecasts. To be conservative, the City of Menlo Park’s adopted 2016-17
budget and the accompanying 10-year forecast reflects receiving 50 percent of this
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revenue annually until it drops off entirely in 2019-20. This is a highly speculative
assumption that simply serves to keep the uncertainty of this significant revenue
squarely in our sights as we move forward.

Also an area of continued monitoring is the financial health of the State of California.
In November 2012, California voters passed Proposition 30, a measure that raised
the state sales tax by a quarter-cent for four years and increases income tax rates for
individuals who earn more than $250,000 a year for seven years. In November 2016,
voters approved Proposition 55 which provides for a 12 year extension of the
increased income tax rate approved by Proposition 30. Proposition 55, however, did
not contain a similar extension of the sales tax increase. Passage of Proposition 30 in
2012 is said to have offset the need to make $6 billion per year in cuts in the State
budget, cuts that could have impacted local governments. The passage of
Proposition 55 in 2016, coupled with growth in the State economy, has enabled the
Governor and the State Legislature to predict a balanced budget and a record surplus
at the State level for the 2016-17 fiscal year. This has lessened the likelihood of
looking to the local agencies’ revenue sources to balance the State budget.

On the expenditure side, the City is closely monitoring increases in employee benefit
costs. One area of particular note is the City’s cost for pension benefits provided by
the California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS). In December 2016,
the CalPERS board voted to reduce its assumed rate of return on investment income,
commonly referred to as the “discount rate”, net of expenses, from 7.5 percent to 7.0
percent over three years beginning on July 1, 2018. The reduction in discount rate is
likely to result in greater unfunded pension liabilities and increased annual costs to
the City. Efforts are currently underway to incorporate the estimated increased costs
in the City’s 10-year financial forecast. Additionally, the City’s Finance and Audit
Committee, in coordination with staff and a consulting actuary, is exploring options to
establish a fund that would shield the City’s annual operating budget from significant
fluctuations in pension costs that may result from actions such CalPERS’ decision to
reduce the discount rate assumption.

Staff will continue to monitor the long-term budget situation, both locally and at the
State level, to keep the City Council informed of critical economic events that may
impact the sustainability of the City's spending plan. Further, staff will continue to be
proactive in developing plans to promote economic development in the City,
aggressively pursue grant funding for significant infrastructure improvements, and
continually assess the City’s operations and service delivery models to achieve
efficiencies where possible.

While in an enviable financial position, the City cannot rest on its laurels and must
continue to focus its efforts on priority fiscal initiatives such as adequate funding of
infrastructure, careful comprehensive planning, and optimization of business and
residential development opportunities. Further, as new long-term needs are identified,
the appropriate resources to meet those needs must also be identified. And finally,
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the City must maintain financial flexibility to ensure it is able to quickly respond to the
inevitable fluctuations in the economy and volatility in its major revenue sources.

Major Initiatives

FOR THE YEAR: The continued strength in the economy has resulted strong interest
in development projects and increased business opportunities, which has
subsequently created an overall rise in demand for City services. While budgetary
resources are available to support this increase in demand, the City has found it
challenging to staff itself at a level that adequately supports the service demand given
the lack of supply and heavy competition for talented personnel, particularly those
needed to support development-related activities. Despite this challenge, the City
undertook a number of key initiatives and accomplished many of its goals during the
reporting period. The primary focus continued to be on addressing the City Council’s
priorities and providing the services and programs that make Menlo Park unique.

In 2015-16, the Community Development Department completed substantial work
on the General Plan update, including development of three new zoning districts that
involved extensive stakeholder engagement and “deep dives” on selected topic areas.
The department also conducted its biennial review of the EI Camino Real/ Downtown
Specific Plan and began work on modification directed by the City Council. The
department successfully managed the final construction staged of Facebook’s

building 23 and the Commonwealth Corporate Center. In addition, the department
continued construction management of new housing developments such as Anton
Menlo, Greenheart-Hamilton, and MidPen Housing-Willow.

In 2015-16 the Community Services Department completed its five-year strategic
plan update while also supporting the third and final year of the Belle Haven
Neighborhood Action Plan implementation. The department achieved an all-time high
cost recovery level making the City’s Community Services’ programs among the
highest recovery programs in the Bay Area. In addition to high cost recovery, the
department also increased program and event sponsorship by 50 percent. Finally, the
department secured significant grant funding from the Silicon Valley Community
Foundation, the “Big Lift", to close the achievement gap and improve reading
proficiency to students at the City’s Belle Haven Child Development Center. The grant
begins in fiscal year 2016-17 and is secure for three fiscal years.

The Library Department began its centennial anniversary celebration in the 2015-16.
While the anniversary marks one hundred years of a service to the community, the
department continues to explore opportunities to serve the community’s changing
needs. The department hosted the first Science Night which attracted over 400
children and their parents to enjoy educational planetarium show, science
experiments, programmable robots, and other STEM related activities. Additional
programs expansions included four new story times at the Belle Haven Branch

Library bringing the total number to 14. With an eye toward the next three to five
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years, the department also began work with the staff and the community to complete
a strategic plan that will guide activity development.

Over the course of 2015-16, the Police Department continued its tradition of
innovation in service delivery and received several acknowledgments of their past
and ongoing work. The department received the 2015 Helen Putnam Award from the
League of California Cities for Excellence in Public Safety. The department was also
named one of three finalist for the 2016 James Q. Wilson award for excellence in
community policing. The department’'s community engagement efforts not only
received state-wide recognition but also contributed to a 38 percent decrease in the
most serious classifications of crime.

The Public Works Department complete several studies in 2015-16 including the
pavement management system, the EI Camino Real corridor study, and the urban
water management plan. The department received State approval for an emergency
water well located at the City’s Corporation Yard that will provide a backup water
source in the event existing water supplies are interrupted. In addition, the
department completed the Willow Road traffic signals modification project, the street
resurfacing project, the Sand Hill signal interconnect project, traffic improvements
along Willow Road, and the energy efficiency projects at City facilities.

In 2015-16, the Administrative Services Department experienced staff attrition that
resulted in considerable loss of institutional knowledge. The transition in staff has
slowed the progress of standard operations such as recruitments, technology
upgrades, and the annual budget and financial statement preparation. With the City
Council’s support, the department is making much needed investments in technology
and staff development. In early 2017, the department will launch a new time and
attendance system to automate timecard processing. Also in early 2017, the
department will go live with a rebuilt budget and reporting system that will provide
greater access to financial data on a real-time basis for internal users. Finally, in mid-
2017, the department will launch a much needed online portal that provides the public
with unprecedented access to the City’s financial records from the financial reporting
level down to the individual transaction. All of these initiatives as well as ongoing
investments in staff development will position the City to return to regular schedules
for items such as preparation of the annual finance statements.

FOR THE FUTURE:

Financial Planning and Fiscal Policies

Maintaining a sustainable City budget is a top priority for Menlo Park. The City has,
for many years, strived to record and report all expenses in the proper fiscal year,
avoid unintended subsidization of nonessential programs with tax revenues, resist the
creation of future liabilities and initiate funding of long-term liabilities that currently
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exist. Such long-term financial planning efforts are essential to the City’s prudent
financial management and are particularly powerful when combined with sound
financial policies.

Rating agencies recognize the City’s financial strength and policies when assigning
excellent ratings to Menlo Park general obligation bond issuances. The City continues
to focus strategically on appropriate funding strategies for not only current operations
and top-ranked priority capital improvement projects, but also to cover long-term
ongoing expenses. To that end, the operating budget includes annual funding for
large infrastructure projects and ongoing retiree medical benefit obligations. In
addition, the fiscal sustainability of all funds is regularly evaluated to avoid any future
burden on the General Fund.

Menlo Park strives to maintain fiscal policies that will provide guidance on preserving
its sound financial standing for the long term. Several years ago, a General Fund
Reserve Policy was finalized, incorporating requirements of Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB Statement No. 54). The policy outlines the City
Council’'s formal commitment of amounts of fund balance to be set aside specifically
for emergency contingencies, economic stabilization, and strategic pension
contingencies. The policy also outlines assigned fund balances to ensure
subsequent year funding of capital improvements, encumbrances, and community
development services.

In accordance with the policy guidelines discussed above, as of June 30, 2016, the
General Fund held a combined unrestricted fund balance of $30.33 million or 59
percent of the 2016-17 General Fund operating budget. The total goal range for the
City’s unrestricted fund balance is 43 to 55 percent of General Fund expenditures.

Although reserves are available to provide temporary financing for extraordinary
events such as an economic recession, the City must continue to distinguish between
structural operating deficits and deficits resulting from temporary downturns in the
economy or significant capital expenditures. This will be essential in the upcoming
budgeting cycle as City Council considers new demands on future resources that are
expected to result from CalPERS’ decision to lower the discount rate assumption. As
such, baseline expenditures may require recalibration if revenue growth does not
close that anticipated gap resulting from higher pension costs. In addition,
infrastructure maintenance, comprehensive planning activities, technology upgrades,
stormwater programs, and standard City service delivery are all part of a
comprehensive and sustainable fiscal plan for the City that must be considered as
limited resources are allocated.

The City administration is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal
control structure designed to ensure that the assets of the City are protected and that
adequate accounting data are compiled to prepare financial statements in conformity
with generally accepted accounting principles. In addition, the City maintains
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budgetary controls to ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied in the annual
budget approved by the City's governing body. The City also maintains sound
financial management through an encumbrance accounting system demonstrated by
the statements and schedules included in the financial section of this report.

In addition, the City has established certain fiscal policies defining its long-term
financial objectives. For example, the Cost Recovery/Subsidization Policy minimizes
the unintentional subsidization of certain services by the General Fund, allowing
general tax dollars to be available for greater public benefit. The City also maintains
an Investment Policy, reviewed annually, defining (by limiting the types of investments
permitted and providing guidelines for duration and diversification) the level of risk
that is appropriate in the City’s portfolio.

The City will continue to follow established cash mainagement, accounting, budgetary,
and risk management policies and processes essential to the City’s long-term fiscal
health. In addition, the strategic direction provided in the 5-Year Capital Improvement
Plan and the General Plan will be used in the City’s efforts to maintain a sustainable
budget for the future.

Other Information

Statistical Section. Issued in May 2004, the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) Statement No. 44, Economic Condition Reporting: the Statistical
Section, significantly changed the content and presentation of information reported in
the statistical section of a comprehensive annual financial report. The new statistical
section structure was developed to assist the reader in understanding financial trends,
assessing the City’s revenue capacity, gauging the affordability of outstanding debt,
and understanding the environment in which the City’s financial activities take place.
Operating information is included to help the reader understand how the data in the
City’s financial report relate to services the City provides. Over time, the intent is to
accumulate meaningful trend information useful in assessing performance.

Independent Audit. State statutes require an annual audit of the City’s financial
systems by independent certified public accountants. The accounting firm of Badawi
and Associates, Certified Public Accountants was selected by the City for this
purpose. The auditor's report and unmodified opinion on the general purpose financial
statements and combining and individual fund statements is included in the financial
section of this report.

Awards and Acknowledgments. The Government Finance Officers’ Association
(GFOA) of the United States has awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence
in Financial Reporting to the City for its comprehensive annual financial report for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2015. In order to receive this Certificate, a governmental
unit must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized comprehensive annual
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financial report, and satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and
applicable legal requirements. The award is valid for a period of one year. We believe
our current report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s
requirements.

Preparation of the Comprehensive Annual Financial Statements is not possible
without the hard work of the entire Administrative Services Department. Of particular
note, we would like to recognize Finance and Budget Manager Rosendo Rodriguez,
Accountant | Jovi Oliveras, and Management Analyst Brandon Cortez for their
extraordinary commitment to completing this document. We would also like to thank
the City Council and the Finance and Audit Committee for their continued focus on
fiscal sustainability which has positioned the City well to weather financial
uncertainties.

Respectfully submitted,

Alex D. Mclintyre Nick Pegueros
City Manager Administrative Services Director
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
of the City of Menlo Park
Menlo Park, California

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Menlo
Park, California (City) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2016, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of
contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions.
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Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City as of June 30, 2016, and the respective
changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison information, pension required
supplementary information, and schedules of funding progress for other post employment benefits on
pages 5 to 18 and 102 to 114 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing
the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have
applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining and
individual nonmajor fund financial statements, budgetary comparison schedules on pages 91 to 151,
and statistical section, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of
the basic financial statements.

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and budgetary comparison
schedules on pages 119 to 175 are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements.
Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion,
the combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and the budgetary comparison
schedules are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.
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The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide
any assurance on them.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated January XX,
2017, on our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the City’s internal control
over financial reporting and compliance.

Badawi and Associates
Certified Public Accountants
Oakland, California

January XX, 2017
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CITY OF

MENLO PARK MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016

This section of the City of Menlo Park’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
provides a narrative overview of the City’s financial activities for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2016. We encourage readers to consider the information
presented here in conjunction with the Transmittal Letter and accompanying
Basic Financial statements

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

City-Wide:

Net Position - The assets and deferred outflows of resources of the City exceeded its liabilities and
deferred inflows of resources at fiscal year ending June 30, 2016, by $430.19 million, up 3% from prior
year. Of this amount, $38.78 million was reported as “unrestricted net position” and may be used to
meet ongoing obligations.

Changes in Net Position — The City’s total net position increased by $13.21 million in fiscal year 2015-
16. Net position of governmental activities increased by $13.41 million, which is due in large part to an
increase in cash and investments and a decrease in deferred outflows. Net position of the business-
type activities increased by $0.21 million, reflecting the year’s net gain for the Menlo Park Municipal
Water District.

Long-Term Debt:

The City’s total bonded debt obligations decreased by $1.05 million during fiscal year 2015-16 due to
the scheduled annual payment of principal balances of outstanding debt. The largest principal payment
of $0.55 million was made on the 2012 General Obligation Refunding Bonds, leaving a remaining
balance of $8.22 million as of June 30, 2015.

Fund Highlights:

Governmental Funds — Fund Balances - As of the close of fiscal year 2015-16, the City’s governmental
funds reported a combined ending fund balance of $101.63 million. This is a $6.85 million increase from
the prior year, which is primarily the result of an increase in total assets, predominantly in the form of
receivables.

The total combined balance for governmental funds as of June 30, 2016, $101.63 million, is classified
into five categories of fund balance (nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned) to
provide the reader of these financial statements with a better understanding of the City’s available
resources as well as its plans to ensure fiscal stability in the near term. A detailed explanation of these
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categories can be found in Note 10 to the financial statements. Of the total, $1.37 million is categorized
as “nonspendable”, $37.29 million is “restricted”, $33.45 million is “committed”, $24.63 is “assigned”
and the remaining $4.89 million is “unrestricted”.

The City's General Fund increased $0.38 million, with revenues/transfers-in of $51.51 million and
expenditures/transfers-out of $51.12 million. This includes a transfer of $8.56 million to support
infrastructure efforts in the General Capital Improvement Project Fund. The net increase in the General
Fund is smaller than prior years but it should be noted that transfers to the General Capital
Improvements Project Fund of $8.56 million is $4.27 million higher than in prior year. General Fund
revenues and expenditures for the reporting period will be discussed in more detail later in the MD&A.

City Highlights:

Total governmental fund revenues for 2015-16, as presented in the Fund Financial Statements, were
up $5.39 million over 2014-15, and this gain was driven by the General Fund, which had revenues,
excluding transfers, that were up nearly $2.74 million. General Fund taxes reflect the largest year-over-
year gain in General Fund revenues, up $1.96 million. In addition to significant changes in the General
Fund, the Below Market Rate Housing Special Revenue Fund increased $1.37 million due to increased
development activity.

Governmental fund expenditures, excluding transfer, increased approximately $9.26 million in 2015-16,
compared to prior year. The largest share of this increase in the capital outlay activity among the
Transportation Impact Fee and Non-major Governmental Funds, up $5.736 year-over-year. General
Fund expenditures were up approximately $1.98 million year-over-year, driven by increases in the
public safety and public works activities. Non-major governmental funds expenditures decreased $1.15
million in the capital outlay category.

OVERVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City’s basic financial
statements, which are comprised of three components: 1) Government-Wide Financial Statements, 2)
Fund Financial Statements and 3) Notes to the Financial Statements. This report also contains other
supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Position include
information about the City as a whole and about its activities. These statements include all assets,
deferred outflows of resources (if applicable), liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources (if applicable)
of the City using the accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to the accounting used by most
private-sector companies. All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are taken into account
regardless of when cash is received or paid.
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These two statements report the City’s overall net position and changes in that net position year-over-
year. Net position is defined as the difference between assets plus deferred outflows of resources and
liabilities plus deferred inflows of resources, and this is one way to measure the City’s financial health,
or financial position. Over time, increases or decreases in the City’s net position are an indicator of
whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating. Other factors to consider are changes in the
City’s property tax base and the condition of the City’s roads.

In the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Position, City
activities are separated as follows:

Governmental activities—Most of the City’s basic services are reported in this category, including the
General Government, Public Safety, Public Works, Culture and Recreation (including library services)
and Community Development. Property and sales taxes, user fees, interest income, franchise fees, and
state and federal grants finance these activities.

Business-type activities—The City charges a fee to customers to cover the cost of water distribution
services, including a surcharge for future capital improvements as necessary. The City’s water system
activities are the only activities reported in this category.

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide detailed information about the most significant funds. Some
funds are required to be established by State law and by bond covenants. However, management
establishes many other funds to help it control and manage money for particular purposes or to show
that it is meeting legal responsibilities for using certain taxes, grants, and other money.

Governmental funds—Most of the City’s basic services are reported in governmental funds, which
focus on how money flows into and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end that are
available for spending. These funds are reported using an accounting method called modified accrual
accounting, which measures cash and all other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash.
The governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term view of the City’s general government
operations and the basic services it provides. Governmental fund information helps determine whether
there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the City’s
programs. The differences of results in the governmental fund financial statements to those in the
government-wide financial statements are explained in a reconciliation schedule following each
governmental fund financial statement.

Proprietary funds—When the City charges customers for the services it provides—whether to outside
customers (enterprise funds) or to other units of the City (internal service funds)—these services are
generally reported in proprietary funds. The City’s Water Fund is the single enterprise fund that
accounts for the business-type activities reported in the government-wide statements. Four internal
service funds account for administrative activities that are provided to other funds and departments on
a cost-reimbursement basis. These are included as governmental activities in the government-wide
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statements. Together, these proprietary funds are reported in the same way that all activities are
reported in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in
Fund Net Position. In addition, a statement of cash flows is provided.

Fiduciary funds—The City is the trustee, or fiduciary, for certain funds held in a trustee or agency on
behalf of individuals, private organizations, other governments, and/or other funds. The City’s fiduciary
activities are reported in separate Statements of Fiduciary Net Position. These activities are excluded
from the City’s other financial statements because the City cannot use these funds’ assets to finance its
operations. The City is responsible for ensuring that the assets reported in these funds are used for
their intended purposes.

Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information essential to a full understanding of the data in the government-
wide and fund financial statements.

Required Supplementary Information

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents required
supplementary information providing a budgetary comparison statement for the General Fund and all
major funds. It also includes a schedule of funding for the employee pension plan.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

The Statement of Net Position combines and consolidates government funds’ current financial
resources (short-term spendable resources) with capital assets and long-term obligations. Program
expenses by function, general revenues by major source, excess and/or deficiency of revenues over
expenses before contributions to fund principal, special and extraordinary items, and total assets are
presented in the Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Position. Both statements are condensed
below for purposes of this analysis.
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City of Menlo Park's Net Position
Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total

2015-16 2014-15 2015-16 2014-15 2015-16 2014-15
Current Assets $ 100,087,581 $ 93,720,032 § 13012515 $ 14253829 $ 11310009 $ 107,973,861
Noncurrent Assets 15,532,289 14,460,485 - 15,532,289 14,460,485
Capital Assets 363,926,885 360,557,593 14,878,505 13,990,073 378,805,390 374,547,666
Total Assets 479,546,755 468,738,110 27,891,020 28,243,902 507,437,775 496,982,012
Deferred Outflows of Resources 4,957,779 4,152,246 89,363 78,144 5,047,142 4,230,390
Current Liabilities 11,670,754 10,636,241 950,366 - 12,621,120 10,636,241
Noncurrent Liabilities 64,319,818 60,416,883 737,906 - 65,057,724 60,416,883
Total Liabilities 75,990,572 71,053,124 1,688,272 - 77,678,844 71,053,124
Deferred Inflows of Resources 4,541,576 11,278,184 73,056 176,697 4,614,632 800,000
Net Investments in Capital Assets 345,581,545 341,158,440 14,878,505 13,990,073 360,460,050 355,148,513
Restricted 37,295,730 19,288,736 11,441,134 12,686,735 48,736,864 31,975,471
Unrestricted 21,095,111 30,111,872 (100,584) (254,068) 20,994,527 29,857,804
Total Net Position $ 403,972,386  § 390,559,048 § 26,219,055 § 26422740 § 430191441 § 416981788

The City’s programs for governmental activities include General Government, Public Safety, Public
Works, Culture and Recreation, and Community Development. The programs for the business-type
activities consist of water services provided by the Menlo Park Municipal Water District.

As noted earlier, the City as a whole has net position of $430.19 million. The largest portion of the
City’s net position, $360.46 million or approximately 84 percent, reflects its investment in capital assets
(e.g., land, buildings, equipment, improvements, construction in progress, and infrastructure); less any
related debt used to acquire those assets that are still outstanding. The City uses these capital assets
to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending.
Although the City’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted
that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital
assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

An additional portion of the City’s net position as a whole, $48.74 million or 11 percent represents
resources that are subject to external restrictions on how they may be utilized. Restricted net assets
show a year-over-year increase of $16.76 million resulting from the reclassification of Below Market
Rate Housing funds, shown as “Community Development” from unrestricted net assets. The remaining
balance of unrestricted net assets, $20.99 million or 5 percent, may be used to meet the government’s
ongoing obligation to citizens and creditors. Unrestricted net assets show a decrease year-over-year
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resulting from the reclassification of Below Market Rate Housing funds.

Total net position of the City increased $13.63 million in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016. This was
rimarily related to an increase in in the City’s cash position, particularly in the governmental activities.

City of Menlo Park's Changes in Net Position
Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2015-16 2014-15 2015-16 2014-15 2015-16 2014-15

Revenues:

Program Revenues:

Charges for Services $ 26,128,239 $ 23,065,800 $ 7,647,125 $ 8,165,645 $ 33,775,364 $ 31,231,445

Operating Grants and Contributions 1,976,101 1,876,305 - - 1,976,101 1,876,305

Capital Grants and Contributions 2,123,799 2,262,146 - - 2,123,799 2,262,146

General Revenue:

Property Taxes 18,227,209 16,824,728 - - 18,227,209 16,824,728

Sales Taxes 5,425,089 6,527,498 - - 5,425,089 6,527,498

Transient Occupancy Taxes 6,268,171 4,720,226 - - 6,268,171 4,720,226

Other Taxes 4,882,372 4,616,187 - - 4,882,372 4,616,187

Investment Earnings 1,169,712 1,205,744 111,026 146,647 1,280,738 1,352,391

Gain on Sale of Assets 47,567 45,544 - - 47,567 45,544

Miscellaneous 1,144,891 234,380 - (1,752) 1,144,891 232,628

Total Revenues 67,393,150 61,378,558 7,758,151 8,310,540 75,151,301 69,689,098

Expenses:

General Government 7,567,067 8,896,023 - - 7,567,067 8,896,023

Public Safety 14,930,689 17,090,541 - - 14,930,689 17,090,541

Public Works 14,469,169 10,784,753 - - 14,469,169 10,784,753

Culture and Recreation 11,836,304 11,250,082 - - 11,836,304 11,250,082

Community Development 4,483,136 4,060,817 - - 4,483,136 4,060,817

Interest on Long-term Debt 913,633 850,924 - - 913,633 850,924

Water Operations - - 7,323,365 6,657,761 7,323,365 6,657,761

Total Expenses 54,199,997 52,933,140 7,323,365 6,657,761 61,523,363 59,590,901

In¢/Dec in Net Position before Transfers 13,193,153 8,445,418 434,786 1,652,779 13,627,938 10,098,197
Extraordinary gain (loss) - - - - - -
Transfers 220,185 189,040 (220,185) (189,041) - -
Changes in Net Position 13,413,338 8,634,458 214,601 1,463,738 13,627,938 10,098,197
Net Position - Beginning of the Year, as restated 390,559,048 381,924,589 26,004,454 24,959,002 416,563,502 406,883,591
Prior Period Adjustment - - - -
Net Position - End of the Year $403,972,386 $390,559,047 $26,219,055 $26,422,740 $430,191,440 $ 416,981,788

Governmental Activities

Total governmental activities increased the City of Menlo Park’s net position by $13.41 million, as
revenues closed the year well above expenses which is similar to the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015.
Governmental Activities revenues and expenses were up in 2015-16 over 2014-15, with revenues
increasing by $6.01 million and expenses increasing by $1.27 million. Program and general revenues
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increased in a number of categories, however, charges for services had the largest year-over-year
growth in dollars at $3.06 million year-over-year, primarily in Community Development. Increases in
expenses also occurred in a number of operational areas, with Public Works seeing the most significant
year-over-year change of $3.68 million.

The following charts of expenses and sources of funding for the City’s various governmental activities
have been derived from the Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Position. The first pie chart
reflects expenses incurred in each area as a percentage of the total expense of governmental activities
($54.20 million in fiscal year 2015-16). The second pie chart reflects the sources of funding available to
cover the expenses of the governmental activities ($67.61 million in fiscal year 2015-16). After applying
program revenues (charges for services, grants, and contributions) to the cost of governmental activity
programs, remaining expenses must be funded out of the City’s general revenues — primarily taxes and
investment earnings. Areas with the highest program revenues (i.e., Public Works, Culture and
Recreation, and Community Development) are able to offset relatively more costs than activities that
have fewer opportunities to derive program revenues (such as Public Safety). In total, program
revenues covered nearly 56 percent of governmental activity expenses in fiscal year 2015-16, which is
up when compared to 51 percent for fiscal year 2014-15.

Governmental Expense by Activity

Interest on
Long-term General
Community Debt Government
Development 2% 14%
8%

Culture and
Recreation
22%

__—Public Safety
27%
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27%
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Governmental Revenue by Source
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Business Type Activities

The final net position for business-type activities in 2015-16 was $26.22 million. Total program
revenues for business-type activities (operation of the Menlo Park Municipal Water District) were $7.65
million, which consisted solely of charges for services related to water usage and capital surcharge fees.
Total expenses for the business-type activities were $7.32 million during 2015-16, nearly all of which
were related to water operations. Overall net position increased by $0.21 million in 2015-16.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF INDIVIDUAL FUNDS

Major Fund Balances — Governmental Funds

A key function of fund accounting is to segregate resources. In order to reduce frustration when
different individual funds are combined for financial reporting purposes and because it is common for
governments to have too many funds to include information on each individual fund within the basic
financial statements, Major Fund reporting was implemented with Government Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) Statement 34. Each major individual fund is required to be presented separately and all
non-major governmental funds to be aggregated into a single other governmental fund category. The
General Fund is always considered a major fund. The criteria to determine what other funds must be
reported as a major fund are:

e Ten percent criterion. An individual fund reports at least 10 percent of any of the following:
total governmental fund assets,

total governmental fund liabilities,

total governmental fund revenues, or

total governmental fund expenditures.

O O OO
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e Five percent criterion. An individual governmental fund reports at least 5 percent of the total for
both governmental and enterprise funds of any one of the items for which it met the 10 percent
criterion.

There are five major funds in the Governmental Funds category, one more than prior year with the
addition of the Transportation Impact Fee Fund. In total, Governmental Fund balanced increased $6.85
million between 2015 and 2016. Below is a table with a comparison of the fund balance for each of
these five funds and all other governmental funds as of June 30, 2015, as restated, and June 30, 2016.

June 30, June 30, Increase

Governmental Fund Balances 2016 2015 (Decrease)
General Fund $ 31,716,256 $ 31,336,832 379,424
Below Market Rate Housing Fund 16,884,108 13,043,290 3,840,818
Housing Fund 4,822,471 4,806,320 16,151
Transportation Impact Fees Fund 3,680,652 4,783,010 (1,102,358)
General Capital Improvement Project Fund 19,249,500 14,471,623 4,777 877
Other Governmental Funds 25,275,749 26,337,706 (1,061,957)
TOTAL $ 101,628,736 $ 94,778,781 $ 6,849,955

General Fund Balance

As noted, the General Fund is always one of the major governmental funds and is the primary
operating fund of the City. Most City services are accounted for in the General Fund, including most
public safety, public works, parks and community services, library, planning and community
development, and general government.

At the end of the 2015-16 reporting period, the fund balance of the City’s General Fund was $31.72
million, an increase of $0.38 million from the prior year. The modest increase in fund balance is the
result of City Council approval of additional transfers from the General Fund to the General Capital
Improvement Projects Fund for projects such a sidewalk extension on Santa Cruz Avenue.

Although $1.37 million of the fund balance was categorized as “nonspendable”, the City’s General Fund
Reserve Policy sets aside a total of $20.85 million as “committed” fund balance. The committed fund
balance is shown in three categories: $7.71 million for emergency contingencies, $10.28 million to
mitigate the effects of major economic uncertainties, and $2.86 million for strategic pension funding
opportunities. Based on the updated reserve policy, the pension-related reserve increases when the
General Fund achieves a net operating surplus in a given year. The reserve policy affirms the Council’s
desire to limit use of General Fund balances to address unanticipated, one-time needs or opportunities,
and establishes a goal range for the City’s unrestricted fund balance (including commitments and
assignments of fund balance) of 43-55 percent of General Fund expenditures. As of June 30, 2016, the
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City’s General Fund unrestricted fund balance equaled 59 percent of the fund’s budgeted 2016-17
expenditures, including transfers. This will be partially mitigated by the $0.73 million in assigned fund
balance that will be used for 2016-17 spending commitments.

Below Market Rate Housing Fund Balance

The Below Market Rate Housing Fund became a major fund for financial statement purposes starting in
fiscal year 2011-12, based on the assets of the fund relative to the City’s total governmental fund
assets. The BMR Housing Program was established in 1987 to increase the housing supply for people
who live and/or work in Menlo Park and have limited income per the limits established by San Mateo
County. The program requires the provision of BMR units or in-lieu fees for certain development
projects. State law requires that all BMR in-lieu fees be committed to affordable housing development
within five years of collection. During the 2015-16 fiscal year, the fund had revenue that included $3.79
million of BMR in-lieu fees, $0.15 million in interest on outstanding loans and interest earnings on fund
balance. The fund had expenditures of $0.97 million for the overall administration of the BMR program
and for maintenance and rehabilitation work on various properties.

Housing Fund

As Successor Agency for both housing and non-housing activities of the former redevelopment agency,
the City transferred all loans of the former CDA Housing Fund to the City’s own, newly established
Housing Fund in 2011-12. In previous years, the CDA Housing Fund had received twenty percent of all
the tax increment revenues of the former Agency to advance low- and moderate-income housing
programs in the area. Per dissolution law, all future tax increment revenues will go to the County, and
any unencumbered funds of the former agency will be distributed to other taxing agencies once
recognized obligations have been paid. Therefore, the current Housing Fund exists to account for the
housing loans of the former Agency. Net revenues from loan payments may go back to the fund to
provide further loans or to other qualifying housing programs. The City has elected to report the
Housing Fund as a major fund for financial statement purposes.

General Capital Improvement Project Fund Balance

The General Capital Improvement Project Fund is also a major fund for financial statement purposes,
based on the relative amount of assets in the fund. In 2015-16, fund expenditures were $4.12 million
and included work on major projects such as street resurfacing and improvements to City buildings.
Total fund balance increase $4.78 million from 2014-15 due to a significantly higher than usual transfer
from the General Fund to provide the resources necessary for future work programs. This transaction
increased the relatively high General Capital Improvement Project fund balance to $19.25 million. lItis
not unusual for this particular fund to accumulate reserves because of the nature of the fund itself.
Major capital and infrastructure projects, such as street resurfacing, require significant capital outlays
and are most cost effective when done in large segments. To stabilize the impact on the General Fund,
which funds many of these projects, annual transfers are made and reserves are accumulated to then
be appropriated as large-scale projects are scheduled to begin.

Other Governmental Funds Balances
At the end of the 2015-16 fiscal year, the total fund balance of the City’s 26 non-major governmental
funds was $25.28 million. This represents a 4 percent decrease in fund balance year-over-year, which
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is discussed in more detail below.

The fund balances consist of 22 special revenue funds, 2 debt service funds, and 2 capital projects
funds. Within the special revenue funds, ten fund balances increased over the course of the fiscal year,
while twelve experienced a decrease. The largest fund balance increases were with the Landfill Post
Closure Fund at $0.50 million and Downtown Parking Permits at $0.31 million. Both funds are utilized
to fund capital and infrastructure projects, and as such, large fluctuations in fund balance year-over-
year are not uncommon as revenues can accumulate over several years to ensure adequate funding
for large projects. The largest decreases in fund balance were experienced in the Highway Users’ Tax
Fund with a $0.41 million decline and Construction Impact Fee Fund with a $0.94 million decline. Both
decreases are attributed to the street resurfacing project.

Proprietary Funds

Proprietary Funds are comprised of enterprise funds and internal service funds. The City has one
enterprise operation, which is the Water Fund. An enterprise fund accounts for activities that are
financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises. The Menlo Park Municipal
Water District (MPMWD) is a self-supporting enterprise in which the sale of water to customers
generates the revenue needed to support the operations and capital needs of the district.

The Water Fund accounts for water supplied to the approximately 4,000 customers of the MPMWD.
The net position of the fund at June 30, 2016 was $26.22 million, an increase of $0.21 million from the
prior fiscal year.

Reserve funding policies established in 2006 were revised in 2010, with the City adopting a 16.5
percent annual increase in water meter and consumption block rates through fiscal year 2013-14 based
on projected increases in the cost of water. The Water Fund Reserve Policy anticipated the need for
transfers/loans from the capital fund to maintain the operating fund during this period of water rate
increases. The total transfer amount in 2015-16 from the capital fund to the operating fund was $1.10
million, a 69 per cent reduction in the transfer when compared to 2014-15. Further, a capital surcharge
was established in 1990 to fund major water capital projects; the surcharge netted the Water Capital
Fund $0.71 million in fiscal year 2015-16.

Internal Service Funds

The City uses internal service funds to account for four major administrative activities: Workers’
Compensation Insurance, General Liability Insurance, Retiree Medical Benefits, Information
Technology, and Vehicle Replacement. Separation of these programs from the General Fund allows
for better tracking and allocation of the costs associated with these “overhead” activities and provides a
mechanism for funding those costs in the year incurred.

The Vehicle Replacement Fund collected charges for services of $0.40 million in 2015-16 for the cost of
anticipated vehicle replacements. As of June 30, 2016, the Fund'’s fund balance is $1.42 million. The
Workers’ Compensation Insurance Fund collected charges for services in the amount of $1.0 million
plus a onetime transfer from the General Fund in the amount of $0.20 million. Despite the $1.20 million
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inflow, expenditures exceeded revenue, investment earnings, and transfers in by $0.47 million. The
General Liability Fund’ collected charges for services in the amount of $0.80 million and, when
combined with interest income, exceed its overall expenses by $0.21 million, which positively impacted
its net position as of June 30, 2016.

The Retiree Medical Benefits Fund was created in 2008-09 for the sole purpose of providing
contributions to the California Employers Retiree Benefits Trust (CERBT), the funding vehicle for the
City’'s long-term obligations under its retiree medical benefits program. $9.2 million was sufficient to
fund the accumulated liability of these benefits in fiscal year 2007-08. Going forward, the amount of the
contributions are generated as a percentage-of-payroll charge, actuarially calculated to reflect full
funding of the normal (annual) cost of these benefits. In fiscal year 2015-16 these costs were $0.61
million, while charges for services amounted to $0.93 million. Overall the Fund had a net income of
$0.31 million.

Fiduciary Operations

Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements are presented in the Basic Financial Statements separately from
the Government-Wide Financial Statements. Prior to 2011-12, the City’s only fiduciary funds were
agency funds, used to account for certain assets held on behalf of others. As the City’s role is purely
custodial in these cases, all assets reported in the agency funds are offset by a liability to the party on
whose behalf they are held. Total assets of the agency funds held by the City increased from $0.59
million to $0.64 million, which was due largely to the increase in refundable deposits held for current
development projects.

A new private-purpose trust fund was established in 2011-12 to account for the activities related to the
dissolution of the former Community Development Agency of the City of Menlo Park. As previously
discussed, the former redevelopment agency was eliminated by State law as of February 1, 2012. All
assets and obligations (including long-term debt) of the former agency were transferred to the City, as
Successor Agency, as of that date. Housing loans are reported as assets in that governmental fund,
but all other assets and liabilities are held in trust capacity in a fiduciary fund.

Unlike agency funds, trust funds report an “income statement”. As such, the activity of the Successor
Agency Trust from 2015-16 is reported in the Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position. As of
June 30, 2016, the fund’s net position was a negative $39.55 million, a positive improvement over the
June 30, 2015 net position by $2.67 million. For additional information on this trust fund, please see
Notes 6 and 17 to the financial statements. It is important to note, however, that because the net
negative position is primarily a function of long-term liabilities (debt service), which will be paid by future
property tax revenues in the former redevelopment project area, there is no impact on the primary
government’s current or future financial position.

DEBT ADMINISTRATION
As of June 30, 2016, the City’'s debt obligations were comprised of General Obligation Bonds. In 2015-
16, the City fully retired its 1996 General Obligation Refunding Bonds the original funds from which
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provided for capital projects associated with the City’s library. The City’s two voter approved “Measure

T” general obligation bonds had a balance of $18.34 million as of June 30, 2016. Of this amount, $8.16
million is outstanding on the 2012 General Obligation Bond refunding and $10.18 million is outstanding
on the 2009 A and 2009 B General Obligation Bonds.

In October 2015, the City’s Community Development Agency issued Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds in
a par amount of $60.3 million for the purpose of refunding at lower interest rates outstanding 2006 Las
Pulgas Project Tax Allocation Bonds. The original bonds had been issued to finance capital projects of
benefit to the Las Pulgas Community Development Project Area. With the dissolution of redevelopment
agencies in 2012, this bonded debt is no longer reported in the Government Wide Financial Statements.
These obligations are included in Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements. Additional information on the
City’s long-term debt can be found in Note 6 of this report.

As disclosed in the Notes to Basic Financial Statements, a liability has been recorded to reflect the
City’s obligation to provide post-closure care of the landfill at Bayfront Park. Although the City has
established a revenue stream to fund landfill post-closure care, governmental accounting standards
require the calculation and recording of the liability associated with this activity. The liability is included
in the reporting of the City’s long-term debt, at an estimated $4,845,465 at June 30, 2015.

CAPITAL ASSETS

The City’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of June 30,
2016 amounts to $378.80 million, net of accumulated depreciation. This investment in capital assets
includes land, buildings, improvements, machinery and equipment, infrastructure and construction in
progress. Infrastructure assets are items that are normally immovable and of value only to the City
such as roads, bridges, streets and sidewalks, drainage systems, lighting systems and similar items.
The City’s investment in capital assets for the current fiscal year totaled to $9.05 million for fiscal year
2015-16. This amount is reduced by accumulated depreciation charges of $6.19 million and net
retirements of assets totaling $0.59 million. Detailed information on the City’s capital assets can be
found in Note 5 of this report.

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

The 2015-16 fiscal year amended budget for the General Fund reflected an operating deficit, of $6.0
million with revenue inclusive of transfers totaling $50.28 million and expenditures inclusive of transfers
totaling $56.28 million. The adopted expenditure budget was increased over the course of the fiscal
year to include purchase orders and other commitments from the prior year, as well as any other
Council-approved budget adjustments. Most notably, the City Council transferred an additional $6
million from the General Fund to primarily to the General Fund for additional capital improvement
projects. At the end of 2015-16, however, the revenues inclusive of transfers exceeded expenditures
inclusive of transfers resulting in an operating surplus of $0.38 million.

General Fund Revenues

The General Fund experienced year-over-year revenue growth for the fourth consecutive year. Overall,
revenues, including transfers and asset sales, totaled $51.09 million, which was a $3.28 million (6.9
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percent) increase over 2014-15. Property taxes, sales tax, transient occupancy tax, licenses and
permits, and intergovernmental led the way, accounting for the vast majority of the revenue growth.
Sales tax revenues continued to decline with the loss of a major sales tax generator in mid-2015.
Transient occupancy tax revenues benefitted from a full year of the 12% tax rate, as well as a strong
economic climate that resulted in high room and occupancy rates at hotels in the region. Licenses and
permits were up significantly due to continued healthy development activity.

General Fund Expenditures

Total General Fund expenditures, excluding transfers out, totaled $42.56 million and were 4.9 percent
higher than 2014-15. This increase was the result of departmental operations, and the largest year-
over-year increases were in Public Works. These increases were due to a variety of factors, including
vacant positions being filled. Transfers to other funds increased $4.27 million from prior year
representing the City’s continued investment in capital improvements.

ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK

The City’s financial outlook remains sound. Property values continue their upward trend, and with a
number of large-scale development projects in process, the outlook for future property tax revenue
growth is strong. Being the General Fund'’s largest revenue source, at 32 percent of the total, a healthy
property tax base is essential for continued sustainability.

One ongoing threat to the property tax base is the uncertainty of what is called “excess ERAF”
(educational revenue augmentation fund). San Mateo County is one of several counties in the State of
California where the amount generated from the ERAF shift of local property tax exceeds the amount
required to meet funding levels for local schools. As a consequence, those funds collected in excess of
the requirement have traditionally been redistributed back to the taxing entities. With such a unique
circumstance, this revenue source is under scrutiny at the state level, leaving applicable local agencies
to determine how to handle the uncertainty in their financial forecasts. To be conservative, the City of
Menlo Park’s adopted 2016-17 budget and the accompanying 10-year forecast reflects receiving 50
percent of this revenue annually until it drops off entirely in 2019-20. This is a highly speculative
assumption that simply serves to keep the uncertainty of this significant revenue squarely in our sights
as we move forward.

Also an area of continued monitoring is the financial health of the State of California. In November
2012, California voters passed Proposition 30, a measure that raised the state sales tax by a quarter-
cent for four years and increases income tax rates for individuals who earn more than $250,000 a year
for seven years. In November 2016, voters approved Proposition 55 which provides for a 12 year
extension of the increased income tax rate approved by Proposition 30. Proposition 55, however, did
not contain a similar extension of the sales tax increase. Passage of Proposition 30 in 2012 is said to
have offset the need to make $6 billion per year in cuts in the State budget, cuts that could have
impacted local governments. The passage of Proposition 55 in 2016, coupled with growth in the State
economy, has enabled the Governor and the State Legislature to predict a balanced budget and a
record surplus at the State level for the 2016-17 fiscal year. This has lessened the likelihood of looking
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to the local agencies’ revenue sources to balance the State budget.

On the expenditure side, the City is closely monitoring increases in employee benefit costs. One area of
particular note is the City’s cost for pension benefits provided by the California Public Employees’
Retirement System (CalPERS). In December 2016, the CalPERS board voted to reduce its assumed
rate of return on investment income, commonly referred to as the “discount rate”, net of expenses, from
7.5 percent to 7.0 percent over three years beginning on July 1, 2018. The reduction in discount rate is
likely to result in greater unfunded pension liabilities and increased annual costs to the City. Efforts are
currently underway to incorporate the estimated increased costs in the City’s 10-year financial forecast.
Additionally, the City’s Finance and Audit Committee, in coordination with staff and a consulting actuary,
is exploring options to establish a fund that would shield the City’s annual operating budget from
significant fluctuations in pension costs that may result from actions such CalPERS’ decision to reduce
the discount rate assumption.

Staff will continue to monitor the long-term budget situation, both locally and at the State level, to keep
the City Council informed of critical economic events that may impact the sustainability of the City’s
spending plan. Further, staff will continue to be proactive in developing plans to promote economic
development in the City, aggressively pursue grant funding for significant infrastructure improvements,
and continually assess the City’s operations and service delivery models to achieve efficiencies where
possible.

While in an enviable financial position, the City cannot rest on its laurels and must continue to focus its
efforts on priority fiscal initiatives such as adequate funding of infrastructure, careful comprehensive
planning, and optimization of business and residential development opportunities. Further, as new
long-term needs are identified, the appropriate resources to meet those needs must also be identified.
And finally, the City must maintain financial flexibility to ensure it is able to quickly respond to the
inevitable fluctuations in the economy and volatility in its major revenue sources.

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and investors and
creditors with a general overview of the City’s finances and to show the City’s accountability for the
money it receives. If you have questions about this report or need additional financial information,
contact the City of Menlo Park Administrative Services Department, 701 Laurel Street, Menlo Park,
California 94025.
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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City of Menlo Park

Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2016
Primary Government
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and investments $ 93,165,535 12,109,103 $ 105,274,638
Receivables:
Accounts 3,309,732 876,298 4,186,030
Interest 1,411,746 27,114 1,438,860
Due from other governments 1,964,003 - 1,964,003
Deposits and prepaid items 236,565 - 236,565
Total current assets 100,087,581 13,012,515 113,100,096
Noncurrent assets:
Notes receivable 15,445,301 - 15,445,301
Net OPEB asset 86,988 - 86,988
Capital assets
Non-depreciable 236,927,608 3,323,410 240,251,018
Depreciable, net 126,999,277 11,555,095 138,554,372
Total capital asset 363,926,885 14,878,505 378,805,390
Total noncurrent assets 379,459,174 14,878,505 394,337,679
Total assets 479,546,755 27,891,020 507,437,775
DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES
Employer pension contribution 4,657,219 89,363 4,746,582
Pension related amounts 300,560 - 300,560
Total deferred outflow of resources 4,957,779 89,363 5,047,142
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 3,328,970 798,653 4,127,623
Accrued payroll 990,468 32,037 1,022,505
Interest payable 416,774 - 416,774
Deposits 3,219,046 30,500 3,249,546
Unearned revenue 566,166 - 566,166
Claims payable due within one year 851,382 - 851,382
Compensated absences due within one year 1,464,135 89,176 1,553,311
Landfill postclosure care due within one year 408,813 - 408,813
Long-term debt due within one year 425,000 - 425,000
Total current liabilities 11,670,754 950,366 12,621,120
Noncurrent liabilities:
Claims payable due in more than one year 2,811,901 - 2,811,901
Compensated absences due in more than one year 1,223,054 74,543 1,297,597
Net pension liability 38,217,594 663,363 38,880,957
Landfill postclosure care due in more than one year 4,146,929 - 4,146,929
Long-term debt due in more than one year 17,920,340 - 17,920,340
Total noncurrent liabilities 64,319,818 737,906 65,057,724
Total liabilities 75,990,572 1,688,272 77,678,844
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension related amounts 4,541,576 73,056 4,614,632
Total deferred inflows of resources 4,541,576 73,056 4,614,632
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 345,581,545 14,878,505 360,460,050
Restricted for:
Capital projects 7,275,487 11,441,134 18,716,621
Debt service 1,663,696 - 1,663,696
Community development 22,783,937 22,783,937
Special projects 5,572,610 - 5,572,610
Unrestricted 21,095,111 (100,584) 20,994,527
Total net position $ 403,972,386 26,219,055 $ 430,191,441

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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City of Menlo Park
Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Position
For the year ended June 30, 2016

Program Revenues

Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Total
Primary government:
Governmental activities:
General government 7,567,067 $ 3,388,132 $ - $ - $ 3,388,132
Public safety 14,930,689 1,979,203 140,180 - 2,119,383
Public works 14,469,169 7,149,654 804,399 606,318 8,560,371
Culture and recreation 11,836,304 5,410,577 1,031,522 1,517,481 7,959,580
Community development 4,483,136 8,200,673 - - 8,200,673
Interest on long-term debt 913,633 - - - -
Total governmental activities 54,199,997 26,128,239 1,976,101 2,123,799 30,228,139
Business-type activities:
Water 7,323,365 7,647,125 - - 7,647,125
Total business-type activities 7,323,365 7,647,125 - - 7,647,125
Total primary government 61,523,362 $ 33,775,364 $ 1,976,101 $ 2,123,799 $ 37,875,264

General Revenues:
Taxes:
Property taxes
Sales taxes
Transient occupancy taxes
Franchise taxes

Other taxes

Total taxes
Investment earnings
Gain on the sale of capital assets
Miscellaneous

Transfers

Total general revenues and transfers

Change in net position

Net position - beginning of year

Net position - end of year

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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Net (Expense) Revenue

and Changes in Net Assets

Governmental Business-Type

Activities Activities Total
$ (4178935) % - $ (4,178,935)
(12,811,306) - (12,811,306)
(5,908,798) - (5,908,798)
(3,876,724) - (3,876,724)
3,717,537 - 3,717,537
(913,633) - (913,633)
(23,971,858) - (23,971,858)
- 323,760 323,760
- 323,760 323,760
(23,971,858) 323,760 (23,648,098)
18,227,209 = 18,227,209
5,425,089 ~ 5,425,089
6,268,171 - 6,268,171
1,954,461 - 1,954,461
2,927,911 - 2,927,911
34,802,841 - 34,802,841
1,169,712 111,026 1,280,738
47,567 47,567
1,144,891 1,144,891
220,185 (220,185) -
37,385,196 (109,159) 37,276,037
13,413,338 214,601 13,627,939
390,559,048 26,004,454 416,563,502

$ 403,972,386 $ 26,219,055 $ 430,191,441
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GOVERNMENTAL FUND
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

General Fund - Accounts for all revenues and expenditures necessary to carry out basic governmental
activities of the City that are not accounted for through other funds. For the City, the General Fund
includes such activities as police, planning, engineering, public works operations and maintenance, and
legal and administrative services.

Below Market Rate Housing Fund - Utilized to account for fees collected from developers of 10 or more
residentials units, which are used to develop below market rate housing units through down payment
assistance loans. In addition, it is utilized to account for fees collected from commercial and industrial
developers, which are used to expand the stock of low and moderate income houses for people who work
in the City.

Housing Special Revenue Fund - Accounts for loans transferred to the City when the former Community
Development Agency was dissolved. Prior to the Agency’s dissolution, the Agency used tax increment
revenue restricted for low and moderate income housing to make the loans which were subsequently
transferred to the City. This fund’s only activity is current revenue and expenditures resulting from loan
servicing activities.

Transportation Impact Fees Fund - Established to account for fees paid by developers of certain
residential, commercial, and industrial properties and projects funded by those fees to mitigate traffic
problems resulting either directly or indirectly from the development.

General Capital Improvement Project Fund - Utilizes an annual City General Fund transfer to provide
adequate funding for maintenance of the City's current infrastructure.
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City of Menlo Park
Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds

June 30, 2016
Major Funds
Below Market
Rate Housing Housing Transportation General Capital Non-Major Total
General Special Revenue  Special Revenue Impact Improvement Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Fees Project Fund Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 30,980,560 $ 7,766,958 $ 430,574 $ 4,814,692 $ 19,616,791 $ 24,837,103 $ 88,446,678
Receivables:
Accounts 2,779,506 22,794 11,027 - 6,879 481,112 3,301,318
Interest 157,831 17,332 1,166,098 10,777 - 49,120 1,401,158
Notes 1,339,847 9,089,500 4,380,928 - - 635,026 15,445,301
Due from other governments 1,326,398 - - 315,435 - 322,170 1,964,003
Deposits and prepaid items 33,466 - - - - - 33,466
Due from other funds 410,554 - - - - 98,642 509,196
Total assets $ 37,028,162 $ 16,896,584 $ 5,988,627 $ 5,140,904 $ 19,623,670 $ 26,423,173 $ 111,101,120
LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 1,317,595 $ 12,476 $ 58 % 455,508 $ 338,399 $ 789,583 $ 2,913,619
Accrued payroll and related liabilities 863,294 - - 14,378 35,771 44,320 957,763
Due to other funds - - - - - 172,327 172,327
Deposits 2,183,680 - - 990,366 - 45,000 3,219,046
Unearned revenue 566,166 - - - - - 566,166
Total liabilities 4,930,735 12,476 58 1,460,252 374,170 1,051,230 7,828,921
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Unavailable revenue 381,171 - 1,166,098 - - 96,194 1,643,463
Total deferred inflows of resources 381,171 - 1,166,098 - - 96,194 1,643,463
Fund Balances:
Nonspendable 1,373,313 - - - 1,373,313
Restricted - 16,884,108 4,380,928 3,680,652 - 12,350,042 37,295,730
Committed 20,852,000 - - - 12,594,224 33,446,224
Assigned 4,483,513 - 441,543 - 19,249,500 452,939 24,627,495
Unassigned 5,007,430 - - - - (121,456) 4,885,974
Total fund balances 31,716,256 16,884,108 4,822,471 3,680,652 19,249,500 25,275,749 101,628,736
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources, and fund balances $ 37,028,162 $ 16,896,584 $ 5,988,627 $ 5,140,904 $ 19,623,670 $ 26,423,173 $ 111,101,120

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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City of Menlo Park
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet
to the Government-Wide Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2016
Total Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds $ 101,628,736
Amounts reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement of Net Position were different
because:
Capital assets used in governmental activities were not current financial resources. Therefore,
they were not reported in the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet.
Non-depreciable (net of real estate held for resale in special revenue funds) 236,927,608
Depreciable (net of internal service fund capital assets of $3,530,008) 224,297,718
Accumulated depreciation/amortization (net of internal service fund of $2,486,029) (98,342,420)
Interest payable on long-term debt did not require current financial resources. Therefore, interest
payable was not reported as a liability in the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet. (416,774)
Net OPEB liabilities are not due and payable in the current period, and therefore are not recorded
in the governmental funds 86,988
Employer contributions for pension were recorded as expenditures in the governmental funds.
However, in the Government-Wide Financial Statement these contributions are deferred. 4,657,219
In the Government-Wide Financial Statement certain differences between actuarial estimates and
actual results for pension are deferred and amortized over a period of time, however in the
governmental funds no transactions are recorded. (4,241,016)
Landfill postclosure care costs do not require current financial resources and are not reported as a
liability in the Governmental Fund Financials Statements. (4,555,742)
Unavailable revenues recorded in Governmental Fund Financial Statements in the amount of
$1,643,463, resulting from activities in which revenues were earned but funds were not available,
are reclassified as revenues in the Government-Wide Financial Statements. 1,643,463
Long-term liabilities were not due and payable in the current period. Therefore, they were not
reported in the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet. The compensated absences is net of the
internal service funds in the amount of $25,230 short-term, and $20,258 long-term.
Long-term liabilities - due within one year:
Compensated absences payable (1,438,905)
Long-term debt (425,000)
Long-term liabilities - due in more than one year:
Compensated absences payable (1,202,796)
Net pension liability (38,217,594)
Long-term debt (17,920,340)
Internal service funds are used to charge the costs of risk management, other post employment
benefits and vehicle replacement to individual funds. The assets and liabilities of the internal
service funds are included in governmental activities in the Government-Wide Statement of Net
Position. 1,491,241
Net Position of Governmental Activities $ 403,972,386

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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City of Menlo Park

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Governmental Funds
For the year ended June 30, 2016

REVENUES:

Taxes:
Secured property taxes
Unsecured property taxes
Other property taxes
Sales taxes
Other taxes
Special assessments
Licenses and permits
Fines and forfeitures
Use of money and property
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Other

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General government
Public safety
Public works
Culture and recreation
Community development
Urban development and housing
Capital outlay
Debt service:
Principal
Interest and fiscal charges

Total expenditures
REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balances

FUND BALANCES:

Beginning of year, as restated

End of year

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.

Major Funds
Below Market
Rate Housing Housing Transportation General Capital Non-Major Total
General Special Revenue  Special Revenue Impact Improvement Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Fees Project Fund Funds Funds
16,927,658  $ - 8 - -8 -8 - $ 16,927,658
466,089 - - - - - 466,089
940,188 - - - - - 940,188
5,425,088 - - - - - 5,425,088
9,360,210 - - - 82,719 1,611,420 11,054,349
- - - - - 2,618,490 2,618,490
5,847,247 - - - 100,000 425,478 6,372,725
1,349,853 - - - - - 1,349,853
1,145,954 149,505 17,711 51,211 - 313,612 1,677,993
1,211,449 - - 606,318 - 798,524 2,616,291
8,350,722 3,788,681 3,382 484,865 50,266 4,228,297 16,906,213
64,653 - - - - 267,103 331,756
51,089,111 3,938,186 21,093 1,142,394 232,985 10,262,924 66,686,693
5,517,302 - - - - 4,506 5,521,808
15,865,687 - - - - 68,059 15,933,746
7,616,964 - - - - 3,735,930 11,352,894
9,807,503 - - - - 248,487 10,055,990
3,542,425 - - - - 990,632 4,533,057
51,457 97,368 4,942 - - - 153,767
164,071 - - 1,258,892 4,419,052 4,477,246 10,319,261
- - - - - 1,055,000 1,055,000
- - - - - 931,400 931,400
42,565,409 97,368 4,942 1,258,892 4,419,052 11,511,260 59,856,923
8,523,702 3,840,818 16,151 (116,498) (4,186,067) (1,248,336) 6,829,770
417,599 - - 14,140 8,963,944 477,876 9,873,559
(8,561,877) - - (1,000,000) - (291,497) (9,853,374)
(8,144,278) - - (985,860) 8,963,944 186,379 20,185
379,424 3,840,818 16,151 (1,102,358) 4,777,877 (1,061,957) 6,849,955
31,336,832 13,043,290 4,806,320 4,783,010 14,471,623 26,337,706 94,778,781
31,716256  _$ 16,884,108 _$ 4,822,471 3,680,652 _$ 19249500 _$ 25275749 $ 101,628,736
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City of Menlo Park

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances to the Government-Wide Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Position

For the year ended June 30, 2016

Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds $ 6,849,955

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities were different because:

Governmental Funds reported acquisition of capital assets as expenditures in various functions and in capital outlay.

However, in the Government-Wide Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Position, the cost of those assets was

allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense. This was the amount of capital assets recorded in

the current period. This amount is net of changes recorded in the internal service funds of $(229,255) . 8,589,250

Depreciation expense on capital assets was reported in the Government-Wide Statement of Activities and Changes
in Net Position, but they did not require the use of current financial resources. Therefore, depreciation expense was
not reported as expenditures in the Governmental Funds. This amount is net of depreciation expense of $186,555
recorded in the internal service funds. (6,001,294)

Loss on the disposal of capital assets was reported in the Government-Wide Statement of Activities and Changes in
Net Position, but they did not require the use of current financial resources. Therefore, it was not reported as
expenditures in the Governmental Funds. (590,745)

Revenues that have not met the revenue recognition criteria in the Fund Financial Statements are recognized as
revenue in the Government-Wide Financial Statements. This amount represents the change in unavailable revenue
from the prior year. 628,480

Current year employer pension contributions are recorded as expenditures in the governmental funds, however
these amounts are reported as a deferred outflow of resources in the Government-Wide Statement of Net Position. 4,657,219

Pension expense is recorded as incurred in the Government-Wide Statement of Activities, however pension expense
is not recognized in the governmental funds. (2,612,024)

Expenses to accrue for long-term compensated absences and OPEB liability (asset) is reported in the Government-

Wide Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Position, but they do not require the use of current financial

resources. Therefore, these expenses are not reported in the Governmental Funds.
Change in compensated absences (23,561)
Net change in OPEB asset 67,057

Bond proceeds provided current financial resources to Governmental Funds, but issuing debt increased long-term
liabilities in the Government-Wide Statement of Net Position. Repayment of bond principal was an expenditure in
Governmental Funds, but the repayment reduced long-term liabilities in the Government-Wide Statement of Net
Assets.

Long-term debt repayments 1,055,000

Proceeds and premiums/discounts on issuance of debt are recorded as revenues/expenditures in the Fund Financial
Statements. In the Government-Wide Financial Statements, these costs are capitalized and reported as long-term
debt and the premium/ discounts are amortized over the life of the debt. (1,187)

Expenses for landfill postclosure costs are expenditures in the Governmental Fund Financial Statements but reduce
the liability in the Government-Wide Financial Statements. 289,723

Interest expense on long-term debt was reported in the Government-Wide Statement of Activities and Changes in
Net Position, but it did not require the use of current financial resources. Therefore, interest expense was not
reported as expenditures in the Governmental Funds. The following amount represents the change in accrued
interest from the prior year. 18,954

Internal service funds are used to charge the costs of risk management, other post employment benefits and vehicle

replacements to individual funds. The net revenue of the internal service funds is reported with governmental
activities. 486,511

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities $ 13,413,338

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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PROPRIETARY FUND
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Proprietary funds are used to account for activities that are financed and operated in a manner similar to
private business enterprises. The City Council has determined that the cost of providing the following
services to both internal and external customers be recovered primarily through user charges.

Enterprise Fund - Established to account for the financing of goods or services provided to external
users. The water distribution operations of the Menlo Park Municipal Water District are the only
enterprise activities of the City.

Internal Service Funds - These funds are used to account for the financing of goods or services provided

by one department or agency to other departments or agencies of the government and to other
government units, on a cost reimbursement basis.
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City of Menlo Park

Statement of Net Position

Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2016
Major Governmental
Enterprise Fund Activities
Water Internal
Fund Service Funds
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and investments 12,109,103 $ 4,718,857
Receivables:
Accounts 876,298 8,414
Interest 27,114 10,588
Deposits and prepaid expenses - 203,099
Total current assets 13,012,515 4,940,958
Capital assets:
Non-depreciable 3,323,410 -
Depreciable, net 11,555,095 1,043,979
Total capital assets 14,878,505 1,043,979
Total assets 27,891,020 5,984,937
DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES
Employer pension contribution 89,363 -
Total deferred outflow of resources 89,363 -
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 798,653 415,351
Accrued payroll 32,037 32,705
Deposits 30,500 -
Due to other funds - 336,869
Claims payable, due within one year - 851,382
Compensated absences, due within one year 89,176 25,230
Total current liabilities 950,366 1,661,537
Noncurrent liabilities:
Claims payable, due in more than one year - 2,811,901
Net pension liability 663,363 -
Compensated absences, due in more than one year 74,543 20,258
Total noncurrent liabilities 737,906 2,832,159
Total liabilities 1,688,272 4,493,696
DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES
Pension related amounts 73,056 -
Total deferred outflow of resources 73,056 -
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 14,878,505 1,043,979
Restricted for:
Capital projects 11,441,134 -
Unrestricted (100,584) 447,262
Total net position 26,219,055 $ 1,491,241

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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City of Menlo Park

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position

Proprietary Funds
For the year ended June 30, 2016

OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for services

Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES:

Cost of sales and services
Personnel services

General and administrative
Insurance

Depreciation

Total operating expenses

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):

Interest income

Gain/ (loss) on sale of equipment

Total nonoperating revenues

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE OPERATING TRANSFERS

TRANSFERS:

Transfers in

Transfers out

Total transfers

Net income (loss)

NET POSITION:
Beginning of year

End of year

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.

Major Governmental
Enterprise Fund Activities

Water Internal

Fund Service Funds

$ 7,647,125  $ 4,267,860
7,647,125 4,267,860
6,795,984 -

- 1,352,232

285,288 543,212

- 1,977,327

197,127 186,555
7,278,399 4,059,326
368,726 208,534
111,026 30,410
(44,966) 47,567
66,060 77,977
434,786 286,511
200,000

(220,185) -
(220,185) 200,000
214,601 486,511
26,004,454 1,004,730
$ 26219055 $ 1,491,241
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City of Menlo Park
Statement of Cash Flows

Proprietary Funds
For the year ended June 30, 2016

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Cash received from customers/other funds
Cash payment to suppliers

Cash payments for general and administrative
Cash paid to employees

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Transfers from other funds
Transfers to other funds

Net cash provided (used) by noncapital financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Acquisition and construction of capital assets
Proceeds from disposal of capital assets

Net cash provided (used) by capital and related financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Investment income

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS:
Beginning of year

End of year

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET

CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net
cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation
Changes in current assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Deferred outflow of resources
Prepaid expenses
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll
Insurance claim payable
Compensated absences
Deferred inflow of resources
Net pension liability
Deposits

Total adjustments

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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Major Governmental
Enterprise Fund Activities
Water Internal
Fund Service Funds
$ 7,798,153 $ 4,949,041
(7,381,573) (2,049,637)
(261,754) -
- (1,291,096)
154,826 1,608,308
1,099,682 200,000
(1,319,867) -
(220,185) 200,000
(1,130,525) (466,617)
- 47,567
(1,130,525) (419,050)
114,323 27,391
114,323 27,391
(1,081,561) 1,416,649
13,190,664 3,302,208

$ 12,109,103

$ 4,718,857

$ 368,726 208,534
197,127 186,555

156,456 681,181

(11,219) -

- (46,288)

(585,589) 272,931

(29,965) 27,945

- 244,259

105,841 33,191

(103,641) -

62,518 -

(5,428) -

(213,900) 1,399,774

$ 154826 $ 1,608,308




FIDUCIARY FUND
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Agency Funds are custodial in nature and do not involve measurements of results of operations. They
are used to account for assets held in an agency capacity for others and therefore cannot be used to
support the City's programs.
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City of Menlo Park
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position
June 30, 2016

ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and investments:
Held with City
Prepaids
Accounts receivable

Total assets
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred loss of refunding

LIABILITIES

Liabilities:

Accounts payable

Due to the City

Interest payable

Deposits

Long-term debt:

Due within one year

Due in more than one year
Total liabilities
NET POSITION
Held in trust for private purpose

Total net position

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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Total Successor Agency
Agency Trust Fund Funds

$ 8,857,951 727,110

- 324,696

231,881 47,927

9,089,832 1,099,733
12,911,150
12,911,150

3,525 16,000

- 372,623

1,441,101 -

108,891 711,110

3,115,000 -

56,882,364 -

61,550,881 1,099,733
(39,549,899)
$ (39,549,899)




City of Menlo Park

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position
Private Purpose Trust Fund - Successor Agency
For the Period Ending June 30, 2016

Additions:

Property taxes

Investment earnings

Total additions

Deductions:

Program expenses of former redevelopment agency

Interest and fiscal agency expenses of former redevelopment agency

Total deductions

Change in net position

Net position - beginning of the year

Net position - end of the year

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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Total Successor

Agency Funds

$ 7,065,305

(71,910)

6,993,395

12,065
4,316,992

4,329,057

2,664,338

(42,214,237)

$  (39,549,899)




This page intentionally left blank

44



City of Menlo Park
Notes to Basic Financial Statements, Continued
For the year ended June 30, 2016

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
A. Reporting Entity

The City of Menlo Park (City) was incorporated under the General Laws of the State of California and
enjoys all the rights and privileges pertaining to such “General Law” cities. The City uses the City
Council/Manager form of government. The accompanying financial statements present the government
and its component units, entities for which the government is considered to be financially accountable.
Blended component units are, in substance, part of the primary government’s operations, even though they
are legally separate entities. Thus, blended component units are appropriately presented as funds of the
primary government.

The criteria used in determining the scope of the reporting entity are based on the provisions of
Governmental Accounting Statements No. 61, The Financial Reporting Entity. The City is the primary
government unit based on the foundation of a separately elected governing board that is elected by the
citizens in a general public election. Component units are legally separate organizations for which the
elected officials of the primary government are financially accountable. The City is financially accountable
if it appoints a voting majority of the organization’s governing body and: 1) It is able to impose its will on
that organization, or 2) There is a potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or
impose specific financial burdens on, the primary government.

As of June 30, 2016, the City did not include component units, because as of February 1, 2012, the
Community Development Agency was dissolved through State Assembly Bill 1X 26, which dissolved
redevelopment agencies throughout the State of California. The activity of the former Community
Development Agency was reported in the City’s financial statements for the shortened period of July 1,
2012 through January 31, 2012. Subsequent to that, all remaining assets were transferred to the Successor
Agency of the former Community Development Agency. The Successor Agency is reported in the City’s
financial statements as a fiduciary private-purpose trust fund.

The accounts of the City are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is considered a separate
accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing
accounts that comprise its assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources,
fund equity, revenues, and expenditures or expenses as appropriate. Government resources are allocated
to and accounted for in individual funds based upon the purpose for which they are to be spent and the
means by which spending activities are controlled.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The City Government-Wide Financial Statements include a Statement of Net Position and a Statement of
Activities and Changes in Net Position. These statements present summaries of governmental and
business-type activities for the City, the primary government, accompanied by a total column. Fiduciary
activities of the City are not included in these statements.
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City of Menlo Park
Notes to Basic Financial Statements, Continued
For the year ended June 30, 2016

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued
A. Reporting Entity, Continued

These Government-Wide Financial Statements are presented on an “economic resources” measurement focus
and the accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, all of the City’s assets, deferred outflows of resources,
liabilities (including capital assets and related infrastructure assets and long-term liabilities), and deferred
inflows of resources are included in the accompanying Statement of Net Position. The Statement of
Activities presents changes in net position.

Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized in the period in which they are earned
while expenses are recognized in the period in which the liability is incurred.

Certain types of transactions are reported as program revenues for the City in three categories:

> Charges for services
> Operating grants and contributions
> Capital grants and contributions

Certain eliminations have been made as prescribed by GASB Statement No. 34 in regards to interfund
activities, payables and receivables. All internal balances in the Statement of Net Position have been
eliminated except those representing balances between the governmental activities and the business-type
activities, which are presented as internal balances and eliminated in the total primary government
column. However, those transactions between governmental and business-type activities have not been
eliminated. The following interfund activities have been eliminated:

> Due to/from other funds
> Advances to/from other funds
> Transfers in/out

The City applies all applicable GASB pronouncements (including all NCGA Statements and
Interpretations currently in effect) under Governmental Accounting Statements No. 62, Codification of
Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA
Pronouncements.

B. Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus

Governmental Fund Financial Statements

Governmental Fund Financial Statements include a Balance Sheet and a Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances for all major governmental funds and non-major funds
aggregated. An accompanying schedule is presented to reconcile and explain the differences in net
position as presented in these statements to the net position presented in the government-wide
financial statements. The City has presented the following major funds:
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City of Menlo Park
Notes to Basic Financial Statements, Continued
For the year ended June 30, 2016

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued
B. Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus, Continued

General Fund - Accounts for all revenues and expenditures necessary to carry out basic governmental
activities of the City that are not accounted for through other funds. For the City, the General Fund
includes such activities as police, planning, engineering, public works operations and maintenance, library,
recreational programs and legal and administrative services.

Below Market Rate Housing Fund - Utilized to account for fees collected from developers of 10 or more
residential units, which are used to develop below market rate housing units through down payment
assistance loans. In addition, it is utilized to account for fees collected from commercial and industrial
developers, which are used to expand the stock of low and moderate income houses for people who work
in the City.

Housing Special Revenue Fund - Accounts for loans transferred to the City when the former Community
Development Agency was dissolved. Prior to the Agency’s dissolution, the Agency used tax increment
revenue restricted for low and moderate income housing to make the loans which were subsequently
transferred to the City. This fund’s only activities are current revenues and expenditures resulting from
servicing of these loans.

Transportation Impact Fees Fund - Accounts for fees paid by developers of certain residential, commercial,
and industrial properties and projects funded by those fees to mitigate traffic problems resulting either
directly or indirectly from the development.

General Capital Improvement Project Fund - Utilizes General Fund transfers to provide adequate funding
for the maintenance of the City’s existing infrastructure and other non-recurring initiatives.

All governmental funds are accounted for on a spending or “current financial resources” measurement focus
and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, only current assets and current liabilities are
included on the Balance Sheet. The Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
present increases (revenue and other financing sources) and decreases (expenditures and other financing
uses) in net current position. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized in
the accounting period in which they become both measurable and available to finance expenditures of the
current period.

Revenues are recorded when received in cash, except those revenues subject to accrual (generally 60 days
after year-end) are recognized when due. The primary revenue sources, which have been treated as
susceptible to accrual by the City, are property tax, sales tax, intergovernmental revenues and other taxes.
Expenditures are recorded in the accounting period in which the related fund liability is incurred.

Unearned revenues arise when the government receives resources before it has a legal claim to them, as
when grant monies are received prior to incurring qualifying expenditures. In subsequent periods when
both revenue recognition criteria are met or when the government has a legal claim to the resources, the
deferred revenue is removed from the balance sheet and revenue is recognized.
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City of Menlo Park
Notes to Basic Financial Statements, Continued
For the year ended June 30, 2016

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued
B. Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus, Continued

The Reconciliation of the Fund Financial Statements to the Government-Wide Financial Statements is
provided to explain the differences created by the integrated approach of GASB Statement No. 34.

Proprietary Fund Financial Statements

Proprietary fund financial statements include a Statement of Net Position, a Statement of Revenues,
Expenses and Change in Net Position, and a Statement of Cash Flows for all proprietary funds.

Proprietary funds are accounted for using the “economic resources” measurement focus and the accrual basis
of accounting. Accordingly, all assets and liabilities (whether current or noncurrent) are included in the
Statement of Net Position. The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position presents
increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in total net position. Under the accrual basis of accounting,
revenues are recognized in the period in which they are earned while expenses are recognized in the
period in which the liability is incurred.

Operating revenues in the proprietary funds are those revenues that are generated from the primary
operations of the fund. All other revenues are reported as non-operating revenues. Operating expenses are
those expenses that are essential to the primary operations of the fund. All other expenses are reported as
non-operating expenses.

There are two types of proprietary funds: enterprise funds and internal service funds. The City accounts
for the activities of the Menlo Park Municipal Water District as its only enterprise fund. As such, the fund
comprises the only business-type activities reported in the City-wide financial statements. Activities of the
City’s Workers” Compensation, General Liability, Retiree Medical Benefit, Information Technology, and
Vehicle Replacement programs are accounted for in five separate internal service funds. These activities
are included in the City-wide financial statements as governmental activities.

Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements

Fiduciary fund financial statements include a Statement of Fiduciary Net Position. The City’s fiduciary
funds represent agency funds, which are custodial in nature and do not involve measurement of results of
operations. The agency funds are accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting. Agency funds are
used to account for Refundable Deposits, Cash Bonds Payable and the Payroll Revolving.

The City also maintains fiduciary funds (private-purpose trust funds) for the Successor Agency to the

former Community Development Agency. Private-purpose trust funds include a Statement of Net Position
and a Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position.
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City of Menlo Park
Notes to Basic Financial Statements, Continued
For the year ended June 30, 2016

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued
C. Cash and Investments

The City pools cash resources from all funds in order to facilitate the management of cash. The balance in
the pooled cash account is available to meet current operating requirements. Cash in excess of current
requirements is invested in various interest-bearing accounts and other investments for varying terms.

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 40, Deposit and Investment Disclosures (Amendment of GASB No. 3),
certain disclosure requirements for Deposits and Investment Risks were made in the following areas:

> Interest Rate Risk
» Credit Risk
e Overall
e Custodial Credit Risk
e Concentrations of Credit Risk

In addition, other disclosures are specified including the use of certain methods to present deposits and
investments, highly sensitive investments, credit quality at year-end and other disclosures.

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 31, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain Investments and
for External Investment Pools, highly liquid market investments with maturities of one year or less at the
time of purchase are stated at amortized cost. All other investments are stated at fair value. Market value
is used as fair value for those securities for which market quotations are readily available.

The City participates in an investment pool managed by the State of California titled Local Agency
Investment Fund (LAIF) which has invested a portion of the pooled funds in Structured Notes and Asset-
Backed Securities. LAIF’s investments are subject to credit risk with the full faith and credit of the State of
California collateralizing these investments. In addition, these Structured Notes and Asset-Backed
Securities are subject to market risk as to the changes in interest rates.

Cash equivalents are considered amounts in demand deposits and short-term investments with a maturity
date within three months of the date acquired by the City and are presented as “Cash and Investments” in
the accompanying Basic Financial Statements.

D. Capital Assets

Capital assets are valued at historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual historical cost was not
available. Donated capital assets are valued at their estimated fair value on the date donated. City
policy has set the capitalization threshold for reporting capital assets at $5,000. Depreciation is
recorded on a straight-line basis over estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Buildings 40 years
Other improvements 40 years
Equipment 3-15 years
Infrastructure 15-50 years
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued
D. Capital Assets, continued

In June 1999, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No. 34 which
requires the inclusion of infrastructure capital assets in local governments’ basic financial statements. In
accordance with GASB Statement No. 34, the City has included all infrastructure into the current Basic
Financial Statements.

The City defines infrastructure as the basic physical assets that allow the City to function. The assets
include streets, sewer, and park lands. Each major infrastructure system can be divided into subsystems.
For example, the street system can be subdivided into pavement, curb and gutters, sidewalks, medians,
streetlights, landscaping and land. These subsystems were not delineated in the basic financial statements.
The appropriate operating department maintains information regarding the subsystems.

Interest accrued during capital assets construction, if any, is capitalized for the business-type and
proprietary funds as part of the asset cost.

For all infrastructure systems, the City elected to use the Basic Approach as defined by GASB Statement
No. 34 for infrastructure reporting. The City commissioned an appraisal of City owned infrastructure and
property as of June 30, 2002. This appraisal determined the original cost, which is defined as the actual
cost to acquire new property in accordance with market prices at the time of first construction/acquisition.
Original costs were developed in one of three ways: (1) historical records; (2) standard unit costs
appropriate for the construction/acquisition date; or (3) present cost indexed by a reciprocal factor of the
price increase from the construction/acquisition date to the current date. The accumulated depreciation,
defined as the total depreciation from the date of construction/acquisition to the current date on a straight
line, unrecovered cost method was computed using industry accepted life expectancies for each
infrastructure subsystem. The book value was then computed by deducting the accumulated depreciation
from the original cost.

E. Long-Term Obligations
In the Government-Wide Financial Statements, the long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the
appropriate funds. The Fund Financial Statements do not present long-term debt but are shown in the
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to the Government-Wide Statement of Net Assets.
F. Net Position and Fund Equity
In the Government-Wide Financial Statements, net position is classified in the following categories:
Net Investment in Capital Assets - This amount consists of capital assets net of accumulated depreciation

and reduced by outstanding debt that attributed to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of the
assets.

Restricted- This amount is restricted by external creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations
of other governments.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued

F. Net Position and Fund Equity, continued

Unrestricted— This amount is all net assets that do not meet the definition of “invested in capital assets,
net of related debt” or “restricted.”

When an expense is incurred for purposes for which both the restricted and unrestricted portions of net
position are available, the City’s policy is to apply restricted portion of net position first.

Fund Financial Statements

In the Fund Financial Statements, fund balances are in classifications that comprise a hierarchy based
primarily on the extent to which a government is bound to observe constraints imposed upon the use of
resources reported in the governmental funds. Fund balances are classified in the following categories:

Nonspendable - Items that cannot be spent because they are not in spendable form, such as prepaid
items and inventories, items that are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact, such as
principal of an endowment or revolving loan funds.

Restricted - Restricted fund balances encompass the portion of net fund resources subject to externally
enforceable legal restrictions. This includes externally imposed restrictions by creditors, such as
through debt covenants, grantors, contributors, laws or regulations of other governments, as well as
restrictions imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Committed - Committed fund balances encompass the portion of net fund resources, the use of which is
constrained by limitations that the government imposes upon itself at its highest level of decision
making, normally the governing body through resolutions, etc., and that remain binding unless
removed in the same manner. The City Council is considered the highest authority for the City.

Assigned - Assigned fund balances encompass the portion of net fund resources reflecting the
government’s intended use of resources. Assignment of resources can be done by the highest level of
decision making or by a committee or official designated for the purpose. The City Council has given
the authorization to the City Manager to assign any net fund resources.

Unassigned - This category is for any balances that have no restrictions placed upon them.

In October 2014, the City Council updated the fund balance policy for net position and fund equity. Due
to the nature of the restrictions of Nonspendable and Restricted fund balances, the policy focuses on
financial reporting of unrestricted fund balance, or the last three categories listed above. As the highest
level of decision-making authority, City Council may commit fund balances for specific purposes pursuant
to constraints imposed by formal actions taken, such as an ordinance or resolution. The policy delegates
the authority to assign fund balance amounts to be used for specific purposes to the City Manager for the
purpose of reporting these amounts in the annual financial statements. Restricted fund balances will be
expended before unrestricted fund balances when expenditures are incurred for purposes for which both
are available. Unrestricted fund balances will be exhausted in the order of assigned, unassigned and
committed when expenditures are incurred for which any of these fund balances are available.
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1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued

G. Use of Estimates

L

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and
disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Compensated Absences

City employees have vested interests in varying levels of vacation, sick leave, and compensatory time. If
compensated absences are not used by the employee during the term of employment, compensation is
payable to the employee at the time of retirement or termination. Such compensation is calculated at the
employees’ then prevalent rate at the time of retirement or termination. Whereas vacation and
compensatory time is compensated at 100% of accumulated hours, sick leave is accrued and compensated
only at retirement at 15% of accumulated hours. On termination, only accrued vacation and compensatory
time is compensated, not sick leave. The liabilities for compensated absences of the governmental activities
are recorded in the Government-Wide Financial Statements. However, the General Fund is liable for 90%
of the total city-wide compensated absence liability. The liabilities of compensated absences of proprietary
funds are recorded as liabilities in the appropriate proprietary fund and in the business-type activities in
the Government-Wide Financial Statements. The liabilities of compensated absences in the governmental
funds are reported in those funds only if there is an unused reimbursable leave still outstanding following
an employee’s resignation or retirement as of June 30, 2016.

A recap of the maximum accruals by bargaining unit is as follows:

Bargaining Unit Vacation Sick Leave
SEIU 336 hours 1,440 hours
AFSCME 336 hours 1,440 hours
POA 424 hours 1,500 hours
PSA 1,400 hours combined

Unrepresented Management 1,200 hours combined

Property Taxes

Under California law, property taxes are assessed and collected by the counties up to 1% of assessed value,
plus other increases approved by the voters. The property taxes go into a pool, and are then allocated to
the cities based on complex formulas. Accordingly, the City accrues only those taxes which are receivable
from the County of San Mateo (County) within sixty days after year-end.

Lien Date March 1

Levy Date July 1

Due Date November 1 and February 1
Collection December 10 and April 10
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1.

L

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued
Property Taxes, continued

Property taxes levied are recorded as revenue when received, in the fiscal year of levy, because of the
adoption of the “alternate method of property tax distribution,” known as the Teeter Plan, by the City and
the County. The Teeter Plan authorizes the Auditor/Controller of the County to allocate 100% of the
secured property taxes billed, but not yet paid.

J. Pension

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability and deferred outflows/inflows of resources related to
pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the City’s California
Public Employees” Retirement System (CalPERS) plans (Plans) and additions to/deductions from the
Plans’ fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by CalPERS.
For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when
due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

Interfund Balances/Internal Balances

Advances to and advances from other funds represent interfund loans in the fund financial statements.
Advances between funds are offset by a fund balance reservation or by unearned revenue in the applicable
governmental funds to indicate that they are not available financial resources. Any unpaid interest due to
lack of funds in the borrowing fund increases the principal owed and is reported in the lending fund as
unearned revenue. All other outstanding balances between funds are reported as due to and due from
other funds. These are generally repaid within the following fiscal year. Any residual balances
outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the
government-wide financial statements as “internal balances.”

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of net position or balance sheet will sometimes report a separate section
for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of
resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be
recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/ expenditure) until then. The government reports two
items in this category, deferred employer pension contributions and amounts resulting from the
differences between the City’s contribution and the City’s proportionate share of the contribution.
Employer pension contributions made during period between the measurement date and the report date
are deferred and reflected as a reduction in the net pension liability in the subsequent fiscal year.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position or balance sheet will sometimes report a separate
section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of
resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be
recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued
L. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, continued

The government reports three items in this category, unavailable revenue and amounts related to changes
in the City’s net pension liability that are deferred and amortized over a stated period. Unavailable
revenue arises only under a modified accrual basis of accounting and accordingly is reported only in the
governmental funds balance sheet. The governmental funds report unavailable revenues from one source:
interest receivable relating to loans. These amounts are deferred and will be recognized as an inflow of
resources in the period that the amounts become available. In-lieu agreements payments are payments
received by the City relating to future periods which have been deferred and will be recognized as an
inflow of resources in future periods. Certain changes in the City’s net pension liability are required to be
deferred and reflected in pension expense over a closed amortization period. The City reported the
unamortized net difference between the projected and actual earnings on pension plans as deferred
inflows of resources in the government-wide and enterprise fund’s statements of net position.

M. New Pronouncements

For the fiscal year ending June 30, 2016, the City has implemented the following Governmental Accounts
Standards Board (GASB) Statement:

> GASB Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application- This Statement addresses
accounting and financial reporting issues related to fair value measurements. The definition of fair
value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. This Statement provides
guidance for determining a fair value measurement for financial reporting purposes. This
Statement also provides guidance for applying fair value to certain investments and disclosures
related to all fair value measurements. There was no impact on beginning net position as part of
implementation of this accounting standard.

> GASB Statement No. 73, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions and Related Assets That Are
Not within the Scope of GASB Statement 68, and Amendments to Certain Provisions of GASB Statements
67 and 68- The objective of this Statement is to improve the usefulness of information about
pensions included in the general purpose external financial reports of state and local governments
for making decisions and assessing accountability. This Statement results from a comprehensive
review of the effectiveness of existing standards of accounting and financial reporting for all
postemployment benefits with regard to providing decision-useful information, supporting
assessments of accountability and interperiod equity, and creating additional transparency. There
was no impact on beginning net position as part of implementation of this accounting standard.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued
M. New Pronouncements, continued

» GASB Statement No. 76,The Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles for State and Local
Governments— The objective of this Statement is to identify —in the context of the current
governmental financial reporting environment—the hierarchy of generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP). The “GAAP hierarchy” consists of the sources of accounting principles used to
prepare financial statements of state and local governmental entities in conformity with GAAP and
the framework for selecting those principles. This Statement reduces the GAAP hierarchy to two
categories of authoritative GAAP and addresses the use of authoritative and nonauthoritative
literature in the event that the accounting treatment for a transaction or other event is not specified
within a source of authoritative GAAP. There was no impact on beginning net position as part of
implementation of this accounting standard

> GASB Statement No. 79, Certain External Investment Pools and Pool Participants - This Statement
addresses accounting and financial reporting for certain external investment pools and pool
participants. Specifically, it establishes criteria for an external investment pool to qualify for making
the election to measure all of its investments at amortized cost for financial reporting purposes. An
external investment pool qualifies for that reporting if it meets all of the applicable criteria
established in this Statement. The specific criteria address (1) how the external investment pool
transacts with participants; (2) requirements for portfolio maturity, quality, diversification, and
liquidity; and (3) calculation and requirements of a shadow price. Significant noncompliance
prevents the external investment pool from measuring all of its investments at amortized cost for
financial reporting purposes. Professional judgment is required to determine if instances of
noncompliance with the criteria established by this Statement during the reporting period,
individually or in the aggregate, were significant. There was no impact on beginning net position as
part of implementation of this accounting standard.

> GASB Statement No. 82, Pension Issues - An Amendment of GASB Statement No. 67, No. 68, and No. 73
- This Statement addresses certain issues that had been raised with respect to Statements No. 67,
Financial Reporting for Pension Plans, No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions, and No.
73, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions and Related Assets That Are Not within the Scope of
GASB Statement 68, and Amendments to Certain Provisions of GASB 67 and 68. Specifically, this
Statement addresses issued regarding (1) the presentation of payroll-related measures in the
required supplementary information, (2) the selection of assumptions and the treatment of
deviations from the guidance in an Actuarial Standard of Practice for financial reporting purposes,
and (3) the classification of payments made by employers to satisfy employee (plan member)
contribution requirements. The City updated covered employee payroll information in the required
supplementary information as part of implementation of this accounting standard.
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2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS
The City maintains a cash and investment pool for all funds. Certain restricted funds, which are held and
invested by independent outside custodians through contractual agreements, are not pooled. These
restricted funds are reported as cash with fiscal agents.

A. Summary of Cash and Investments

The following is a summary of pooled cash and investments at June 30, 2016:

Government-Wide Statement of Net Position Fund Financials
Fiduciary Funds
Governmental  Business-Type Statement of
Activities Activities Total Net Position Total
Cash and Investments $ 93,165,535 $ 12,109,103 $ 105,274,638 $ 9,120,845 $ 114,395,483

Cash and investments as of June 30, 2016 consist of the following:

Cash on hand $ 7,990
Deposits with financial institution 1,788,303

Total cash on hand and deposits 1,796,293
Local Agency Investment funds 51,013,797
Securities of U.S. Government 37,762,271
Corporate bonds 23,823,122
Total investments 112,599,190

Total cash and investments $ 114,395,483

As of June 30, 2016, the City had the following investments and maturities:

Investment Maturities (in years)

Investment Type Fair Value 1 year or less 1-2 years 2-3 years 3-4 years 4-5 years
Securities of U.S. Government
Government bonds $ 12,536,022 $ 6,514,342 $ 6,021,680 $ - % -
Government Agencies 25,142,389 3,025,229 15,480,602 6,636,558 -
Goevrnment Mortgage backed 83,860 83,860
Local Agency Investments Funds 51,013,797 51,013,797 - -
Corporate bonds 23,823,122 16,056,504 7,766,618 - -
Total $ 112,599,190 $ 76,693,732 $ 29,268,900 $ 6,636,558 $ - % -
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2.

B.

C.

CASH AND INVESTMENTS, continued
Deposits

At June 30, 2016, the carrying amount of the City’s deposits was $1,788,303 and the bank balances were
$2,132,739. The total bank balance was covered by federal depository insurance or by collateral held by the
City’s agent in the City’s name.

All pooled certificates of deposit and bank balances are entirely insured or collateralized. The California
Government Code requires California banks and savings and loan associations to secure an agency’s
deposits by pledging government securities as collateral. The fair value of the pledged securities must
equal at least 110% of an agency’s deposits. California law also allows financial institutions to secure local
agency deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 150% of a local agency’s
deposits. The City may waive collateral requirements for deposits which are fully insured up to $250,000
by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC).

Authorized Investments

The City will not invest in securities maturing more than five years from the date of purchase, unless the
Council has by resolution granted authority to make such an investment at least three months prior to the
date of investment.

The investments made by the City Treasurer are limited to those allowable under State statutes as
incorporated into the City’s Investment Policy, which is adopted annually and is more conservative than
that allowed by State statute.

Under provisions of this policy, the City is authorized to invest in the following types of investments:

Certificates of Deposit

Bankers Acceptances

Commercial Papers

Repurchase Agreements

Government Agency Securities

Treasury Bills and Notes

Medium Term Notes

Money Market Funds

State of California Local Agency Investment Fund

YV VV VYV V V V V V

GABSB Statement No. 31, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain Investments and for External Investment
Pools, requires that the City’s investments be carried at fair value instead of cost. Accordingly, the City
adjusts the carrying value of its investments to reflect their fair value at each fiscal year-end, and the effects
of these adjustments are included in income for that fiscal year. Changes in fair value in the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2016 from the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, amounted to an increase of $242,732.
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2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS, Continued

C. Authorized Investments, continued
Investment income earned on pooled cash and investments (including realized and unrealized gains and
losses) is allocated monthly to the various funds based on monthly cash balances. Investment income from
cash and investments with fiscal agents is credited directly to the related funds.

External Investment Pool

The City’s investments with LAIF at June 30, 2016, included a small portion of the pooled funds invested in
Structured Notes and Asset-Backed Securities. These investments may include the following;:

Structured Notes — debt securities (other than asset-back securities) whose cash flow characteristics (coupon
rate, redemption amount, or stated maturity) depend upon one or more indices and/or that have
embedded forwards or options.

Asset-Backed Securities — generally mortgage-backed securities which entitle their purchasers to receive a
share of the cash flows from a pool of assets such as principal and interest repayments from a pool of
mortgages (such as CMO’s) or credit card receivables.

As of June 30, 2016, the City had $ 51,013,797 invested in LAIF, which had invested 2.81% of the pool
investment funds in Structured Notes and Asset-Back Securities. LAIF determines fair value of its investment
portfolio based on market quotations for those securities where market quotations are readily available and
based on amortized cost or best estimate for those securities where fair value is not readily available. The City
valued its investments in LAIF as of June 30, 2016, by multiplying its account balance with LAIF times a fair
value factor determined by LAIF. This fair value factor was determined by dividing all LAIF participants’
total aggregate amortized cost by total aggregate fair value. Accordingly, as of June 30, 2016, the City’s
investment in LAIF at fair value amounted to $ 51,013,797 using a LAIF fair value factor of 1.000621222.

Successor Agency Pooled Cash and Investments
Cash and investments consisted of $8,857,951 at June 30, 2016. The Agency pools cash from all sources and
all funds with the City so that it can be invested at the maximum yield, consistent with safety and liquidity,
while individual funds can make expenditures at any time.

D. Risks Disclosures
Interest Rate Risk: As a means of limiting its exposure to fair value losses arising from rising interest rates,
the City’s investment policy provides that final maturities of securities cannot exceed five years. Specific

maturities of investments depend on liquidity needs. At June 30, 2016, the City’s pooled cash and
investments had the following maturities:
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2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS, Continued

D. Risks Disclosures, Continued

Maturity Percentage of
Investment
Less than one year 68%
One to two years 26%
Two to three years 6%
Three to four years 0%

Credit Risk: It is the City’s policy that commercial paper have a rating of “A-1" or higher by a nationally
recognized statistical rating organization (NRSRO) and with a maturity date not exceeding 270 days from
the date of purchase. Medium-term notes, with a final maturity not exceeding four years from the date of
purchase, must have a rating of AA or the equivalent by a NRSRO. Medium-term notes with a final
maturity exceeding four years from the date of purchase shall be rated at least AAA or the equivalent by a
NRSRO at the time of purchase. According to the City’s investment policy, the aggregate investment in
medium-term notes will not exceed 30% of the City’s total portfolio. The Local Agency Investment Fund
(LAIF), administered by the State of California, has a separate investment policy, governed by Government
Code Sections 16480-16481.2, that provides credit standards for its investments.

Ratings

Issuer Type Standard & Poor's  Moody's
FNMA USS. Instrumentality = AA+ Aaa
FHLMC U.S. Instrumentality AA+ Aaa
U.S. Treasury T-Note AA+ Aaa
Berkshire Hathaway Corporate bond AA Aa2
ING Funding Commercial Paper ~ A-1 P-1
IBM Corp Corporate bond AA- Aa3
FHLB U.S. Instrumentality AA+ Aaa
Pfizer Inc Corporate bond AA Al
GE Capital Corporate bond AA+ Al
Barclays US Funding Commercial Paper ~ A-1 P-1
US Bancorp Corporate bond A+ Al
Well Fargo Corporate bond A+ A2
3M Company Corporate bond AA- Aa2
Apple Inc Corporate bond AA+ Aal
FFCB USS. Instrumentality AA+ Aaa
Google Inc Corporate bond AA Aa2
Toyota Motor Credit Corporate bond AA- Aa3
Microsoft Corporate bond AAA Aaa
PEPSICO Inc Corporate bond A- Al

Custodial Credit Risk: For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of
the counter party, the City will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities
that are in the possession of an outside party. All securities, with the exception of the money market funds
and LAIF, are held by a third-party custodian (Union Bank of California Trust Division). Union Bank is a
registered member of the Federal Reserve Bank. The securities held by Union Bank are in street name, and
an account number assigned to the City identifies ownership.
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2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS, Continued
E. Investment Valuation

Investments (except for money market accounts, time deposits, and commercial paper) are measured at fair
value on a recurring basis. Recurring fair value measurements are those that Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) Statements require or permit in the statement of net position at the end of each
reporting period. Fair value measurements are categorized based on the valuation inputs used to measure
an asset’s fair value: Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs
are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs. Investment fair
value measurements at June 30, 2016 are described on the following page.

Investments included in restricted cash and investments included money market accounts and guaranteed
investment contracts are not subject to fair value measurement.

Fair Value Measurement Using

Investment Type Fair Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Government bonds $ 12,536,022 $ 12,536,022 $ - $ -
Government agencies 25,142,389 - 25,142,389
Government mortgage backed 83,860 - 83,860
Corporate bonds 23,823,122 23,823,122
Local Agency Investment Fund 51,013,797 - 51,013,797 -
Total investments subject to fair value 112,599,190 $ 12,536,022 $ 100,063,168 $ -

Government bonds categorized as Level 1 are valued based on prices quoted in active markets for those
securities. Government agencies and mortgage backed securities categorized as Level 2 are valued based on
quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets, quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in
markets that are not active and model-based valuations for which all significant assumptions are observable or
can be corroborated by observable market data.

The City’s fair value for its investment in the State of California Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) is based
on the fair market value factors provided by LAIF that are calculated based on the total fair market value of
the pool.

LAIF includes investments categorized as Level 1 such as United States Treasury securities, Federal Agency
securities, and supranational debentures that are valued based on prices quoted in active markets and
investments categorized as Level 2 such as negotiable certificates of deposit and bank notes that are based on
market corroborated pricing utilizing inputs such as yield curves and indices that are derived principally from
or corroborated by observable market data by correlation to other means.
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3. RECEIVABLES
A. Accounts Receivable

As of June 30, 2016, summary of accounts receivable is as follows:

Governmental Business-Type
Activties Activities
Accounts receivable $ 3,309,732 $ 876,298
Due from other governments 1,964,003
Total receivables $ 5,273,735 $ 876,298
As of June 30, 2016, accounts receivable consisted of the following;:
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
Taxes:

Occupancy taxes $ 1,668,437 $ - $ 1,668,437
Property taxes 219,320 - 219,320
Utility taxes 179,979 - 179,979
Sales Taxes 1,139,469 - 1,139,469
Total taxes 3,207,205 - 3,207,205
Fines and Forfeitures 125,824 - 125,824
Franchise Fees 260,322 - 260,322
Rental Income 76,074 - 76,074
General Government 120,494 - 120,494
Police 170,815 - 170,815
Public Works 813,109 - 813,109
Water service fees - 876,298 876,298
Community Development 381,367 - 381,367
Recreation Programs 118,525 - 118,525
Total accounts receivable $ 5,273,735 $ 876,298 $ 6,150,033
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3. RECEIVABLES, Continued
B. Notes Receivable
As of June 30, 2016, notes receivable consisted of the following;:

Notes Receivable

Major Funds:
General Fund $ 1,339,847
Below Market Rate Housing 9,089,500
Housing Fund 4,380,928
Total Major Funds 14,810,275

Other Governmental Funds

Community Development Block Grant 585,481
Federal Revenue Sharing Fund 49,545
Total Non-Major funds 635,026
Total notes receivable $ 15,445,301
City Manager Housing

As part of the employment agreement with the City Manager, effective March 2012, the City Council has
authorized a loan evidenced by a note totaling $990,000 in order to assist in the purchase of residential real
estate property. The note is secured by a deed of trust on the property. The note bears an interest rate of
3.5% per annum, or, at the option of the City Manager, he may pay 2% per annum interest only, and 1.5%
per annum would be deferred until the ultimate sale of the property or payment of the loan. The note is
due and payable within 24 months of termination of employment or within 12 months if he no longer
resides in the property. Effective January 1, 2014, City Council reduced the interest rate payable to 3% per
annum and authorized an additional loan of up to $360,000 for remodeling/renovation of his home with
an interest rate of 2.5%. The outstanding balance of the notes at June 30, 2016, was $1,339,847.

Community Development Block Grant

The City administers home improvement loans to seniors and very low income residents using
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funds. The program provides for no or very low interest
loans, which are secured by deeds of trust. Although payments for some loans are amortized over an
established schedule, some loans allow for deferred payment of accrued interest and principal until the
property changes ownership. Repayments received from outstanding loans are used to make additional
housing rehabilitation loans. Outstanding loans at June 30, 2016, were $585,481
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3. RECEIVABLES, Continued

B. Notes Receivable

Housing Fund

With the dissolution of the Menlo Park Community Development Agency (Agency) as of February 1, 2012,
the City has assumed all the loans from the Agency.

The City assumed a loan the Agency made to Peninsula Habitat for Humanity for purchase of two mini-
park lots as sites to develop two single-family houses for very low-income homeowners. Loan repayment
is structured as a zero interest note with a twenty-year term. The outstanding balance at June 30, 2016, was
$9,750.

The City has housing rehabilitation loans to six eligible participants. Loans bear no or very low interest
and are not due until the property changes ownership. The outstanding balance of these loans at June 30,
2016, was $349,022.

Gateway - In June 1987, the Agency issued $8,605,000 of multifamily housing revenue bonds for Menlo
Gateway, Inc., a California nonprofit public benefit corporation, to fund a mortgage loan for paying the
costs of acquisition and rehabilitation of a 130-unit multifamily housing project known as The Gateway,
designed for occupancy by persons eligible for assistance under Section 8 of the United States Housing Act
of 1937. The bonds had interest rates ranging from 5.75% to 8.25%, with payments which were to be made
semi-annually on June 1 and December 1 through 2028. The bonds were payable solely from and were
secured by a pledge of payments and other amounts due to the Menlo Gateway Inc. The bonds did not
constitute a debt or liability of the Agency of the City and, therefore, were not reflected in the financial
statements. In addition, the City did not act in any capacity in making debt service payments.

On October 28, 2002, the Agency made a loan to Menlo Gateway, Inc. to refinance Menlo Gateway’s debt in
the amount of $4,022,157. The loan had a compounded interest rate of 3% per annum. The payment was
secured by the Deed of Trust with the final payment due on February 15, 2043. During the year ended June
30, 2016, Menlo Gateway Inc. sold a portion of the property. Therefore, on December 31, 2015, the
outstanding loan was split between Menlo Gateway and Sequoia Belle Haven for an amount of $3,221,558
and $1,892,026 respectively and new promissory notes were signed with the same terms as were on the
original loan agreement. As of June 30, 2016, the total outstanding loan was $4,022,157 with accrued
interest thereon for $1,166,098.

Below Market Rate Housing

The City uses Below Market Rate Housing Reserve funds to provide residents and employees who work in
Menlo Park with second mortgage loans to purchase their first home in Menlo Park. These “PAL” loans
are amortized over 30 years, and are currently restricted to purchasers of Below Market Rate Housing
units, which are income and price restricted housing units produced through the City’s Below Market Rate
Housing program.

Outstanding loans at June 30, 2016, were $9,089,500.
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3. RECEIVABLES, Continued
B. Notes Receivable

Emergency Repair Loan (ERL)

The Emergency Repair Loan (ERL) Program is designed to assist lower income households with minor
emergency repairs to their home. The revolving loan program was originally funded by a Federal Revenue
Sharing Grant. The maximum loan amount is $10,000 at 3% interest per annum, with a loan term of either
5,10, or 15 years. Outstanding loans at June 30, 2016, were $49,545.

4. CAPITAL ASSETS

The following is a summary of capital assets for governmental activities:

Balance
June 30, 2015 Balance
(Restated) Additions Retirements Reclassifications June 30, 2016

Governmental Activities:

Capital assets, not being depreciated/amortized:

Land $ 199,998,884 $ - 8 - % - % 199,998,884
Land improvements 32,921,636 - - - 32,921,636
Construction in progress 2,362,145 2,528,510 (217,993) (665,574) 4,007,088

Total capital assets,
not being depreciated 235,282,665 2,528,510 (217,993) (665,574) 236,927,608

Capital assets, being depreciated/amortized:

Buildings 77,547,938 1,207,816 - 152,836 78,908,590
Shared use facilities 2,600,000 - 2,600,000
Equipment 6,818,988 537,631 (378,509) 6,978,110
Other improvements 17,615,799 249,441 17,865,240
Infrastructure 115,318,426 4,532,469 (1,187,321) 512,738 119,176,312

Total capital assets,
being depreciated/amortized 219,901,151 6,527,357 (1,565,830) 665,574 225,528,252

Less accumulated depreciation/amortization for:

Buildings (19,891,226) (1,596,482) - - (21,487,708)
Shared use facilities (572,000) (104,000) - - (676,000)
Equipment (5,074,374) (429,036) 378,509 - (5,124,901)
Other improvements (6,960,751) (882,507) - - (7,843,258)
Infrastructure (61,035,853) (3,175,824) 814,569 - (63,397,108)
Total accumulated depreciation (93,534,204) (6,187,849) 1,193,078 - (98,528,975)
Total capital assets,
being depreciated/amortized, net 126,366,947 339,508 (372,752) 665,574 126,999,277
Governmental activities
capital assets, net $ 361,649,612 $ 2,868,018 $ (590,745)  $ -3 363,926,385
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4. CAPITAL ASSETS, Continued

Depreciation expense was charged to the various governmental activities as follows:

General government $ 652,353
Public safety 139,699
Public works 3,283,655
Culture and recreation 2,112,142
Total depreciation expense - governmental departments $ 6,187,849
The following is a summary of capital assets for business-type activities:
Balance Balance
June 30, 2015 Additions Retirements Reclassification June 30, 2016
Business Activities:
Capital assets, not being depreciated /amortized:
Land $ 1,066,454 $ - % - % - 1,066,454
Construction in progress 6,607,112 284,724 (44,966) (4,589,914) 2,256,956
Total capital assets,
not being depreciated 7,673,566 284,724 (44,966) (4,589,914) 3,323,410
Capital assets, being depreciated/amortized:
Buildings 4,159,460 513,361 - 3,151,164 7,823,985
Equipment 494,276 30,842 - 525,118
Infrastructure 8,371,534 301,598 - 1,438,750 10,111,882
Total capital assets,
being depreciated/amortized 13,025,270 845,801 - 4,589,914 18,460,985
Less accumulated depreciation/amortization for:
Buildings (1,796,289) (83,189) - - (1,879,478)
Equipment (443,950) (9,442) - - (453,392)
Infrastructure (4,468,524) (104,496) - - (4,573,020)
Total accumulated depreciation (6,708,763) (197,127) - (6,905,890)
Total capital assets,
being depreciated/amortized, net 6,316,507 648,674 - 4,589,914 11,555,095
Business activities
capital assets, net $ 13,990,073 % 933,398 % (44,966) $ - 14,878,505

Depreciation expense for all proprietary funds was $197,127 for the year ended June 30, 2016, which

was recorded in the City’s water business-type activity.
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5. UNEARNED REVENUE

Unearned revenues represent amounts for which revenues have not been earned. At June 30, 2016,

unearned revenues were as follows:

Governmental
Activities
Recreation summer programs $ 497,744
Library donations 59,775
Percent for art deferred 8,647
Total $ 566,166

LONG-TERM DEBT

. Long-Term Obligations

Summary of changes in long-term debt transactions for the year ended June 30, 2016 was as follows:

Balance Balance Due within Due in more
July 1 2055 Additions Deletions June 30, 2016 one year than one year

1996 General Obligation

Refunding Bonds $ 435,000 $ - $ (435,000)  $ - $ $
2009A General Obligation

Bonds 830,000 (65,000) 765,000 70,000 695,000
2009B General Obligation

Bonds 9,360,000 9,360,000 9,360,000
Premium on 2009 General

Obligation Bonds 59,977 (2499) 57,478 57,478
2012 General Obligation

Refunding Bonds 8,775,000 (555,000) 8,220,000 355,000 7,865,000
Discount on 2012 General

Obligation Bonds (60,824) 3,686 (57,138) (57,138)
Total governmental activities $ 03953 _$ - §  (10538B) § 1B345340 $ 425000 _$ 17920340

Balance Balance Due within Due in more
July 1, 2055 Additions Deletions June 30, 2016 one year than one year

2006 Las Pulgas Project

Tax Allocation Bonds $ 57620000 $ - $ (57,620000) $ - 3 $
Discount on 2006 Las Pulgas

Project Tax Allocation Bonds (215,552) 215,552
2015 Las Pulgas Project

Tax Allocation Bonds 51,505,000 51,505,000 3,115,000 48,390,000
Premium on 2055 Las Pulgas

Project Tax Allocation Bonds 8,806,896 (314,532 8,492,364 8,492,364
Total fiduciary activities $ 122,727 867 60311896 $ (57.718980) $ 59997364 $ 315000 _$ 56882364
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6. LONG-TERM DEBT, Continued
A. Long-Term Obligations, Continued

1996 General Obligation Refunding Bonds

During fiscal year 1995-96, the City issued $4,630,000 of 1996 General Obligation Refunding Bonds to fund
certain library improvement projects. The bonds bear interest rates between 3.75% and 5.0% annually
between June 30, 2000 and August 1, 2016. The bonds mature on August 1 of each year from 1996 to 2016
in amounts ranging from $40,000 to $430,000. Interest is payable semi-annually on February 1 and August
1 of each year. The bonds are paid from special assessments to property owners within the City.

Outstanding bonds maturing on or before August 1, 2008, are subject to optional redemption prior to
maturity at the option of the City, in whole or in part, at any time, from any available source of funds
thereof at redemption prices of 100 percent of the principal amount, plus accrued interest to the date fixed
for redemption. During the year ended June 30, 2016, the bonds were fully paid off.

2009 General Obligation Bonds

On July 1, 2009, the City issued a second series of the “Measure T” General Obligation bonds in the amount
of $10,440,000. The financing was used to fund new recreation facilities, specifically, a new gymnasium
and new gymnastic center on the Burgess campus. The decision to include Build America Bonds (BABs) in
the financing allowed the City to generate an additional $1,049,000 over the tax exempt bonds. The overall
“total issuance cost” for the series was 4.638%.

The Series A (Tax Exempt) Bonds totaled $1,080,000; the (serial) bonds bear an annual interest of 5% and
mature annually from 2010 to 2024 on August 1 in amounts ranging from $10,000 to $100,000.

The Series B (Taxable Build America) Bonds totaled $9,360,000; the (term) bonds bear an annual interest at
rates between 6.82% and 7.02% and mature annually from 2025 to 2039 on August 1 in amounts ranging
from $110,000 to $1,355,000.

The 2009 General Obligation Bonds maturing on or before August 1, 2019 are not subject to redemption
prior to their stated maturities. The bonds maturing in each year beginning August 1, 2020, are subject
to redemption prior to maturity, at the option of the City, from any source of available funds, as a
whole or in part on any date on or after August 1, 2019, at a redemption price equal to the principal
amount of the Bonds called, together with interest accrued to the date of redemption. If less than all of
the bonds are called for redemption, the bonds will be redeemed in inverse order of maturities, and if
less than all of the bonds of any given maturity are called for redemption, the portions of such bonds of
a given maturity to be redeemed shall be determined by lot.
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6. LONG-TERM DEBT, Continued
A. Long-Term Obligations, Continued

The annual debt service requirements to maturity for the 2009 General Obligation Bonds outstanding at
June 30, 2016, were as follows:

Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
2017 70,000 691,934 $ 761,934
2018 75,000 688,435 763,435
2019 75,000 684,685 759,685
2020 80,000 680,935 760,935
2021 85,000 676,935 761,935
2022-2026 490,000 3,316,923 3,806,923
2027-2031 620,000 3,150,437 3,770,437
2032-2036 3,550,000 2,730,705 6,280,705
2037-2040 5,080,000 911,547 5,991,547
Total $ 10,125,000 $ 13,532,535 $ 23,657,535

2012 General Obligation Bonds

In January 2012, the City of Menlo Park issued General Obligation Bonds in a par amount of $9,830,000 for
the purpose of refunding at lower interest rates the City’s outstanding Series 2002 General Obligation
Bonds. The bonds bear an interest rate of 3.75% annually between January 2012 and August 1, 2032. The
bonds mature on August 1 of each year starting in 2013 and ending 2032 in amounts ranging from
$180,000 to $640,000. No amount of the bonds are to mature before August 1, 2012. Interest is paid semi-
annually on February 1 and August 1 of each year. The bonds are paid from special assessments to
property owners within the City.

The annual debt service requirements to maturity for the 2012 General Obligation Bonds outstanding at
June 30, 2016, were as follows:

Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
2017 355,000 308,250 $ 663,250
2018 365,000 294,938 659,938
2019 380,000 281,250 661,250
2020 395,000 267,000 662,000
2021 410,000 252,188 662,188
2022-2026 2,300,000 1,017,750 3,317,750
2027-2031 2,760,000 553,313 3,313,313
2032-2033 1,255,000 71,063 1,326,063
Total $ 8,220,000 $ 3,045,751 $ 11,265,751
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6. LONG-TERM DEBT, Continued
B. Prior Years’ Defeased Obligations

1996 and 2000 Tax Allocation Bonds

During fiscal year 2005-06, the City’s former Community Development Agency issued $72,430,000 of 2006
Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds to refund and defease the Agency’s outstanding principal of $25,515,000
of the 1996 Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds and the outstanding principal of $43,215,000 of the 2000 Tax
Allocation Refunding Bonds. Both the 1996 and 2000 series bonds have been 100% defeased and the
liability has been removed from the long-term debt.

The refundings were undertaken to reduce total debt service payments over the next 25 years and to obtain
and estimated net savings of over $5,122,000 over the life of the bonds.

2002 General Obligation Bonds

As noted previously, the City issued $13,245,000 of the 2002 General Obligation Bonds known as “Measure
T” bonds. This financing was used to fund various parks and recreation projects in the City. The bonds
bear annual interest at rates between 4.50% and 5.75%, with interest payments made semi-annually on
February 1 and August 1. In January 2012, the City issued $9,830,000 in 2012 General Obligation Bonds for
the purpose of refunding the 2002 General Obligation bonds, and the 2002 General Obligation Bonds have
been 100% defeased and the liability has been removed from long-term debt. Additionally, the City placed
$1,460,000 into escrow. Future debt service payments were reduced by $2,349,066 with a present value
savings of $999,288.

C. Fiduciary Fund Long Term Obligations

2006 Las Pulgas Project Tax Allocation Bonds

In May 2006, the former Community Development Agency of the City of Menlo Park, now the Successor
Agency, issued Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds in a par amount of $72,430,000 for the purpose of
refunding at lower interest rates the Agency’s outstanding Series 1996 and Series 2000 Tax Allocation
Bonds. As such, the Series 2006 is the only outstanding bond issuance funding redevelopment activities of
benefit to the former Agency’s Las Pulgas Community Development Project Area. The bonds were
repayable from the former Agency’s tax revenues, including a portion of its housing set-aside tax
increment revenues. In addition, pass-through payments to other local taxing agencies were subordinated
to payment of debt service on the Bonds.

The 2006 Bonds were issued as variable rate bonds, with interest calculated monthly. The rate fluctuated
according to market conditions. In order to protect against the potential of rising interest rates associated
with the Bonds and to maximize refunding savings, the Agency entered into a pay-fixed, receive variable
interest rate swap.
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6. LONG-TERM DEBT, Continued

C. Fiduciary Fund Long Term Obligations, Continued

2006 Las Pulgas Project Tax Allocation bonds were refunded during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016
by the Successor Agency’s 2015 Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds and the interest rate swap was

terminated.

2015 Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds

On October 14, 2015, the Successor Agency issued 2015 Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds for $51,505,000.
The bonds were issued to refund the 2006 Tax Allocation Bonds and pay $11,172,000 for the swap
termination relating to the 2006 Bonds. The economic gain on refunding of these bonds was $3,590,680.

The 2015 Refunding Bonds mature annually starting April 1, 2016 through 2029, with installments ranging
from $3,115,000 to $4,405,000. The interest on the Bonds is payable semi-annually on each April 1 and
October 1, starting on April 1, 2016 with coupon rates ranging from 2.00% to 5.00%. The 2015 Refunding
Bonds are subject to early redemption.

The annual debt service requirements of the Series 2015A bonds are as follows:

Year Ending
June 30, Principal Interest Total

2017 3,115,000 $ 2,161,652 $ 5,276,652
2018 3,140,000 2,324,800 5,464,800
2019 3,190,000 2,230,600 5,420,600
2020 3,300,000 2,103,000 5,403,000
2021 3,395,000 1,938,000 5,333,000
2022-2026 18,500,000 7,044,500 25,544,500
2027-2031 16,865,000 2,139,500 19,004,500
Subtotal 51,505,000 $ 19,942,052 $ 71,447,052

Bond Premium 8,492,364

Total 59,997,364

Pledged Revenues

The 2015 Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds of the Successor Agency are payable solely from and secured by
tax revenues to be derived from the Project Area and deposited into Redevelopment Property Tax Trust

Fund.
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7. COMPENSATED ABSENCES

Compensated absences at June 30, 2016, were as follows:

Estimated Due in

Balance Balance Estimated Due More than One
July 1, 2015 Additions Deletions June 30, 2016 Within One Year Year
Governmental Activities $ 2630436 $ 1,398,831 $ (1,342,078) $ 2,687,189 $ 1,464,135 $ 1,223,054
Business-Type Activities 57,878 155,424 (49,584) 163,718 89,175 74,543
Total compensated absences $ 2683314 $ 1,554,255 $ (1,391,662) $ 2,850,907 $ 1,553,310 $ 1,297,597

As stated before, the General Fund contributes to over 90% of the compensated absences liability for the
governmental activities.

8. RISK MANAGEMENT

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; thefts of, damage to, and destruction of assets;
errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disaster. The City participates in pooled
insurance programs offered by the Bay Cities Joint Powers Insurance Authority (BCJPIA) for losses in
excess of specific program deductibles. The purpose of the pool is to provide certain levels of liability
coverage, claims administration, and loss control support to member Cities. The bylaws of the BCJPIA, the
risk coverage agreement, and an associated memorandum of coverage govern the rights and
responsibilities of the BCJPIA’s 19 members. Each member chooses its self-insured liability retention
levels. Each member has a vote in approving the pool’s self-insured retention level, in setting the coverage
limits, in establishing the level of pool reserves and in approving the premium allocation methodology
used for setting the premiums for each member.

Complete financial statements for the BCJPIA may be obtained from the offices of Bickmore Risk Services
& Consulting at the following address:

Bay Cities Joint Powers Insurance Authority
1750 Creekside Oaks Drive, Suite 200
Sacramento, CA 95833
The City’s Liability program has a per claim deductible of $250,000 and a policy limit of $29,000,000. The
Employment Practices program has a per claim deductible of $250,000 and a policy limit of $1,000,000. The

Property and Fire program has a per claim deductible of $10,000 and a policy limit of replacement value.

The City’s Workers” Compensation program has a per claim deductible of $350,000 and through the
Authority, pooled coverage and reinsurance up to statutory limits.

Claims for long-term disability are covered by standard insurance.
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8. RISK MANAGEMENT, Contiuned

Estimated reserves for all claims are recorded in internal service funds. No claim settlement has exceeded

the coverage amounts in place for any of the years shown. The amount of claims due in one year from
June 30, 2016, is estimated to total $851,382.

Changes in the balances of the City’s claims liabilities during the years ended June 30, 2016, 2015, and
2014 were as follows:

Beginning Current Year Claim Payments End
of Year Claims and Changes for Current and of Year
Liability in Estimates Prior Years Liability
2013-2014 $ 3,054,712 $ 1,031,210 $ (948,776) $ 3,137,146
2014-2015 3,137,146 895,507 (613,629) 3,419,024
2015-2016 3,419,024 1,018,847 (774,588) 3,663,283

9. INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS

Interfund receivables and payables at June 30, 2016, were as follows:

Due To / From Other Funds

Interfund due to/due from represent short term loans owed for purposed of covering short term negative
cash positions and will be repaid when fund revenues are received. The composition of due to/from other
funds as of June 30, 2016, is as follows:

| Due from other funds |

Due to other funds | General Fund Non-Major Fund Total

Non-Major Governmental Funds $ 73,685 $ 98,642 % 172,327

Internal Service Funds 336,869 336,869
TOTAL $ 410554 $ 98,642 % 509,196

All Due To/From Other Funds were established as of June 30, 2016, to cover short-term negative cash
balances.
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9. INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS, Continued

Interfund Transfers

Interfund transfers for the year ended June 30, 2016, were as follows:

Transfers In/ Transfers From other funds

Governmental Activities

Trans- General
portation Capital Internal
Impact Improvement Non-Major Service
General Fund Fund Project Fund Funds Fund Total
Governmental Activities
1]
"Cé General Fund $ - $ - $ 7,938,944 $ 200,000 $ 422,933 $ 8,561,877
> &
8 E Transportation Impact Fund - - 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000
£ o
“‘% 2| Non-Major Funds 222,414 14,140 - - 54,943 291,497
£ &
= g Business-Type Activities
= Water Fund 195,185 - 25,000 - - 220,185
TOTAL $ 417,599 $ 14,140 $ 8,963,944 $ 200,000 $ 477,876 $10,073,559

The most significant transactions were transfers of $7,938,944 from the General Fund and $1,000,000
from Transportation Impact Fund to the General Capital Improvement Project Fund for infrastructure

improvements.
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10. FUND BALANCE

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report restriction of fund balances for amounts that
are not available for appropriation or are legally restricted by outside parties for a specific purpose. The
various committed and assigned balances are established by actions of the City Council and Management
and can be increased, reduced or eliminated by similar actions. The following are the classifications that
were implemented according to GASB 54 at June 30, 2016:

Below Market Housing Transportation General Capital Non-Major
General Rate Housing Fund Impact Improvement Governmental
Fund Special Revenue Special Revenue Fees Project Fund Funds Total
Nonspendable:
Deposits and prepaid item $ 33,466 $ - % - % - $ - % - % 33,466
Notes receivable 1,339,847 - - - - 1,339,847
Total nonspendable 1,373,313 - - - - - 1,373,313
Restricted to:
Community development - 16,884,108 4,380,928 - - 1,518,901 22,783,937
Transportation - - - - - 2,612 2,612
Streets and sidewalks - - - 3,680,652 - 3,592,223 7,272,875
Public safety - - - - - 113,152 113,152
Solid waste - - - - - 4,706,533 4,706,533
Stormwater - - - - - 498,026 498,026
Other purposed - - - - - 1,918,595 1,918,595
Total restricted - 16,884,108 4,380,928 3,680,652 - 12,350,042 37,295,730
Committed to:
Streets, sidewalks and parl - - - - - 8,243,849 8,243,849
Stormdrains - - - - - 172,553 172,553
Solid waste - - - - - 1,191,216 1,191,216
Leisure and cultural activit - - - - - 2,456,295 2,456,295
Landscape maintenance - - - - - 530,311 530,311
Community development - - - - - - -
Strategic pension funding 2,862,000 - - - - - 2,862,000
Emergency contingency 7,710,000 - - - - - 7,710,000
Economic stablization 10,280,000 - - - - - 10,280,000
Total committed 20,852,000 - - - - 12,594,224 33,446,224
Assigned to:
Infrastructure maintenance 2,607,125 - - - - - 2,607,125
Community development 1,148,000 - 441,543 - - - 1,589,543
Capital projects - - - - 19,249,500 123,426 19,372,926
Debt service - - - - - 329,513 329,513
Other purposes 728,388 - - - - - 728,388
Total assigned 4,483,513 - 441,543 - 19,249,500 452,939 24,627,495
Unassigned 5,007,430 - - - (121,456) 4,885,974
Total Fund Balance $ 31,716,256  $ 16,884,108 $ 4,822,471 $ 3,680,652 $ 19,249,500 $ 25,275,749 $ 101,628,736

Nonspendable Amounts - represents amounts that cannot be spent or appropriated because they are not in
spendable form or are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. The “not in spendable
form” criterion includes items that are not expected to be converted to cash.

Restricted Amounts - includes amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes stipulated by external
sources, constitutionally or through enabling legislation. Restrictions may be effectively changed or lifted
only by the consent of the resource provider.
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10. FUND BALANCE, CONTINUED

Committed Amounts - represent amounts that are only to be used for specific purposes pursuant to the
constraints imposed by formal action of the City Council. The committed amounts cannot be used for
any other purposes unless the Council removes or changes the specified use by taking the same action it
used to previously commit those amounts.

The emergency contingency and economic stabilization fund balance amounts in this category, which are
considered stabilization arrangements under GASB 54, were established by resolution of the City Council
in 2011 as part of the creation of a formal policy on fund balance in the General Fund. The emergency
contingency balance as of June 30, 2016 was $7,710,000; however, the City Council may increase or
decrease this amount as it deems necessary. The goal for this portion of fund balance is to provide an
amount equivalent to 15-20 percent of the General Fund’s annual operating budget. These funds can
only be used if there is a declaration of a state or federal state of emergency or a local emergency as
defined in the Menlo Park Municipal Code Section 2.44.010. The economic stabilization balance as of
June 30, 2016 was $10,280,000. Like the emergency contingency balance, this amount can be increased or
decreased by the City Council. The goal for this portion of fund balance is to provide an amount
equivalent to 20-25 percent of the General Fund’s annual operating budget. Council approval is required
before expending any portion of this fund balance, and access to these funds is reserved for economic
emergency situations such as unplanned major events like a catastrophic disaster requiring expenditures
that exceed the amount of the emergency contingency reserve; budgeted revenue being taken over by
another entity; or a drop in projected/actual revenue of more than five percent of the General Fund’s
adopted revenue budget.

Assigned Amounts - represents funds that are constrained by the City’s intent to be used for a specific
purpose that are neither restricted nor committed. Intent is expressed by the City Council or City
Manager, to which the City Council has delegated the authority through a resolution, to assign amounts
to be used for specific purposes.

Pursuant to the authority delegated by City Council, the City Manager determines the amount of assigned
fund balances. This can include, but not limited to, such items as encumbrances and constrained amounts
when it is the City’s intent to use proceeds or collections for specific purposes, and residual fund balances,
if any, of special revenue, capital projects, and debt service funds which have not been restricted or
committed.

Unassigned amounts - represents the residual classification for the General Fund and includes all amounts
not contained in the other classifications. Unassigned amounts are technically available for any purpose.
In other governmental funds, if expenditures exceed amounts restricted, committed, or assigned, the
negative amount is reflected as negative unassigned fund balance.

11. NEGATIVE FUND BALANCE

As of June 30, 2016 the Literacy Grants Fund had a negative fund balance of $121,456. The City is working
to address reductions in grant funding from the state through adjustments to expenditures and
replacement funding sources such as from non-profit partners. The Workers Compensation Internal
Service Fund had a negative $1,221,868 fund balance at 6/30/2016. This was mainly due to increased

insurance claims and
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11. NEGATIVE FUND BALANCE, CONTINUED

estimated claims liability at 6/30/2016. The City has increased the amount paid by departments by 30%
in FY 2016-17 to address ongoing annual net losses as well as to offset the negative fund balance. The
estimated claims liability, however, does not involve cash, cannot be estimated during budget
preparation, and the entire amount would most likely not be paid out as it is considered a worst-case
scenario. The Information Technology Internal Service Fund had a negative $32,036 fund balance at
6/30/2016 which will be cleared in the next fiscal year.

12. OTHER FUND DISCLOSURES
Expenditures over Appropriations

The following funds had an excess of expenditures over appropriations:

Major:
General Fund $ 7,712
Below Market Rate Housing Fund 2,168
Non-Major:
Special Revenue Funds:
Narcotic Seizure Fund $ 22,962
Sidewalk Assessment Fund 1,575
Solid Waste Service Fund 217,757
Storm Water Management (NPDES) Fund 4,169
Supplemental Law Enforcement Services Fund 22,374
Bedwell Bayfront Park Maintenance Fund 5,980
Miscellaneous Trust Funds 713,525
Debt Service Funds:
Recreation GO Bond 2002 Fund $ 78,029

13. ENCUMBRANCES/COMMITMENTS

The City had various commitments totaling $6,094,680 as of June 30, 2016. The most significant
commitments are for plan check services and environmental impact reviews for new developments of the
capital improvement projects which include but are not limited to city buildings maintenance, street
resurfacing projects, and traffic congestion projects. All commitments are evidenced by contractual
agreements with contractors. The encumbrances listed by fund are as follows:

Major:
General Fund $ 728,387
Transportation Impact Fund 3,568
General Capital Improvement Fund 4,698,359
Non-Major Funds 664,366
Total $ 6,094,680
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City of Menlo Park
Notes to Basic Financial Statements, Continued
For the year ended June 30, 2016

14. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN
A. Summary of Pension Plan Balances

Pension related balances presented on the Statement of Net Position as of June 30, 2016 by individual
plan are described in the following table:

Deferred Deferred Net Deferred
Employer Outflows - Pension Inflows -
Contributions Pension Liability Pension
CALPERS Miscellaneous
Agent Multiple Employer Plan ~ $ 2,978,780 $ 9 $ 22,112,148 $ 2,435,213
CALPERS Safety
Cost Sharing Plan 1,767,802 300,560 16,768,809 2,179,419
Total $ 4,746,582 $ 300,560 $ 38,880,957 $ 4,614,632

B. Agent Multiple-Employer Defined Benefit Plan - CalPERS Miscellaneous Plan
General Information about the Pension Plan

Plan Description - All qualified permanent and probationary employees are eligible to participate in the
City’s Miscellaneous Plan, an agent multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan, administered by
the California Public Employees’” Retirement System (CalPERS), which acts as a common
investment and administrative agent for its participating member employers. Benefit provisions under
the Plan are established by State statute and Local Government resolution. CalPERS issues publicly
available reports that include a full description of the pension plans regarding benefit provisions,
assumptions and membership information that can be found on the CalPERS website.

Benefits Provided - CalPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living
adjustments and death benefits to plan members, who must be public employees and beneficiaries.
Benefits are based on years of credited service, equal to one year of full time employment. Members
with five years of total service are eligible to retire at age 50 with statutorily reduced benefits. All
members are eligible for non-duty disability benefits after 10 years of service. The death benefit is
one of the following: the Basic Death Benefit, the 1957 Survivor Benefit, or the Optional Settlement 2W
Death Benefit. The cost of living adjustments for each plan are applied as specified by the Public
Employees’ Retirement Law.
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14. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN, Continued

B. Agent Multiple-Employer Defined Benefit Plan - CalPERS Miscellaneous Plan, continued

General Information about the Pension Plan, Continued

The Plan’s provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2016, are summarized as follows:

Miscellaneous Second Tier

Miscellaneous Classic Classic Miscellaneous PEPRA
Benefit vesting schedule 5 years service 5 years service 5 years service
Benefit payment Monthly for life Monthly for life Monthly for life
Retirement age 50 50 52
Monthly benefits, as a % of annual salary 2.70% at age 55 2.00% at age 60 2.00% at age 62
Required employee contribution rates 8.000% 7.000% 6.250%
Required employer contribution rates 19.645% 19.645% 19.645%

Employees Covered - At June 30, 2016, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms
for the Plan:

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 205
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits -
Active employees 189

Total 394

Contributions - Section 20814(C) of the California Public Employees” Retirement Law (PERL) requires
that the employer contribution rates for all public employers be determined on an annual basis by the
actuary and shall be effective on the July 1 following notice of a change in the rate. Funding
contributions for both Plans are determined annually on an actuarial basis as of June 30 by CalPERS.
The actuarially determined rate is the estimated amount necessary to finance the costs of benefits
earned by employees during the year, with additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued
liability. The City is required to contribute the difference between the actuarially determined rate and
the contribution rate of employees.

Net Pension Liability

The City’s net pension liability for each Plan is measured as the total pension liability, less the pension
plan’s fiduciary net position. The net pension liability of the Plan is measured as of June 30, 2015, using
an annual actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2014 rolled forward to June 30, 2015 using standard update
procedures. A summary of principal assumptions and methods used to determine the net pension
liability is shown on the following page.
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14. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS, Continued
B. Agent Multiple-Employer Defined Benefit Plan - CalPERS Miscellaneous Plan, continued
Net Pension Liability, Continued

Actuarial Assumptions - The total pension liabilities in the June 30, 2014 actuarial valuations were
determined using the following actuarial assumptions:

Valuation Date June 30, 2014
Measurement Date June 30, 2015
Actuarial Cost Method Entry-Age Normal Cost Method
Actuarial Assumptions:
Discount Rate (2) 7.65%
Inflation 2.75%
Salary Increases Varies by Entry Age and Service
Investment Rate of Return 7.65%
Mortality (1) Derived using CalPERS' Membership Data for all Funds
Post Retirement Benefit Increase Protection Allowance Floor on Purchasing Power applies, 2.75% thereafter

(1) The mortality table used was developed based on CalPERS' specific data. The table includes 20 years of mortality
improvements using Society of Actuaries Scale BB.

(2) The discount rate was changed to 7.65% from earlier rate of 7.50% net of administartive expensses.

The underlying mortality assumptions and all other actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2014
valuation were based on the results of a January 2014 actuarial experience study for the period 1997 to
2011. Further details of the Experience Study can found on the CalPERS website.

Discount Rate - The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.65% for the Plan. To
determine whether the municipal bond rate should be used in the calculation of a discount rate for the
plan, CalPERS stress tested plans that would most likely result in a discount rate that would be
different from the actuarially assumed discount rate. Based on the testing, none of the tested plans run
out of assets. Therefore, the current 7.65 percent discount rate is adequate and the use of the municipal
bond rate calculation is not necessary. The long term expected discount rate of 7.65 percent will be
applied to all plans in the Public Employees Retirement Fund (PERF). The stress test results are
presented in a detailed report that can be obtained from the CalPERS website.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-
block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net
of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.
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14. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS, Continued
B. Agent Multiple-Employer Defined Benefit Plan - CalPERS Miscellaneous Plan, continued

Net Pension Liability, Continued

In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both short-term and long-
term market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows. Using historical returns
of all the funds” asset classes, expected compound returns were calculated over the short-term (first 10
years) and the long-term (11-60 years) using a building-block approach. Using the expected nominal
returns for both short-term and long-term, the present value of benefits was calculated for each fund.
The expected rate of return was set by calculating the single equivalent expected return that arrived at
the same present value of benefits for cash flows as the one calculated using both short-term and long-
term returns. The expected rate of return was then set equivalent to the single equivalent rate calculated
above and rounded down to the nearest one quarter of one percent.

The table below reflects the long-term expected real rate of return by asset class. The rate of return was
calculated using the capital market assumptions applied to determine the discount rate and asset
allocation. These rates of return are net of administrative expenses.

New
Strategic Real Return Real Return
Asset Class Allocation Years 1 - 10(a) Years 11+(b)
Global Equity 51.00% 5.25% 5.71%
Global Fixed Income 19.00% 0.99% 2.43%
Inflation Sensitive 6.00% 0.45% 3.36%
Private Equity 10.00% 6.83% 6.95%
Real Estate 10.00% 4.50% 513%
Infrastructure and Forestland 2.00% 4.50% 5.09%
Liquidity 2.00% -0.55% -1.05%
Total 100.0%

(a) An expected inflation of 2.5% used for this period.
(b) An expected inflation of 3.0% used for this period.
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14. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS, Continued

B. Agent Multiple-Employer Defined Benefit Plan - CalPERS Miscellaneous Plan, continued
Changes in the Net Pension Liability
The changes in the Net Pension Liability for the Plan follow:

Increase (Decrease)

Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Pension
Liability Net Position Liability / (Asset)

Balance at June 30, 2015 $ 106,008,136  $ 85,979,934  $ 20,028,202
Changes in the year:
Service cost 2,360,735 2,360,735
Interest on the total pension liability 7,827,343 7,827,343
Differences between actual and expected
experience (690,951) (690,951)
Changes in assumptions (1,888,285) (1,888,285)
Changes in benefit terms -
Contribution - employer 2,607,401 (2,607,401)
Contribution - employee 1,080,371 (1,080,371)
Investment income 1,934,950 (1,934,950)
Administrative expenses (97,826) 97,826
Benefit payments , including refunds of
employee contributions (4,582,081) (4,582,081) -
Net changes 3,026,761 942,815 2,083,946
Balance at June 30, 2016 $ 109,034,897  $ 86,922,749  § 22,112,148

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate - The following presents
the net pension liability of the City for the Plan, calculated using the discount rate for the Plan, as well
as what the City’s net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-
percentage point lower or 1-percentage point higher than the current rate:

1% Decrease 6.50%
Net Pension Liability $ 36,542,098
Current Discount Rate 7.5%
Net Pension Liability $ 22,112,148
1% Increase 8.5%
Net Pension Liability $ 10,181,957

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Detailed information about each pension plan’s fiduciary net
position is available in the separately issued CalPERS financial reports.
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14. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS, Continued

B. Agent Multiple-Employer Defined Benefit Plan - CalPERS Miscellaneous Plan, continued

Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions
For the year ended June 30, 2016, the City recognized pension expense of $1,236,646 under the plan. At
June 30, 2016, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related

to the pension plan from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows of  Deferred Inflows of

Resources Resources
Pension contributions subsequent to measurement date $ 2,978,780  $ -
Differences between actual and expected experience - 452,692
Changes in assumptions - 1,237,152
Net differences between projected and actual earnings on
plan investments - 745,369
Total $ 2,978,780  $ 2,435,213

$2,978,780 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions subsequent to the
measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ending June 30,
2016. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related
to the pension plan will be recognized as pension expense as follows:

Measurement Period Deferred Outflow/
Ending June 30: (Inflows) of Resources
2016 $ (1,443,855)
2017 (1,354,915)
2018 (554,461)
2019 918,018
Total $ (2,435,213)

Payable to Pension Plan

As of June 30, 2016, the City reported a payable of $0 for the outstanding amount of contributions to the
pension plan required for the year ended June 30, 2016.
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14. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS, Continued

C. Cost Sharing Multiple-Employer Defined Benefit Plans - CalPERS Safety Plans

General Information about the Pension Plan

Plan Description - All safety qualified permanent and probationary employees are eligible to participate
in the City’s Safety Plan, a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan, administered by
the California Public Employees’” Retirement System (CalPERS), which acts as a common
investment and administrative agent for its participating member employers. Benefit provisions under
the Plan are established by State statute and Local Government resolution. CalPERS issues publicly
available reports that include a full description of the pension plans regarding benefit provisions,
assumptions and membership information that can be found on the CalPERS website.

Benefits Provided - CalPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living
adjustments and death benefits to plan members, who must be public employees and beneficiaries.
Benefits are based on years of credited service, equal to one year of full time employment. Members with
five years of total service are eligible to retire at age 50 with statutorily reduced benefits. All members are
eligible for non-duty disability benefits after 10 years of service. The death benefit is one of the
following: the Basic Death Benefit, the 1957 Survivor Benefit, or the Optional Settlement 2W Death
Benefit. The cost of living adjustments for each plan are applied as specified by the Public Employees’
Retirement Law.

The Plan’s provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2016, are summarized as follows:

Safety Classic Safety Second Tier Classic Safety PEPRA
Benefit vesting schedule 5 years service 5 years service 5 years service
Benefit payments Monthly for life Monthly for life Monthly for life
Retirement age 50 55 57
Monthly benefits, as a % of annual salary 3.00% 3.00% 2.70%
Required employee contribution rates 9.00% 9.000% 11.500%
Required employer contribution rates 18.524% 15.627% 11.153%

Beginning in fiscal year 2016, CalPERS collects employer contributions for the Plan as a percentage of
payroll for the normal cost portion as noted in the rates above and as a dollar amount for contributions
toward the unfunded liability. The dollar amounts are billed on a monthly basis. The City’s required
contribution for the unfunded liability was $715,001 for the safety plan in fiscal year 2016.

Employees Covered - At June 30, 2016, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms for
the Plan:

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 107
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits -
Active employees 45

Total 152
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14. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS, Continued

C. Cost Sharing Multiple-Employer Defined Benefit Plans - CalPERS Safety Plans, continued

Contributions - Section 20814(C) of the California Public Employees” Retirement Law (PERL) requires
that the employer contribution rates for all public employers be determined on an annual basis by the
actuary and shall be effective on the July 1 following notice of a change in the rate. Funding contributions
for both Plans are determined annually on an actuarial basis as of June 30 by CalPERS. The actuarially
determined rate is the estimated amount necessary to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees
during the year, with additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. The City is required to
contribute the difference between the actuarially determined rate and the contribution rate of employees.

Net Pension Liability

Actuarial Assumptions - The total pension liabilities in the June 30, 2014 actuarial valuations were
determined using the following actuarial assumptions:

Measurement Date June 30, 2015
Actuarial Cost Method Entry-Age Normal Cost Method
Actuarial Assumptions:
Discount Rate (2) 7.65%
Inflation 2.75%
Salary Increases Varies by entry age and service
Investment Rate of Return 7.65%
Mortality (1) Derived using CalPERS' Membership Data for all Funds
Post Retirement Benefit Increase Protection Allowance Floor on Purchasing Power applies, 2.75%

(1) The mortality table used was developed based on CalPERS' specific data. The table includes 20 years of
mortality improvements using Society of Actuaries Scale BB.

(2) The discount rate was changed to 7.65% from earlier rate of 7.50% net of administrative expenses.

The underlying mortality assumptions and all other actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2014
valuation were based on the results of a January 2014 actuarial experience study for the period 1997 to
2011. Further details of the Experience Study can found on the CalPERS website.

Discount Rate - The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.65% for the Plan. To
determine whether the municipal bond rate should be used in the calculation of a discount rate for the
plan, CalPERS stress tested plans that would most likely result in a discount rate that would be
different from the actuarially assumed discount rate. Based on the testing, none of the tested plans run
out of assets. Therefore, the current 7.65 percent discount rate is adequate and the use of the municipal
bond rate calculation is not necessary. The long term expected discount rate of 7.65 percent will be
applied to all plans in the Public Employees Retirement Fund (PERF). The stress test results are
presented in a detailed report that can be obtained from the CalPERS website.

84


msinghai
Highlight


City of Menlo Park
Notes to Basic Financial Statements, Continued
For the year ended June 30, 2016

14. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS, Continued

C. Cost Sharing Multiple-Employer Defined Benefit Plans - CalPERS Safety Plans, continued

Net Pension Liability, Continued

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-
block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net
of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.

In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both short-term and long-
term market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows. Using historical returns
of all the funds” asset classes, expected compound returns were calculated over the short-term (first 10
years) and the long-term (11-60 years) using a building-block approach. Using the expected nominal
returns for both short-term and long-term, the present value of benefits was calculated for each fund.
The expected rate of return was set by calculating the single equivalent expected return that arrived at
the same present value of benefits for cash flows as the one calculated using both short-term and long-
term returns. The expected rate of return was then set equivalent to the single equivalent rate calculated
above and rounded down to the nearest one quarter of one percent.

The table below reflects the long-term expected real rate of return by asset class. The rate of return was
calculated using the capital market assumptions applied to determine the discount rate and asset
allocation. These rates of return are net of administrative expenses.

New
Strategic Real Return Real Return
Asset Class Allocation Years 1 - 10(a) Years 11+(b)
Global Equity 51.00% 5.25% 5.71%
Global Fixed Income 19.00% 0.99% 2.43%
Inflation Sensitive 6.00% 0.45% 3.36%
Private Equity 10.00% 6.83% 6.95%
Real Estate 10.00% 4.50% 513%
Infrastructure and Forestland 2.00% 4.50% 5.09%
Liquidity 2.00% -0.55% -1.05%
Total 100.0%

(a) An expected inflation of 2.5% used for this period.
(b) An expected inflation of 3.0% used for this period.

Changes in the Net Pension Liability

As of June 30, 2016, the City reported a net pension liability of $16,768,810 for its proportionate share of
the net pension liability of the safety plan.
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14. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS, Continued

C. Cost Sharing Multiple-Employer Defined Benefit Plans - CalPERS Safety Plans, continued

Changes in the Net Pension Liability, Continued

The City’s net pension liability for the Plan is measured as the proportionate share of the total net pension
liability of the Plan. The net pension liability of the Plan is measured as of June 30, 2015, and the total
pension liability for the Plan used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by actuarial
valuations as of June 30, 2014 rolled forward to June 30, 2015 using standard update procedures. The
City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability was based on the City’s plan liability and asset-
related information where available, and proportional allocations of individual plan amounts as of the
valuation date where not available.

The City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability for the Plan as of June 30, 2014 and 2015 were as

follows:
Proportion - June 30, 2014 0.382390%
Proportion - June 30, 2015 0.406970%
Change - Increase (Decrease) 0.024580%

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate - The following presents
the net pension liability of the City for the Plan, calculated using the discount rate for the Plan, as well
as what the City’s net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-
percentage point lower or 1-percentage point higher than the current rate:

1% Decrease 6.50%
Net Pension Liability $ 27,627,797
Current Discount Rate 7.50%
Net Pension Liability $ 16,768,810
1% Increase 8.50%
Net Pension Liability $ 7,864,641

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Detailed information about each pension plan’s fiduciary net
position is available in the separately issued CalPERS financial reports.
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14. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS, Continued

C. Cost Sharing Multiple-Employer Defined Benefit Plans - CalPERS Safety Plans, continued

Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

For the year ended June 30, 2016, the City recognized pension expense of $1,414,989. At June 30, 2016, the
City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to the pension plan
from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows of  Deferred Inflows of

Resources Resources

Pension contributions subsequent to measurement date $ 1,767,802 % -
Differences between actual and expected experience - 213,574
Changes in assumptions - 982,304
Change in Employer's Proportion 300,560 25,907
Difference in Actual vs Projected Contributions - 459,798
Net differences between projected and actual earnings on

plan investments - 497,836
Total $ 2,068,362  $ 2,179419

$1,767,802 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions subsequent to the
measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ending June 30,
2016. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related
to the pension plan will be recognized as pension expense as follows:

Measurement Period Deferred Outflow/
Ending June 30: (Inflows) of Resources
2016 $ (884,909)
2017 (874,165)
2018 (730,912)
2019 611,127
Total $ (1,878,859)

Payable to Pension Plan

As of June 30, 2016, the City reported a payable of $0 for the outstanding amount of contributions to the
pension plan required for the year ended June 30, 2016.
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15. OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

Plan Description

The City sponsors and administers a single-employer defined benefit postemployment healthcare plan
(the Plan) to provide healthcare insurance benefits to eligible retired employees and their dependents.
Benefit provisions are established and may be amended by the City.

The City participates in the CalPERS healthcare program (PEMHCA) and allows retirees to continue
participation in the medical insurance program after retirement. The following summarizes the retiree
healthcare benefits:

PEMHCA Minimum: The City pays the PEMHCA minimum required employer contribution for retirees
participating in PEMHCA towards the retiree monthly premium.

Retiree Health Benefit Credits (RHBC): Employees can convert unused sick or general leave balance (up to
a maximum) to RHBC at retirement. The City pays retiree medical or dental coverage based on RHBC.
Sick leave hour accrual and RHBC conversion rates vary by bargaining unit and service.

Implied Subsidy: An implied subsidy generally exists when retiree premiums are based on blended active
and retiree experience. In May 2014, the American Academy of Actuaries released a new version of
Actuarial Standard of Practice No. 6 (ASOP No. 6). The revised ASOP No. 6 requires the implied subsidy
to be valued for community plans such as PEMHCA. This is mandatory for all valuations with
measurement dates on or after March 31, 2016. Since PEMHCA is a community rated plan for the City,
no implied subsidy is valued for the PEMHCA plan.

Funding Policy

The City pre-funds the Plan through CalPERS OPEB Trust (CERBT) by contributing the City’s Annual
Required Contribution (ARC) every year. For fiscal year 2015-16, the City contributed $608,057. The
City’s ARC was $678,000 for fiscal year 2015-16.

CERBT is a tax qualified irrevocable trust, organized under Internal Revenue Code (IRC) Section 115,
established to pre-fund OPEB as described in GASB Statement 45. The CERBT issues a publicly available
financial report that included financial statements and required supplementary information for the City,
not individualizing, but in aggregate with the other CERBT participants. That report may be obtained by
contacting CalPERS.

Annual Other Postemployment Benefit Cost and Net Obligation

The City’s annual OPEB cost is calculated based on the Annual Required Contribution (ARC), an amount
actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement 45. The ARC represents a
level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and
amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed 30 years.
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15. OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS, Continued

The following table shows the components of the City’s annual OPEB cost for the year, the amount
actually contributed to the plan and changes in the City’s net OPEB obligation/ (asset).

Annual required contribution $ 677,000
Interest on net OPEB obligation (1,000)
Adjustment to annual required contribution 2,000
Annual OPEB cost (expense) 678,000
Benefit payments (608,057)
Implied subsidy (137,000)
Total contribution (745,057)
Increase (decrease) in net OPEB obligation (67,057)
Net OPEB obligation - beginning of year (19,931)
Net OPEB obligation(asset) - end of year $ (86,988)

The City’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the Plan, and the net
post-employment healthcare plan obligation were as follows:

Fiscal Year Annual OPEB Net OPEB
Ended OPEB Cost (Obligation
June 30, Cost Contributed Asset
2014 546,000 122% (9,263)
2015 540,000 102% (19,931)
2016 678,000 110% (86,988)

Funded Status

The funded status of the plan as of June 30, 2015, was as follows:

Total
Actuarial Accrued Liability (AAL) m
Actuarial Value of Plan Assets 16,512,000
Unfunded (Overfunded) Actuarial Accrued Liability (UAAL) (456,000)
Funded Ratio (Actuarial value of plan assets/ AAL) 102.8%
Covered Payroll (active plan members) $ 19,824,000
UAAL as a Percentage of Covered Payroll -4.20%

A valuation of the City’s OPEB obligation must be performed every other year. The City’s most recent
valuation was prepared with data as of June 30, 2013. Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve
estimates of the value of expected benefit payments and assumptions about the probability of occurrence
of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the
healthcare cost trend.
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15. OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS, Continued

16.

Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the
employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new
estimates are made about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as required
supplementary information following the notes to the financial statements, presents multi-year trend
information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative
to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as
understood by the employer and plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of
each evaluation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between employer and plan members
to that point.

In the June 30, 2015 actuarial valuation, the entry age normal actuarial cost method was used. The
actuarial assumptions included a 7.25% investment rate of return (net of administrative expenses), a 3.0%
general inflation increase, and annual pre-Medicare eligible healthcare cost trend rates for medical
decreasing to 5.0% over six years. Sick leave accrual, benefit conversion rates, and maximum conversion
amounts all assumed fixed in the future. Salary scale and demographic assumptions for withdrawal,
mortality, disability, and retirement rates were based on CalPERS 1997-2011 Experience Study with fully
generational Scale AA applied to post-retirement mortality. Actuarial value of assets was based on 5-year
smoothed market value.

An initial UAAL was paid off in 2007-08. Actuarial methods and assumption changes and experience and
contribution gains and losses were amortized over a 15-year closed period, all as a level percentage of
payroll.

LANDFILL POST-CLOSURE CARE

The City owns and maintains a closed, municipal, non-hazardous solid waste landfill known as the Marsh
Road Landfill. Landfill operations began at the site in 1957 through a Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement
initiated by San Mateo County. In 1968, the City took responsibility for the landfill and its eventual post-
closure maintenance. The landfill ceased the receipt of wastes in May of 1984. In 1995, the construction of
Bayfront Park was completed, incorporating required features such as a gas recovery and leachate control
system.

State and Federal laws and regulations require that the City perform certain maintenance and monitoring
functions at the landfill site at Bayfront Park through the year 2025. These same regulations require the
City to make annual contributions and/or provide an alternative funding mechanism to finance closure
and post-closure care costs. In January 2003, the City Council approved a plan for a 5.4% surcharge on
solid waste collection fees, increasing at a rate of 0.2% per year, in order to cover these costs. The
surcharge is currently 7.2 percent.
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16.

17.

18.

LANDFILL POST-CLOSURE CARE, Continued

The City’s outstanding future post-closure care costs were estimated at $4,555,742 at June 30, 2016. This
estimate is based upon the present value of future cash flows associated with the landfill site’s post-
closure costs, discounted using the City’s projected return on investment. The amount of fund balance
within the Landfill Special Revenue Fund is not sufficient to cover such a liability, though the revenue
stream provided by the solid waste collection surcharge and all post-closure costs will be accounted for
in this fund. The City has recorded the post-closure cost liability as part of governmental activities in
the government-wide financial statements.

The City will fund on-going post-closure costs with a combination of revenues from the surcharge and
interest earnings. However, if these revenues are inadequate or additional post-closure care
requirements are determined (due to changes in technology, applicable laws or regulations, for
example), these costs may need to be covered by additional garbage surcharges or from future tax
revenue. The following is the activity for landfill post closure care for fiscal year 2016:

Balance Balance Due within Due in more
July 1, 2015 Deletions June 30, 2016 one year than one year
Governmental Activities $ 4,845,465 $(289,723.00) $ 4,555,742 $ 408,813 $ 4,146,929

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AGENCY OF THE CITY OF MENLO PARK

The former Community Development Agency of the City of Menlo Park (Agency) was established in 1981
with the adoption of the Las Pulgas Community Development Plan (1981 Plan). Since 1981, the Agency
has implemented numerous programs to improve housing in the project area. During the fiscal year 2011-
12, the Agency was dissolved in accordance to State Assembly Bill 1X26. All assets of the Agency were
transferred to the Successor Agency private-purpose trust fund. More information on the Successor
Agency can be found in Note 18.

SUCCESSOR AGENCY TRUST FOR THE FORMER COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

On December 29, 2011, the California Supreme Court upheld Assembly Bill 1x 26 (“the Bill”) that provides
for the dissolution of all redevelopment agencies in the State of California. This action impacted the
reporting entity of the City of Menlo Park that previously had reported a redevelopment agency within
the reporting entity of the City as a blended component unit.

The Bill provides that upon dissolution of a redevelopment agency, either the city or another unit of local
government will agree to serve as the “successor agency” to hold the assets of the former redevelopment
agency until they are distributed to other units of state and local government. On January 10, 2012, the
City Council elected to become the Successor Agency for the former redevelopment agency in accordance
with the Bill as part of City resolution number 6043.

After enactment of the law, which occurred on June 28, 2011, redevelopment agencies in the State of
California cannot enter into new projects, obligations or commitments. Subject to the control of a newly
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18.

19.

SUCCESSOR AGENCY TRUST FOR THE FORMER COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AGENCY,
Continued

established oversight board, remaining assets can only be used to pay enforceable obligations in existence
at the date of dissolution (including the completion of any unfinished projects that were subject to legally
enforceable contractual commitments).

In accordance with the timeline set forth in the Bill (as modified by the California Supreme Court on
December 29, 2011), all redevelopment agencies in the State of California were dissolved and ceased to
operate as legal entities as of February 1, 2012.

In future fiscal years, successor agencies will only be allocated revenue in the amount that is necessary to
pay the estimated annual installment payments on enforceable obligations of the former redevelopment
agency until all enforceable obligations of the prior redevelopment agency have been paid in full and all
assets have been liquidated.

As of June 30, 2016, all of the assets of the former Community Development Agency have been liquidated
and distributed among the affected taxing districts. The Successor Agency’s remaining responsibility is for
the maintenance of the former agency’s debt, which consists of the 2015 Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds.
More information on these bonds can be found in Section C of Note 6.

CONTINGENCIES

The City participates in a number of Federal, State, and County programs that are fully or partially funded
by grants received from other governmental units. Expenditures financed by grants are subject to audit by
the appropriate grantor government. If expenditures are disallowed due to noncompliance with grantor
program regulations, the City may be required to reimburse the grantor government. As of June 30, 2016,
some amounts of grant expenditures have not been audited, but the City believes that disallowed
expenditures, if any, based on subsequent audits will not have a material effect on any individual
governmental funds or the overall financial condition of the City.

20. LITIGATION

The City is a defendant in a number of lawsuits which have arisen in the normal course of business. While
substantial damages are alleged in some of these actions, their outcome cannot be predicted with certainty.
In the opinion of the City Attorney, most of these actions, when finally adjudicated, will not have a
material adverse effect on the financial condition of the City.
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21. JOINT VENTURES
General

The City of Menlo Park participates in joint ventures through Joint Powers Authorities (JPAs) established
under the Joint Exercise of Powers Act of the State of California. Obligations and liabilities of the JPAs are
not those of the City.

San Francisquito Creek

The San Francisquito Creek Joint Powers Authority (SFCJPA) was created in May 1999 as a joint powers
authority by the City of Menlo Park, the City of Palo Alto, the City of East Palo Alto, the Santa Clara
Valley Water District and the San Mateo Flood Control District. The Authority’s board is comprised of
one director appointed by each of these member entities, and is a legally separate and fiscally
independent entity.

The Authority was formed to manage the joint contribution of services and provide policy direction on
issues of mutual concern related to the San Francisquito Creek, including bank stabilization, channel
clearing and other creek maintenance, planning of flood control measures, preserving environmental
values and instream uses and emergency response coordination. The SFCJPA and U.S. Army Corps of
Engineers are presently working together with the area’s Congressional delegation to secure Federal
funding for studies needed to identify a comprehensive flood management and ecosystem restoration
project within the Creek watershed.

In the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016, each member entity contributed $118,000 to cover Authority
administrative costs for the year.

Complete financial statements for the SFCJPA may be obtained from their offices at the following address:
San Francisquito Creek Joint Powers Authority
1231 Hoover Street
Menlo Park, CA 94025

South Bayside Waste Management Authority

The City of Menlo Park is one of twelve members of the South Bayside Waste Management Authority
(SBWMA). The SBWMA was formed in October 1999 for the purpose of joint ownership, financing and
administration of solid waste transfer and recycling facilities; and the planning, administration
management review, monitoring, enforcement and reporting of solid waste, recyclable material and plant
material collection activities within the Authority’s service area.

The Authority is controlled by a twelve member board consisting of one representative from each member

entity. None of the SBWMA member entities exercise specific control over the budgeting and financing of
the Authority’s activities beyond their representation of the board.
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21. JOINT VENTURES, Continued

Through the operation of franchise agreements with each member, Recology San Mateo County (Recology)
collects fees charged for the use of the Authority’s facilities and remits them to the Authority. Pursuant to
an operations agreement with the Authority effective through December 31, 2020, Recology operates the
facilities and is paid compensation based on costs, a provision for profit and incentives for cost savings and
performance.

Complete financial statement for the SBWMA may be obtained from their offices at the following address:
South Bayside Management Authority

610 Elm Street, Suite 202
San Carlos, CA 94070

22. PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT

The City recorded prior period adjustments to correct the fund balance due to a reclassification of the
land held for resale to capital assets.

Fund Statements

Prior Period

Fund Balance, as Adjustment Fund Balance,
Previously Land held for as
Reported Resale Restated
Below Market Rate Housing
Special Revenue Fund $ 14,135,309 $ (1,092,019) $ 13,043,290
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1. BUDGETARY PRINCIPLES

The City followed these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the General Purpose Financial
Statements:

1. City Council identifies the priority projects/programs for the budget at a study session with public input. The City
Council annually adopts the budget for the ensuing fiscal year generally prior to July 1.

2. The City Manager is authorized to transfer budgetary amounts within a single fund; however, any revisions that
alter the total expenditures of any fund must be approved by the City Council.

3. Legally adopted budgets and formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the
year for the general fund, special revenue funds, debt service funds, and capital projects funds. Proprietary funds
and Agency funds are not budgeted.

4. Budgets for the general, special revenue and capital projects funds are adopted on a basis consistent with GAAP.

5. Under Article XIIIB of the California Constitution (the Gann Spending Limitation Initiative), the City is restricted as
to the amount of annual appropriations from the proceeds of taxes, and if proceeds of taxes exceed allowed
appropriations, the excess must either be refunded to the State Controller, returned to the taxpayers through revised
tax rates or revised fee schedules, or an excess in one year may be offset against a deficit in the following year. For
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016, based on the calculations by City Management, proceeds of taxes did not exceed
the appropriations limit.

6. Budgeted revenue amounts represent the original budget modified by adjustments authorized during the year.
Budgeted expenditure amounts represent original appropriations adjusted for supplemental appropriations during
the year which were contingent upon new or additional revenue sources and reappropriated amounts for prior year
encumbrances. The City Manager must approve adjustments to departmental budgets; however, management may
amend the budgeted amounts within departmental expenditure classifications.

7. Appropriations lapse at the end of the fiscal year and then are rebudgeted for the coming year.

8.  Budgeted appropriations for the various governmental funds become effective each July 1. The City Council may
amend the budget during the fiscal year. The legal level of budgetary control has been established at the fund level.
Appropriations generally lapse at the end of the fiscal year to the extent they have not been expended or
encumbered.

Encumbrances

Under encumbrance accounting, purchase orders, contracts and other commitments for expenditures are recorded to
reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation. Encumbrance accounting is employed as an extension of formal
budgetary accounting. Since encumbrances do not yet constitute expenditures or liabilities, encumbrances outstanding
at year-end are reported as an assignment of fund balances.
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Budgetary Comparison Schedule, General Fund

REVENUES:

Taxes:
Secured property taxes
Unsecured property taxes
Other property taxes
Sales taxes
Other taxes

Licenses and permits

Fines and forfeitures

Use of money and property

Intergovernmental

Charges for services

Other

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:

Current:
General government
Public safety
Public works
Culture and recreation
Community development
Housing and Redevelopment
Capital outlay

Total expenditures

REVENUE OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balance

FUND BALANCES:

Beginning of year

End of year

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
15,054,997 $ 16,144,997 $ 16,927,658 $ 782,661
412,000 412,000 466,089 54,089
584,816 784,816 940,188 155,372
5,243,064 5,202,594 5,425,088 222,494
8,096,195 9,071,195 9,360,210 289,015
5,890,363 5,890,363 5,847,247 (43,116)
1,067,643 1,067,643 1,349,853 282,210
1,128,598 1,128,598 1,145,954 17,356
864,541 928,467 1,211,449 282,982
8,180,335 8,072,135 8,350,722 278,587
61,250 61,250 64,653 3,403
46,583,802 48,764,058 51,089,111 2,325,053
6,142,905 6,422,635 5,517,302 905,333
16,385,144 16,522,924 15,865,687 657,237
8,468,449 8,740,791 7,616,964 1,123,827
10,133,005 10,166,436 9,807,503 358,933
5,128,992 5,128,992 3,542,425 1,586,567
43,745 43,745 51,457 (7,712)
225,261 229,840 164,071 65,769
46,527,501 47,255,363 42,565,409 4,689,954
56,301 1,508,695 8,523,702 7,015,007
417,599 417,599 417,599 -
(1,770,544) (9,161,877) (8,561,877) 600,000
(1,352,945) (8,744,278) (8,144,278) 600,000
(1,296,644) $  (7,235,583) 379,424 $ 7,615,007
31,336,832
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Budgetary Comparison Schedule, Below Market Rate Housing Special Revenue Fund

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
REVENUES:
Use of money and property $ 100,000 $ 100,000 $ 149,505 $ 49,505
Charges for services 3,500,000 3,500,000 3,788,681 288,681
Total revenues 3,600,000 3,600,000 3,938,186 338,186
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General government 2,000 2,000 - 2,000
Urban development and housing 95,200 95,200 97,368 (2,168)
Total expenditures 97,200 97,200 97,368 (168)
Net change in fund balance ~ $ 3,502,800 $ 3,502,300 3,840,818 $ 338,018
FUND BALANCES:
Beginning of year 13,043,290
End of year $ 16,884,108
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Budgetary Comparison Schedule, Housing Special Revenue Fund

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

REVENUES:
Use of money and property $ 7,000 $ 7,000 $ 17,711 $ 10,711
Charges for services - - 3,382 3,382

Total revenues 7,000 7,000 21,093 14,093
EXPENDITURES:
Current:

Urban development and housing 30,000 30,000 4,942 25,058
Total expenditures 30,000 30,000 4,942 25,058
Net change in fund balance $ (23,000) $ (23,000) 16,151 $ 39,151

FUND BALANCES:
Beginning of year 4,806,320
End of year $ 4,822471
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Budgetary Comparison Schedule, Transportation Impact Fees Special Revenue Fund

REVENUES:

Use of money and property
Intergovernmental

Charges for services
Total revenues
EXPENDITURES:

Current:

Capital outlay
Total expenditures
REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Transfers in

Transfers out
Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balance

FUND BALANCE:

Beginning of year

End of year

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive

Original Final Amount (Negative)
$ 40,000 $ 40,000 $ 51,211 $ 11,211
2,506,860 3,256,860 606,318 (2,650,542)
1,200,000 1,200,000 484,865 (715,135)
3,746,860 4,496,860 1,142,394 (3,354,466)
4,840,074 7,512,426 1,258,892 6,253,534
4,840,074 7,512,426 1,258,892 6,253,534
(1,093,214) (3,015,566) (116,498) 2,899,068
14,140 14,140 14,140 -
(1,000,000) (1,000,000) (1,000,000) -
(985,860) (985,860) (985,860) -
$ (2,079,074) $ (4,001,426) (1,102,358) $ 2,899,068

4,783,010
$
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2. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN - AGENT MULTIPLE EMPLOYER PLAN

A. Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios during the Measurement Period -

@)

Last 10 years

. . 1
Miscellaneious Plan

Measurement Period
TOTAL PENSION LIABILITY
Service Cost
Interest
Difference Between Expected and Actual Experience
Changes of Assumptions
Benefit Payments, Including Refunds of Employee Contributions
Net Change in Total Pension Liability
Total Pension Liability - Beginning
Total Pension Liability - Ending (a)

PLAN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
Contributions - Employer
Contributions - Employee
Net Investment Income
Benefit Payments, Including Refunds of Employee Contributions
Other Changes in Fiduciary Net Position
Net Change in Fiduciary Net Position
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Beginning
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Ending (b)

Plan Net Position Liability/(Asset) - Ending (a) - (b)

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of the Total Pension Liability
Covered Payroll

Plan Net Pension Liability/(Asset) as a Percentage of Covered Payroll

2014-15 2013-14
2,360,735 2,430,975
7,827,343 7,464,650

(690,951) -
(1,888,285) -
(4,582,081) (4,401,346)

3,026,761 5,494,279
106,008,136 100,513,857
109,034,897 106,008,136
2,607,401 2,231,189
1,080,371 1,006,903
1,934,950 12,874,205
(4,582,081) (4,401,346)
(97,826) -
942,815 11,710,951
85,979,934 74,268,983
86,922,749 85,979,934
22,112,148 20,028,202
79.72% 81.11%
13,909,694 13,277,488
158.97% 150.84%

(1) - Historical information is required only for measurement periods for which GASB 68 is applicable.
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2. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN - AGENT MULTIPLE EMPLOYER PLAN

B. Schedule of Plan Contributions - Last 10 years

Miscellaneous Plan

Fiscal Year (1) Fiscal Year

2015-16 2014-15
Actuarially determined contribution $ 2,978,780 $ 2,604,813
Contribution in relation to the actuarially determined contributions (2,978,780) (2,604,813)
Contribtion deficiency (excess) $ - $ -
Covered payroll $ 13,539,431 $ 13,909,694
22.00% 18.73%

Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll

(1) - Historical information is required only for measurement periods for which GASB 68 is applicable
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3. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN - COST SHARING PLAN

A. Schedule of the City’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability - Last 10 Years*

Safety Plan
6/30/2016 6/30/2015
Measurement date 6/30/2015 6/30/2014
Proportion of the net pension liability 0.40697 % 0.38239%
Proportionate share of the net pension liability $ 16,768,810 $ 14,343,292
Covered payroll 6,059,802 $ 6,253,886
Proportionate Share of the net pension liability as percentage of covered
payroll 276.72% 229.35%
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability 78.83% 80.95%
Notes to Schedule:

* Fiscal year 2015 was the 1st year of implementation, therefore only two years are shown.
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3. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS - COST SHARING PLANS, Continued

B. Schedule of Contributions - Last 10 Years*

Safety Plan 2016 2015

Contractually required contribution(actuarially determined) $ 1,767,802 1,623,197
Contribution in relation to the actuarially determined contributions (1,767,802) (1,623,197)
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ - -
Covered payroll $ 6,328,709 6,059,802
Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll 27.93% 26.79%

* Fiscal year 2015 was the 1st year of implementation, therefore only two years are shown.
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4. OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB)

In order to comply with GASB Statement 45, an actuarial valuation of the City’s OPEB obligations

must be performed every other year. The City’s most recent valuation was prepared with data as of
June 30, 2015.

Unfunded
Unfunded (Overfunded)
Entry Age (Overfunded) Liability as
Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial a Percentage
Valuation Value of Accrued Accrued Funded Covered of Covered
Date Assets Liability Liability Ratio Payroll Payroll
6/30/2011 $ 11,891,000 $ 11,873,000 $ (18,000) 100.2% $ 18,752,000 -0.1%
6/30/2013 $ 13,861,000 $ 13,155,000 $  (706,000) 105.4% $ 16,970,000 -4.2%
6/30/2015 $ 16,512,000 $ 16,056,000 $  (456,000) 1028% $ 19,824,000 2.3%
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City of Menlo Park

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
General Capital Improvement Capital Projects Fund

For the year ended June 30, 2016

Variance with

Final Budget
Budget Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
REVENUES:
Taxes:

Other taxes $ - $ - $ 82,719 $ 82,719
Licenses and permits 100,000 100,000
Intergovernmental 590,000 590,000 - (590,000)
Charges for services - - 50,266 50,266

Total revenues 590,000 590,000 232,985 (357,015)
EXPENDITURES:
Capital outlay 3,519,953 23,173,641 4,419,052 18,754,589
Total expenditures 3,519,953 23,173,641 4,419,052 18,754,589
REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES (2,929,953) (22,583,641) (4,186,067) 18,397,574
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in 9,563,944 9,563,944 8,963,944 (600,000)
Total other financing sources (uses) 9,563,944 9,563,944 8,963,944 (600,000)
Net change in fund balance $ 6,633,991 $  (13,019,697) 4,777,877 $ 17,797,574
FUND BALANCE:
Beginning of year 14,471,623
End of year $ 19,249,500
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NON-MAJOR
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Special Revenue Funds:

Highway Users Tax Fund - Established to receive and expend the City's allocation of the State Gasoline
taxes.

Federal Revenue Sharing Fund - Established to account for Federal Revenue Sharing money used to make
emergency repair loans to lower income owners of single-family owner-occupied properties.

Landscape/Tree Assessment Fund - Established to account for property tax assessments collected under the
Landscaping and Lighting Act of 1972 utilized for maintaining of City street trees.

Sidewalk Assessment Fund - Established to account for property tax assessments collected under the
Landscaping and Lighting Act of 1972 utilized for repair and replacement of hazardous sidewalks and curbs.

Landfill Post-Closure Fund - Established to receive and expend increased solid waste surcharges and other
revenues to cover the post-closure costs of the Marsh Road landfill at the Bayfront Park.

County Transportation Tax Fund - Established to account for the City's portion of the County-wide 1/2
cent sales tax used for City transportation purposes.

Public Library Fund - Established to provide supplementary funds to public libraries and to encourage
local jurisdictions to maintain local support for their libraries.

Literacy Grants Fund - Established to provide literacy services to adult learners.

Narcotic Seizure Fund - Established to account for money seized in arrests for drug law violations used to
purchase law enforcement equipment and supplies.

Downtown Parking Permits Fund - Established to provide adequate parking within the Central Business
District.

Storm Drainage Fees Fund - Established to account for storm drainage fees used to mitigate City storm
drainage problems either directly or indirectly resulting from the development.

Solid Waste Service Fund - Utilized to provide a City-wide garbage pickup service in order to keep health
standards high for the single-family residences.

Bay Area Air Quality Management Fund (AB 434) - Established to account for City's share of surcharge
funds from motor vehicle registration fees to be used for implementing eligible transportation programs.

Storm Water Management Fund - Established to account for the local requirements delineated in the Storm
Water Management Plan, funded by a City-wide fee per parcel.

Supplemental Law Enforcement Services Fund - Established to account for funds received from
Supplemental Law Enforcement Services Fund (SLESF) monies under AB3229 used to provide front line law
enforcement services.
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NON-MAJOR
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Special Revenue Funds, Continued:

Local Law Enforcement Block Grant Fund - Established to account for funds received from Bureau of
Justice Assistance used to reduce crime and improve public safety.

Construction Impact Fee Fund - Established to account for developer fees paid to mitigate pavement
damage due to heavy construction activity.

Bedwell Bayfront Park Maintenance Fund - Utilized to account for prior year fees residing in the fund
balance that were charged to the public for trash hauled to the City landfill site. The interest earned on these
fees are used to maintain the Bedwell Bayfront Park built on the site.

Recreation In-Lieu Fund - Established to account for developer fees paid in-lieu of new recreation facilities.
The funds are used to improve and expand recreation facilities.

Sharon Hills Park Fund - Established to account for a developer payment to be used for maintenance of
Sharon Hills Park.

Vintage Oaks Landscape Fund - Established to account for a developer payment to be used for maintenance
of the perimeter landscaping of the Vintage Oaks subdivision.

Community Development Block Grant Special Revenue Fund - Established in 1981 to account for Federal
Housing and Community Development Block Grant funds utilized for single family housing rehabilitation
and related administration.

Miscellaneous Trust Fund - Includes donations given to the City for certain programs within Library,
Recreational and Public Safety services and deposits held by the City for environmental impact reports on
small individual property developments

Debt Service Fund:

Debt service funds are established to account for the accumulation and disbursement of monies to comply
with the interest and redemption requirements of the Library Bond and the 2002 Recreation GO Bond
Obligations as well as the retirement of the former Communty Development Agency's Series 2006 Refunding
bonds.

Capital Projects Funds:

Library Addition Fund - Established to account for proceeds of the 1990 Library Improvements Bond Issue
used to construct improvements to the existing Library.

Measure T 2002 GO Bond - Established to account for the proceeds of the 2002 Measure T Recreation
Improvements Bond Issue used to construct improvements to the City's parks and recreation facilities.
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City of Menlo Park

Combining Balance Sheet

Non-Major Governmental Funds

June 30, 2016
Special Revenue
Highway Federal Landscape/ County
Users Revenue Tree Sidewalk Landfill Transportation
Tax Sharing Assessment Assessment Post-Closure Tax
ASSETS
Cash and investments 2,856,753 87,594 % 283,278 % 202,723  $ 4,672,162  $ 629,578
Receivables:
Accounts - 246 - - 61,910 297,832
Interest 6,377 194 - - 10,429 1,065
Notes - 49,545 - - - -
Due from other governments - - 2,300 - - 203,464
Due from other funds - - - - - -
Total assets 2,863,130 137,579 % 285578 % 202,723 % 4744501  $ 1,131,939
LIABILITIES
AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable - - $ 21,704  $ - $ 37370 % 249,622
Accrued payroll and related liabilities 1,154 - 8,975 1,507 598 10,876
Due to other funds - - - - - -
Deposits - - - - - 45,000
Total liabilities 1,154 - 30,679 1,507 37,968 305,498
Deferred inflows of resoureces
Unavailable revenue - - - - - 96,194
Total deferred inflows of resources - - - - - 96,194
Fund Balances:
Restricted 2,861,976 137,579 254,899 - 4,706,533 730,247
Committed - - - 201,216 - -
Assigned - - - - - -
Unassigned - - - - - -
Total fund balances 2,861,976 137,579 254,899 201,216 4,706,533 730,247
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources, and fund balances 2,863,130 137,579 % 285578 % 202,723  $ 4744501 $ 1,131,939
(Continued)
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Special Revenue

Downtown Storm Solid Bay Area
Public Literacy Narcotic Parking Drainage Waste Air Quality Storm Water
Library Grants Seizure Permits Fees Service Management Management
- $ 74 % 47214  $ 3,943,750 $ 172,169 $ 1,171,360 $ 2,606 $ 500,526
- 55,000 - 338 - 25,000 - -
- - - 8,807 384 3,213 6 -
- - - - - - - 5,200
98,642 - - - - - - -
98,642 § 55,074 § 47214 $ 3,952,805 $ 172553 $ 1,199573 $ 2,612 $ 505,726
- $ 12 % (14) $ 13,180 $ - $ 3802 $ - $ 4,187
- 6,042 - 969 - 4,555 - 3,513
976 170,476 - - - - - -
976 176,530 (14) 14,149 5 8,357 - 7,700
- - 47,228 - - - 2,612 498,026
97,666 - - 3,938,746 172,553 1,191,216 - -
- (121,456) - - - - - -
97,666 (121,456) 47,228 3,938,746 172,553 1,191,216 2,612 498,026
98,642 § 55,074 $ 47214 $ 3,952,895 § 172,553 $ 1,199,573 $ 2,612 $ 505,726
(Continued)

117



City of Menlo Park

Combining Balance Sheet

Non-Major Governmental Funds, Continued
June 30, 2016

Special Revenue

Law
Enforcement

Service

Construction
Impact

Fees

Bayfront
Park

Maintenance

Recreation

In-Lieu

Sharon

Hills Park

Vintage Oaks

Landscape

ASSETS

Cash and investments $
Receivables:

Accounts -
152
Notes -

Interest

Due from other governments -

Due from other funds -

68,167 $

4,158,070

9,346

$

444,515

995

$

1,381,905

25,000
3,086

58,047

130

$ 60,080

134

Total assets $

68,319 $

4,167,416

$

445,510

$

1,409,991

58,177

$ 60,214

LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $
Accrued payroll and related liabilities -
Due to other funds -

Deposits -

2395 $

58,917
4,612

$

20,845
348

$

112,109
972

11,845

Total liabilities

63,529

113,081

Deferred inflows of resoureces

Unavailable revenue -

Total deferred inflows of resources -

Fund Balances:

Restricted
Committed -
Assigned -
Unassigned -

4,103,887

424,317

1,296,910

46,332

59,662

Total fund balances

4,103,887

424,317

1,296,910

46,332

59,662

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of

resources, and fund balances $

68,319 $

4,167,416

$

445,510

$

1,409,991

58,177

$ 60,214
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Special Revenue Debt Service Capital Projects
Community Library Recreation Measure T Non-Major
Development Miscellaneous GO Bond GO Bond Library 2002 Governmental
Block Grant Trust 1990 2002 Addition GO Bond Funds

$ 780,055 $ 1,314,575 $ 325,363 1,224589  $ 123,151 $ 328,799 $ 24,837,103
15,786 - - - - - 481,112

- 380 726 2,687 275 734 49,120

585,481 - - - - - 635,026

- - 127 111,079 - - 322,170

- - - - - - 98,642

$ 1,381,322  $ 1,314,955 % 326,216 1,338,355 % 123,426 $ 329,533 $ 26,423,173
$ - $ 253,067 % - - $ - $ - $ 789,583
- 179 - - - 20 44,320

- - 875 - - - 172,327

- - - - - - 45,000

- 253,236 875 - - 20 1,051,230

- - - - - - 96,194

- - - - - - 96,194

1,381,322 - 325,341 1,338,355 12,350,042

- 1,061,719 - - 12,594,224

- - - 123,426 329,513 452,939
- - - - - - (121,456)

1,381,322 1,061,719 325,341 1,338,355 123,426 329,513 25,275,749

$ 1,381,322 $ 1,314,955 $ 326,216 1,338355  $ 123,426 $ 329533 $ 26,423,173
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City of Menlo Park

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Non-Major Governmental Funds
For the year ended June 30, 2016

Special Revenue

Highway Federal Landscape/
Users Revenue Tree Sidewalk Landfill
Tax Sharing Assessment Assessment Post-Closure
REVENUES:
Other taxes $ 742,292 $ - % - $ - $ -
Special assessments - - 627,103 128,475 -
Licenses and permits - - - - -
Use of money and property 24,917 4,670 - - 40,513
Intergovernmental - - 8,183 - -
Charges for services - 29 2,300 - 744,469
Other - - - - -
Total revenues 767,209 4,699 637,586 128,475 784,982
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General government - - - - -
Public safety - - - - -
Public works 86,736 - 631,250 68,160 254,924
Culture and recreation - - - - -
Community development - - - - -
Capital outlay 1,300,000 - 471 213,000 22,000
Debt service:
Principal - - - - -
Interest - - - - -
Total expenditures 1,386,736 - 631,721 281,160 276,924
REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES (619,527) 4,699 5,865 (152,685) 508,058
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in 208,333 - 214,543 - -
Transfers out - - (68,020) (75,376) (8,494)
Total other financing sources (uses) 208,333 - 146,523 (75,376) (8,494)
Net change in fund balances (411,194) 4,699 152,388 (228,061) 499,564
FUND BALANCES:
Beginning of year 3,273,170 132,880 102,511 429,277 4,206,969
End of year $ 2,861,976  $ 137,579 % 254,899 % 201,216 % 4,706,533
(Continued)
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Special Revenue

County Downtown Storm Solid Bay Area
Transportation Public Literacy Narcotic Parking Drainage Waste Air Quality
Tax Library Grants Seizure Permits Fees Service Management
$ 869,128 - 5 -8 - 8 - 8 - % - % -
- - - - 425,478 - - -
3,292 - - - 34,328 1,552 12,093 4
732,293 - 47,476 - - - 8,923 -
38,187 - - 19,668 - 782 335,269 -
- - 60,000 - - - 184,214 -
1,642,900 - 107,476 19,668 459,806 2,334 540,499 4
- - - - - - 4,506 -
- - - 22,962 6,228 - - -
1,407,310 - - - 112,322 - 581,613 -
- 927 220,109 - - - - -
55,505 - - - - - - -
1,462,815 927 220,109 22,962 118,550 - 586,119 -
180,085 (927) (112,633) (3,294) 341,256 2,334 (45,620) 4
- - 55,000 - - - - -
- - - - (27,195) - (45,834) -
- - 55,000 - (27,195) - (45,834) -
180,085 (927) (57,633) (3,294) 314,061 2,334 (91,454) 4
550,162 98,593 (63,823) 50,522 3,624,685 170,219 1,282,670 2,608
$ 730,247 97,666 $ (121,456) $ 47,228 $ 3,938,746 § 172,553 $ 1,191,216 $ 2,612
(Continued)
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City of Menlo Park

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Non-Major Governmental Funds, Continued
For the year ended June 30, 2016

Special Revenue

Supplemental Bedwell
Storm Water Law Construction Bayfront
Management Enforcement Impact Park Recreation Sharon
(NPDES) Services Fee Maintenance In-Lieu Hills Park
REVENUES:
Other taxes $ - 8 - 8 - 8 - % - % -
Special assessments 345,431 - - - - -
Licenses and permits - - - - - -
Use of money and property - 604 40,396 4,348 12,962 524
Intergovernmental - 124,300 - - - -
Charges for services 2,500 - 1,821,534 - 103,400 -
Other - - - - - -
Total revenues 347,931 124,904 1,861,930 4,348 116,362 524
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General government - - - - - -
Public safety - 38,869 - - - -
Public works 229,605 - - 95,881 248,367 11,845
Culture and recreation - - - - - -
Community development - - - - - -
Capital outlay 4,169 83,505 2,792,626 - - -
Debt service:
Principal - - - - - -
Interest - - - - - -
Total expenditures 233,774 122,374 2,792,626 95,881 248,367 11,845
REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 114,157 2,530 (930,696) (91,533) (132,005) (11,321)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in - - - - - -
Transfers out (38,803) - (14,140) (13,635) - -
Total other financing sources (uses) (38,803) - (14,140) (13,635) - -
Net change in fund balances 75,354 2,530 (944,836) (105,168) (132,005) (11,321)
FUND BALANCES:
Beginning of year, as restated 422,672 63,394 5,048,723 529,485 1,428,915 57,653
End of year $ 498,026  $ 65924 $ 4,103,887 $ 424317  $ 1,296,910 $ 46,332
(Continued)
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Special Revenue Debt Service Capital Projects
Total
Community Library Recreation Measure T Non-Major
Vintage Oaks Development  Miscellaneous GO Bond GO Bond Library 2002 Governmental
Landscape Block Grant Trust 1990 2002 Addition GO Bond Funds
$ - % - % - - 8 - - 8 - % 1,611,420
- - - 26,762 1,490,719 - - 2,618,490
- - - - - - - 425,478
571 118,258 1,609 2,778 6,085 1,128 2,980 313,612
- (122,651) - - - - - 798,524
- 729 1,159,430 - - - - 4,228,297
- - 22,889 - - - - 267,103
571 (3,664) 1,183,928 29,540 1,496,804 1,128 2,980 10,262,924
- - - - - - - 4,506
- - - - - - - 68,059
7,917 - - - - - - 3,735,930
- - 27,451 - - - - 248,487
- - 990,632 - - - - 990,632
- - - - - 3,736 2,234 4,477,246
- - - 435,000 620,000 - - 1,055,000
- - - 11,750 919,650 - - 931,400
7,917 - 1,018,083 446,750 1,539,650 3,736 2,234 11,511,260

(7,346) (3,664) 165,845 (417,210) (42,846) (2,608) 746 (1,248,336)
- - - - - - - 477,876
- - - - - - - (291,497)
- - - - - - - 186,379

(7,346) (3,664) 165,845 (417,210) (42,846) (2,608) 746 (1,061,957)

67,008 1,384,986 895,874 742,551 1,381,201 126,034 328,767 26,337,706

$ 59,662 $ 1,381,322 $ 1,061,719 325341 $ 1,338,355 123,426 $ 329,513 $ 25,275,749
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City of Menlo Park

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

Highway Users Tax Special Revenue Fund

For the year ended June 30, 2016

REVENUES:

Other taxes

Use of money and property

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:

Current:
Public works

Capital outlay

Total expenditures

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance

FUND BALANCE:
Beginning of year

End of year

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amount (Negative)
717,084  $ 717,084  $ 742,292 $ 25,208
15,000 15,000 24,917 9,917
732,084 732,084 767,209 35,125
72,821 185,007 86,736 98,271
68,636 1,433,364 1,300,000 133,364
141,457 1,618,371 1,386,736 231,635
590,627 (886,287) (619,527) (266,760)
¥ 208,333 208,333 -
- 208,333 208,333 -
590,627  $ (677,954) (411,194) $ 266,760
3,273,170
$ 2,861,976
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City of Menlo Park

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

Federal Revenue Sharing Special Revenue Fund

For the year ended June 30, 2016

REVENUES:

Use of money and property

Charges for services

Total revenues

Net change in fund balance

FUND BALANCE:
Beginning of year

End of year

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amount (Negative)

2,000 2,000 $ 4,670 2,670

- - 29 29

2,000 2,000 4,699 2,699

2,000 2,000 4,699 2,699
132,880
$ 137,579
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City of Menlo Park

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

Landscape Tree Assessment Special Revenue Fund

For the year ended June 30, 2016

REVENUES:

Special assessments
Intergovernmental

Charges for services

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:

Current:
Public works

Capital outlay

Total expenditures

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Transfers in

Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance

FUND BALANCE:
Beginning of year

End of year

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amount (Negative)
562,668 $ 562,668 627,103 $ 64,435
- - 8,183 8,183
3,300 3,300 2,300 (1,000)
565,968 565,968 637,586 71,618
709,510 715,796 631,250 84,546
4,500 4,500 471 4,029
714,010 720,296 631,721 88,575
(148,042) (154,328) 5,865 (160,193)
159,600 214,543 214,543 -
(68,020) (68,020) (68,020) -
91,580 146,523 146,523 -
(56,462) $ (7,805) 152,388 $ 160,193
102,511
254,899
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City of Menlo Park

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

Sidewalk Assessment Special Revenue Fund

For the year ended June 30, 2016

REVENUES:
Special assessments

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:

Current:
Public works

Capital outlay

Total expenditures

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance

FUND BALANCE:
Beginning of year

End of year

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amount (Negative)
196,230 196,230 128,475 % (67,755)
196,230 196,230 128,475 (67,755)
66,058 66,585 68,160 (1,575)
115,683 346,604 213,000 133,604
181,741 413,189 281,160 132,029
14,489 (216,959) (152,685) (199,784)
(20,433) (75,376) (75,376) -
(20,433) (75,376) (75,376) -
(5,944) (292,335) (228,061) $ 64,274
429,277
201,216
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City of Menlo Park

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

Landfill Post-Closure Special Revenue Fund
For the year ended June 30, 2016

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amount (Negative)
REVENUES:
Use of money and property $ 35,000 $ 35,000 $ 40,513 5,513
Charges for services 725,000 725,000 744,469 19,469
Total revenues 760,000 760,000 784,982 24,982
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Public works 351,899 384,940 254,924 130,016
Capital outlay 25,000 228,576 22,000 206,576
Total expenditures 376,899 613,516 276,924 336,592
REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 383,101 146,484 508,058 (311,610)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers out (8,494) (8,494) (8,494) -
Total other financing sources (uses) (8,494) (8,494) (8,494) -
Net change in fund balance $ 374,607 $ 137,990 499,564 361,574
FUND BALANCE:
Beginning of year 4,206,969
End of year $ 4,706,533
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City of Menlo Park

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
County Transportation Tax Special Revenue Fund

For the year ended June 30, 2016

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amount (Negative)
REVENUES:
Other taxes $ 865,000 $ 865,000 $ 869,128 $ 4,128
Use of money and property 8,000 8,000 3,292 (4,708)
Intergovernmental 589,358 589,358 732,293 142,935
Charges for services 45,000 45,000 38,187 (6,813)
Total revenues 1,507,358 1,507,358 1,642,900 135,542
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Public works 1,444,719 1,653,216 1,407,310 245,906
Capital outlay 65,250 622,492 55,505 566,987
Total expenditures 1,509,969 2,275,708 1,462,815 812,893
REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES (2,611) (768,350) 180,085 (948,435)
Net change in fund balance $ (2611) % (768,350) 180,085 $ 948,435
FUND BALANCE:
Beginning of year 550,162
End of year $ 730,247
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City of Menlo Park

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

Public Library Special Revenue Fund
For the year ended June 30, 2016

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amount (Negative)
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Culture and recreation 20,843 20,843 927 19,916
Capital Outlay - 13,000 - 13,000
Total expenditures 20,843 33,843 927 32,916
Net change in fund balance $ (20,843) $ (33,843) (927) 32,916
FUND BALANCE:
Beginning of year 98,593
End of year 97,666
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City of Menlo Park

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
Literacy Grant Special Revenue Fund

For the year ended June 30, 2016

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amount (Negative)
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental $ 28,000 $ 28,000 $ 47,476 $ 19,476
Other 157,000 157,000 60,000 (97,000)
Total revenues 185,000 185,000 107,476 (77,524)
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Culture and recreation 233,301 233,301 220,109 13,192
Total expenditures 233,301 233,301 220,109 13,192
REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES (48,301) (48,301) (112,633) (64,332)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in 55,000 55,000 55,000 -
Total other financing sources (uses) 55,000 55,000 55,000 -
Net change in fund balance $ 6,69 § 6,699 (57,633) % (64,332)
FUND BALANCE:
Beginning of year (63,823)
End of year $ (121,456)
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City of Menlo Park

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

Narcotic Seizure Special Revenue Fund
For the year ended June 30, 2016

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amount (Negative)
REVENUES:
Charges for current services $ 19,668 $ 19,668
Total revenues 19,668 19,668
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Public safety 22,962 (22,962)
Total expenditures 22,962 (22,962)
Net change in fund balance $ (32%4) § (3,294)
FUND BALANCE:
Beginning of year 50,522
End of year 47,228
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City of Menlo Park

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

Downtown Parking Permits Special Revenue Fund

For the year ended June 30, 2016

REVENUES:

Licenses and permits

Use of money and property

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:

Current:
Public safety
Public works

Capital outlay

Total expenditures

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance

FUND BALANCE:
Beginning of year

End of year

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amount (Negative)

395,000 % 395,000 % 425,478 $ 30,478
30,000 30,000 34,328 4,328
425,000 425,000 459,806 34,806
21,400 21,400 6,228 15,172
311,464 357,464 112,322 245,142
- 19,000 - 19,000
332,864 397,864 118,550 279,314
92,136 27,136 341,256 (244,508)
(27,195) (27,195) (27,195) -
(27,195) (27,195) (27,195) -
64941  $ (59) 314,061 $ 314,120

3,624,685

$ 3,938,746
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City of Menlo Park

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

Storm Drainage Fees Special Revenue Fund

For the year ended June 30, 2016

REVENUES:

Use of money and property

Charges for services

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Net change in fund balance

FUND BALANCE:
Beginning of year

End of year

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amount (Negative)

1,000 1,000 1,552 552

5,000 5,000 782 (4,218)

6,000 6,000 2,334 (3,666)

- 10,694 - 10,694

- 10,694 - 10,694

6,000 (4,694) 2,334 7,028
170,219
172,553
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City of Menlo Park

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

Solid Waste Service Special Revenue Fund

For the year ended June 30, 2016

REVENUES:

Use of money and property
Intergovernmental
Charges for services

Other

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:

Current:
General government

Public works

Total expenditures

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance

FUND BALANCE:
Beginning of year

End of year

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amount (Negative)

10,000 $ 10,000  $ 12,093 2,093
8,753 8,753 8,923 170
335,000 335,000 335,269 269
- - 184,214 184,214
353,753 353,753 540,499 186,746
11,387 11,387 4,506 6,881
300,851 363,856 581,613 (217,757)
312,238 375,243 586,119 (210,876)
41,515 (21,490) (45,620) 397,622
(45,836) (45,836) (45,834) 2
(45,836) (45,836) (45,834) 2
(4321) % (67,326) (91,454) (24,128)

1,282,670

$ 1,191,216
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City of Menlo Park

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
Bay Area Air Quality Management Special Revenue Fund

For the year ended June 30, 2016

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amount (Negative)

REVENUES:
Use of money and property $ - 5 - 5 4 8

Total revenues - - 4

Net change in fund balance $ -5 - 4 %
FUND BALANCE:
Beginning of year 2,608
End of year $ 2,612
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City of Menlo Park

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

Storm Water Management (NPDES) Special Revenue Fund

For the year ended June 30, 2016

REVENUES:

Special assessments

Charges for services

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:

Current:
Public works

Capital outlay

Total expenditures

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance

FUND BALANCE:
Beginning of year

End of year

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amount (Negative)
329,000 % 329,000 % 345,431 $ 16,431
5,000 5,000 2,500 (2,500)
334,000 334,000 347,931 13,931
314,232 314,732 229,605 85,127
- - 4,169 (4,169)
314,232 314,732 233,774 80,958
19,768 19,268 114,157 94,889
(38,803) (38,803) (38,803) -
(38,803) (38,803) (38,803) -
(19,035) $ (19,535) 75354  $ 94,889
422,672
$ 498,026
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City of Menlo Park

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

Supplemental Law Enforcement Services Special Revenue Fund

For the year ended June 30, 2016

REVENUES:

Use of money and property

Intergovernmental

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:

Current:
Public safety
Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Net change in fund balance

FUND BALANCE:
Beginning of year

End of year

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amount (Negative)

400 $ 400 $ 604 $ 204
100,000 100,000 124,300 24,300
100,400 100,400 124,904 24,504
33,000 33,000 38,869 (5,869)
67,000 67,000 83,505 (16,505)
100,000 100,000 122,374 (22,374)
400 % 400 2530 $ 2,130

63,394

$ 65,924
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City of Menlo Park

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

Construction Impact Fees Special Revenue Fund

For the year ended June 30, 2016

REVENUES:

Use of money and property

Charges for services

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:

Current:

Capital outlay

Total expenditures

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers Out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance

FUND BALANCE:
Beginning of year

End of year

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amount (Negative)
25000 $ 25000 $ 40,396 $ 15,396
1,700,000 1,700,000 1,821,534 121,534
1,725,000 1,725,000 1,861,930 136,930
376,485 3,211,663 2,792,626 419,037
376,485 3,211,663 2,792,626 419,037
1,348,515 (1,486,663) (930,696) 555,967
- (14,140) (14,140) -
- (14,140) (14,140) -
1,348,515  $ (1,500,803) (944,836) % 555,967
5,048,723
$ 4,103,887
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City of Menlo Park

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

Bedwell Bayfront Park Maintenance Special Revenue Fund

For the year ended June 30, 2016

REVENUES:
Use of money and property

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:

Current:
Public works

Capital outlay

Total expenditures

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance

FUND BALANCE:
Beginning of year

End of year

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amount (Negative)

6,000 $ 6,000 $ 4348  $ (1,652)
6,000 6,000 4,348 (1,652)
89,901 89,901 95,881 (5,980)
5,000 5,000 - 5,000
94,901 94,901 95,881 (980)
(88,901) (88,901) (91,533) (672)
(13,634) (13,634) (13,635) 1)
(13,634) (13,634) (13,635) 1)
(102,535)  $ (102,535) (105,168)  $ (2,633)

529,485

$ 424,317
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City of Menlo Park

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
Recreation In-Lieu Special Revenue Fund

For the year ended June 30, 2016

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amount (Negative)
REVENUES:
Use of money and property $ 16,000 $ 16,000 % 12962 % (3,038)
Intergovernmental 25,000 25,000 - (25,000)
Charges for services 150,000 150,000 103,400 (46,600)
Total revenues 191,000 191,000 116,362 (74,638)
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Public works 912,902 1,029,006 248,367 780,639
Culture and Recreation - 95,855 - 95,855
Total expenditures 912,902 1,124,861 248,367 876,494
Net change in fund balance $ (721,902) % (933,861) (132,005) % 801,856
FUND BALANCE:
Beginning of year 1,428,915
End of year $ 1,296,910
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City of Menlo Park

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

Sharon Hills Park Special Revenue Fund

For the year ended June 30, 2016

REVENUES:
Use of money and property

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:

Current:

Public works

Total expenditures

Net change in fund balance

FUND BALANCE:
Beginning of year

End of year

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amount (Negative)

$ 700 700 524  § (176)

700 700 524 (176)

13,000 13,000 11,845 1,155

13,000 13,000 11,845 1,155

$ (12,300) (12,300) (11,321) % 979
57,653
46,332
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City of Menlo Park

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

Vintage Oaks Landscape Special Revenue Fund

For the year ended June 30, 2016

REVENUES:
Use of money and property

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:

Current:

Public works

Total expenditures

Net change in fund balance

FUND BALANCE:
Beginning of year

End of year

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amount (Negative)

700 700 $ 571 (129)

700 700 571 (129)

8,942 8,942 7,917 1,025

8,942 8,942 7,917 1,025

(8,242) (8,242) (7,346) 896
67,008
$ 59,662
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City of Menlo Park

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

Community Development Block Grant Special Revenue Fund

For the year ended June 30, 2016

REVENUES:

Use of money and property
Intergovernmental

Charges for services

Total revenues

Net change in fund balance

FUND BALANCE:

Beginning of year

End of year

Final

Variance with
Final Budget
Positive
(Negative)

9,000

&+

109,258
(122,651)
729

©+r

9,000

(12,664)

9,000

$ (12,664)



City of Menlo Park

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

Miscellaneous Trust Special Revenue Fund

For the year ended June 30, 2016

REVENUES:

Use of money and property
Charges for services
Other

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:

Current:
Culture and recreation
Community development

Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Net change in fund balance

FUND BALANCE:
Beginning of year

End of year

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amount (Negative)

1775 $ 1775  $ 1,609 $ (166)
- - 1,159,430 1,159,430
26,000 26,000 22,889 (3,111)
27,775 27,775 1,183,928 1,156,153
80,626 80,626 27,451 53,175
277,107 277,107 990,632 (713,525)
5,000 5,000 - 5,000
362,733 362,733 1,018,083 (655,350)
(334958) % (334,958) 165,845 $ 500,803

895,874

$ 1,061,719
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City of Menlo Park

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

Library Bond Debt Service Fund
For the year ended June 30, 2016

REVENUES:

Special assessments

Use of money and property

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:

Debt service:
Principal

Interest

Total expenditures

Net change in fund balance

FUND BALANCE:
Beginning of year

End of year

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amount (Negative)
- $ - $ 26,762 $ 26,762
4,000 4,000 2,778 (1,222)
4,000 4,000 29,540 25,540
435,000 435,000 435,000 -
11,750 11,750 11,750 -
446,750 446,750 446,750 -
(442,750) % (442,750) (417,210) $ 25,540
742,551
$ 325,341
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City of Menlo Park

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
Recreation GO Bond 2002 Debt Service Fund

For the year ended June 30, 2016

REVENUES:

Special assessments

Use of money and property

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:

Debt service:
Principal

Interest

Total expenditures

Net change in fund balance

FUND BALANCE:
Beginning of year

End of year

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amount (Negative)
1,400,000 $ 1,400,000 $ 1,490,719 $ 90,719
1,800 1,800 6,085 4,285
1,401,800 1,401,800 1,496,804 95,004
620,000 620,000 620,000 -
841,621 841,621 919,650 (78,029)
1,461,621 1,461,621 1,539,650 (78,029)
(59,821) % (59,821) (42,846) $ 16,975
1,381,201
$ 1,338,355
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City of Menlo Park

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
Library Addition Capital Projects Fund

For the year ended June 30, 2016

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amount (Negative)
REVENUES:
Use of money and property $ 1,000 $ 1,000 % 1,128 $ 128
Total revenues 1,000 1,000 1,128 128
EXPENDITURES:
Current
Culture and Recreation 15,000 15,000 - 15,000
Capital outlay 25,000 32,595 3,736 28,859
Total expenditures 40,000 47,595 3,736 28,859
Net change in fund balance $ (39,0000 % (46,595) (2608 % 43,987
FUND BALANCE:
Beginning of year 126,034
End of year $ 123,426
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City of Menlo Park

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
Measure T 2002 GO Bond Capital Projects Fund

For the year ended June 30, 2016

REVENUES:
Use of money and property

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Net change in fund balance

FUND BALANCE:
Beginning of year

End of year

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amount (Negative)
2500 % 2500 $ 2980 % 480
2,500 2,500 2,980 480
- 55,791 2,234 53,557
- 55,791 2,234 53,557
2500  $ (53,291) 746  $ 54,037

328,767

$ 329,513
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ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Water Operations Fund - Established to account for the water distributions operations of the Menlo Park
Municipal Water District.

Water Capital Improvement Fund - Accounts for the proceeds of the capital surcharge from water
operations and is utilized for construction improvements of the water infrastructure.
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City of Menlo Park

Combining Schedule of Net Position
Enterprise Funds

June 30, 2016

ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and investments
Receivables:
Accounts
Interest
Due from other funds

Total current assets

Capital assets:
Non-depreciable
Depreciable, net

Total capital assets

Total assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES
Employer pension contribution

Total deferred outflow of resources

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll
Deposits
Compensated absences
Due to other funds

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
Net pension liability
Compensated absences

Total noncurrent liabilities

Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES
Pension related amounts

Total deferred inflow of resources

NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for:

Capital projects
Unrestricted

Total net position

Water Water Capital Total
Operating Fund Improvement Fund Water Funds
$ 1,049,562 $ 11,059,541 $ 12,109,103
817,295 59,003 876,298
2,420 24,694 27,114
- 858,326 858,326
1,869,277 12,001,564 13,870,841
3,323,410 - 3,323,410
11,555,095 - 11,555,095
14,878,505 - 14,878,505
16,747,782 12,001,564 28,749,346
59,575 29,788 89,363
59,575 29,788 89,363
599,132 199,521 798,653
23,342 8,695 32,037
30,500 - 30,500
14,810 74,366 89,176
858,326 - 858,326
1,526,110 282,582 1,808,692
442,242 221,121 663,363
12,379 62,164 74,543
454,621 283,285 737,906
1,980,731 565,867 2,546,598
48,705 24,351 73,056
48,705 24,351 73,056
14,878,505 - 14,878,505
- 11,441,134 11,441,134
(100,584) - (100,584)
$ 14,777,921 $ 11,441,134 $ 26,219,055
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City of Menlo Park

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position
Enterprise Funds

For the year ended June 30, 2016

Water Water Capital Total
Operating Fund  Improvement Fund Water Funds
OPERATING REVENUES:
Water sales $ 6,934,682 $ 712,443 $ 7,647,125
Total operating revenues 6,934,682 712,443 7,647,125
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Cost of sales and services 6,075,885 720,099 6,795,984
General and administrative 285,288 - 285,288
Depreciation 197,127 - 197,127
Total operating expenses 6,558,300 720,099 7,278,399
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) 376,382 (7,656) 368,726
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Interest income 8,086 102,940 111,026
Gain (Loss) on sale of equipment (44,966) - (44,966)
Total nonoperating revenues (36,880) 102,940 66,060
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TRANSFERS 339,502 95,284 434,786
TRANSFERS:
Transfers in 1,099,682 - 1,099,682
Transfers out (220,185) (1,099,682) (1,319,867)
Total transfers 879,497 (1,099,682) (220,185)
Net income (loss) 1,218,999 (1,004,398) 214,601
NET POSITION:
Beginning of year, as restated 13,558,922 12,445,532 26,004,454
End of year $ 14,777,921 $ 11,441,134 $ 26,219,055
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City of Menlo Park

Combining Schedule of Cash Flows
Enterprise Funds
For the year ended June 30, 2016

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash received from customers/other funds
Cash payment to suppliers

Cash payments for general and administrative

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Transfers in

Transfers out

Net cash provided (used) by noncapital financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Acquisition and construction of capital assets

Net cash provided (used) by capital and related financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Investment income

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS:
Beginning of year

End of year

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET
CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net
cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation
Changes in current assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Deferred outflow of resources
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll
Compensated absences
Deferred inflow of resources
Net pension liability
Deposits

Total adjustments

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Water Water Capital
Operating Improvement Total
Fund Water Funds
7,069,475 7,798,153
(6,137,331) (7,381,573)
(360,980) (261,754)
571,164 154,826
1,099,682 1,099,682
(220,185) (1,319,867)
879,497 (220,185)
(1,130,525) (1,130,525)
(1,130,525) (1,130,525)
7,480 114,323
7,480 114,323
327,616 (1,081,561)
721,946 13,190,664
1,049,562 12,109,103
376,382 368,726
197,127 197,127
140,221 156,456
(7,479) (11,219)
(61,446) (585,589)
(22,520) (29,965)
(18,279) 105,841
(69,093) (103,641)
41,679 62,518
(5,428) (5,428)
194,782 (213,900)
571,164 154,826




INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

Internal Service Funds are used to account for the financing of goods or services provided by one department
or agency to other departments or agencies of the government and to other government units, on a cost
reimbursement basis.

Workers' Compensation Insurance Fund - This fund accounts for the administration of the City's

self-insured Workers' Compensation Insurance Program.

Liability Fire Insurance Fund - This fund accounts for the administration of the City's General Liability
Insurance program.

Other Post Employment Benefits - This fund accounts for the financial administration of funding from
all City departments for retiree medical benefits as these benefits are earned.

Information Technology - This fund accounts for administration and support of all hardware, software,
and communication equipment needs of the City's other departments.

Vehicle Replacement Fund - This fund accounts for the replacement of vehicles and equipment used by
various City departments.
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City of Menlo Park

Combining Statement of Net Position

Internal Service Funds

June 30, 2016
Workers' General Other Post
Compensation Liability Employment  Information Vehicle
Insurance Insurance Benefits Technology ~ Replacement Total
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash, cash equivalents and investments $ 2,257,778 1,053,807 $ 861,140 163,663 $ 382,469 $ 4,718,857
Receivables:
Accounts - 6,664 - - 1,750 8,414
Interest 5,040 2,353 1,947 395 853 10,588
Deposits and prepaid items 95,000 50,000 12,126 45,973 - 203,099
Total current assets 2,357,818 1,112,824 875,213 210,031 385,072 4,940,958
Capital assets:
Depreciable, net - - - - 1,043,979 1,043,979
Total capital assets - - - - 1,043,979 1,043,979
Total assets 2,357,818 1,112,824 875,213 210,031 1,429,051 5,984,937
LIABILITIES AND
NET ASSETS
Liabilities:
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 215,074 8,076 - 181,788 10,413 415,351
Accrued payroll 755 654 14,354 16,942 - 32,705
Due to other funds - - 336,869 - - 336,869
Claims payable, due within one year 776,093 75,289 - - - 851,382
Compensated absences payable,
due within one year 39 1,133 453 23,605 - 25,230
Total current liabilities 991,961 85,152 351,676 222,335 10,413 1,661,537
Claims payable,
due in more than one year 2,587,692 224,209 - - - 2,811,901
Compensated absences payable,
due in more than one year 33 946 (453) 19,732 - 20,258
Total liabilities 3,579,686 310,307 351,223 242,067 10,413 4,493,696
Net Position:
Net investment in capital assets - - - - 1,043,979 1,043,979
Unrestricted (1,221,868) 802,517 523,990 (32,036) 374,659 447,262
Total net position $  (1,221,868) $ 802,517 % 523,990 (32,036) $ 1,418,638 $ 1,491,241
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City of Menlo Park

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

Internal Service Funds
For the year ended June 30, 2016

OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for services

Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES:

Personnel services
General and administrative
Insurance

Depreciation

Total operating expenses

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):

Interest and investment earnings

Gain (loss) on sale of equipment

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TRANSFERS

TRANSFERS:
Transfers in

Total transfers
NET INCOME (LOSS)
NET POSITION:
Beginning of the year

End of the year

Workers' General Other Post
Compensation ~ Liability =~ Employment Information Vehicle
Insurance Insurance Benefits Technology  Replacement Total

$ 999,796 $ 805839 $ 927558 $ 1,132,313 $ 402,354 $ 4,267,860
999,796 805,839 927,558 1,132,313 402,354 4,267,860
59,004 25,054 614,831 653,343 - 1,352,232
(313) 27,018 5,193 511,314 - 543,212
1,429,193 548,134 - - - 1,977,327
- - - - 186,555 186,555
1,487,884 600,206 620,024 1,164,657 186,555 4,059,326
(488,088) 205,633 307,534 (32,344) 215,799 208,534
13,777 7,366 6,112 308 2,847 30,410
- - - - 47,567 47,567
13,777 7,366 6,112 308 50,414 77,977
(474,311) 212,999 313,646 (32,036) 266,213 286,511
200,000 - - - - 200,000
200,000 - - - - 200,000
(274,311) 212,999 313,646 (32,036) 266,213 486,511
(947,557) 589,518 210,344 - 1,152,425 1,004,730
$ (1,221,868) $ 802517 $ 523990 $ (32,036) $ 1,418,638 $ 1,491,241
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City of Menlo Park

Combining Statement of Cash Flows
Internal Service Funds

For the year ended June 30, 2016

Workers' General Other Post
Compensation  Liability =~ Employment Information Vehicle
Insurance Insurance Benefits Technology Replacement Total

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash received from other funds including cash deposits $ 1,015,541 $ 885832 $ 1,480,227 $ 1,132,313 $ 435,128 $ 4,949,041

Cash paid to suppliers (1,065,214) (595,408) (22,775) (375,499) 9,259 (2,049,637)
Cash paid to employees (70,915) (26,640) (600,477) (593,064) - (1,291,096)
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities (120,588) 263,784 856,975 163,750 444,387 1,608,308

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Proceeds from other funds 200,000 - - - - 200,000
Net cash provided (used) by noncapital
financing activities 200,000 - - - - 200,000
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from disposal of equipment - - - - 47,567 47,567
Acquisition and construction of capital assets - . - - (466,617) (466,617)
Net cash provided (used) by capital and
related financing activities - - - - (419,050) (419,050)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Investment earnings received (paid) 12,583 7,924 4,165 (87) 2,806 27,391
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 12,583 7,924 4,165 (87) 2,806 27,391
Net increase (decrease) in cash
cash and cash equivalents 91,995 271,708 861,140 163,663 28,143 1,416,649

Cash, cash equivalents, and investments at beginning
of year 2,165,783 782,099 - 354,326 3,302,208

Cash, cash equivalents, and investments at end of year $ 2,257,778 $ 1,053,807 $ 861,140 $ 163,663 $ 382469 §$ 4,718,857
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City of Menlo Park

Combining Statement of Cash Flows, Continued
Internal Service Funds

For the year ended June 30, 2016

Workers' General Other Post ~ Other Post
Compensation  Liability =~ Employment Employment  Vehicle
Insurance Insurance Benefits Benefits ~ Replacement Total
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING
INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH PROVIDED
(USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating income (loss) $ (4838,088) $ 205633 $ 307,534 $ (32344) $ 215799 $ 208,534
Depreciation - - - - 186,555 186,555
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to
net cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Accounts receivable 15,745 79,993 552,669 - 32,774 681,181
Prepaid expenses - - (315) (45,973) - (46,288)
Accounts payable 102,927 (3,776) (17,267) 181,788 9,259 272,931
Payroll liabilities (2/490) (861) 14,354 16,942 - 27,945
Insurance claim payable 260,739 (16,480) - - - 244,259
Compensated absence payable (9,421) (725) - 43,337 - 33,191
Total adjustments 367,500 58,151 549,441 196,094 228,588 1,399,774
Net cash provided (used) by
operating activities $ (120588) $ 263,784 $ 856975 $ 163,750 $ 444,387 $ 1,608,308
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City of Menlo Park

Combining Statement of Net Position

Agency Funds
June 30, 2016
Total
Refundable Cash Bonds Payroll Agency
Deposits Payable Revolving Funds
ASSETS
Cash and investments 724,210 2,900 - 727,110
Accounts receivable - - 47,927 47,927
Prepaids - - 324,696 324,696
Total assets 724,210 2,900 372,623 1,099,733
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 16,000 - - 16,000
Due to the City 372,623 372,623
Deposits 708,210 2,900 - 711,110
Total liabilities 724,210 2,900 372,623 1,099,733
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City of Menlo Park
Combining Statement of Changes in Net Position

Agency Funds
For the year ended June 30, 2016

Balance Balance
July 1, 2015 Additions Deductions June 30, 2016
Refundable Deposits
Assets:
Cash and investments $ 502,912 414,883 (193,585) $ 724,210
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ - 209,585 (193,585) % 16,000
Deposits 502,912 412,383 (207,085) 708,210
$ 502,912 621,968 (400,670) $ 724,210
Cash Bonds Payable
Assets:
Cash and investments $ 900 2,000 - $ 2,900
Liabilities:
Deposits $ 900 2,000 - $ 2,900
Payroll Revolving
Assets:
Cash and investments $ (229,225) 5,004,008 (5,238,999) $ (464,216)
Accounts receivable 3,098 82,819 (37,990) 47,927
Prepaids 310,508 1,014,304 (1,000,116) 324,696
Total assets $ 84,381 6,101,131 (6,277,105) $ (91,593)
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 84,381 13,583,014 (13,758,988) $ (91,593)
Total Agency Funds
Assets:
Cash and investments $ 274,587 5,420,891 (5,432,584) $ 262,894
Accounts receivable 3,098 82,819 (37,990) 47,927
Prepaids 310,508 1,014,304 (1,000,116) 324,696
Total assets $ 588,193 6,518,014 (6,470,690) $ 635,517
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 84,381 13,792,599 (13,952,573) $ (75,593)
Deposits 503,812 414,383 (207,085) 711,110
Total liabilities $ 588,193 14,206,982 (14,159,658) $ 635,517
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City of Menlo Park

Combining Schedule of Net Position

Private-Purpose Trust Fund - Successor Agency

June 30, 2016
Redevelopment
Obligation Redevelopment Total Successor
Retirement Fund ~ Dissolution Fund Agency Funds
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and investments:
Held with City $ 8,857,941 $ 10 $ 8,857,951
Accounts receivable 231,881 - 231,881
Total assets 9,089,822 10 9,089,832
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred loss of refunding 12,911,150 - 12,911,150
Total deferred outflows of resources 12,911,150 - 12,911,150
LIABILITIES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable 3,525 - 3,525
Interest payable 1,441,101 - 1,441,101
Deposits 108,891 - 108,891
Long-term debt:
Due within one year 3,115,000 - 3,115,000
Due in more than one year 56,882,364 - 56,882,364
Total liabilities 61,550,881 - 61,550,881
NET POSITION
Held in trust for other goverments (39,549,909) 10 (39,549,899)
Total net position $ (39,549,909) % 10 % (39,549,899)
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City of Menlo Park

Combining Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position
Private Purpose Trust Fund - Successor Agency

For the year ended June 30, 2016

Redevelopment
Obligation Redevelopment Total
Retirement Fund Dissolution Fund ~ Successor Agency
Additions:
Property taxes $ 7,065,305 $ - $ 7,065,305
Investment earnings (71,910) - (71,910)
Total additions 6,993,395 - 6,993,395
Deductions:
Program expenses of former redevelopment agency 12,065 - 12,065
Interest and fiscal agency expenses of former redevelopment agency 4,316,992 - 4,316,992
Total deductions 4,329,057 - 4,329,057
Change in net position 2,664,338 - 2,664,338
Net position - beginning of the year (42,214,247) 10 (42,214,237)
Net position - end of the year $ (39,549,909) $ 10 $ (39,549,899)
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Statistical Section

Fiscal Year 2015-2016
- Unaudited -

This part of the City of Menlo Park's comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed information as a context to aid in
understanding of the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required supplimentary information
regarding the City's overall financial health.

Financial Trend Schedule #

These schedules contain trend information to help the readers understand how the City of Menlo Park's financial
performance and well-being have changed over time.

Net Position by Component 1
Changes in Net Position 2
Fund Balances-Governmental Funds 3
Changes in Fund Balances-Governmental Funds 4
Revenue Capacity
These schedules contain information to help the readers assess the City of Menlo Park's most significant
local revenue resource, property taxes.
Governmental Funds by Source 5
Governmental Funds Taxes by Type 6
Assessed Valuation, Tax Rates, and Tax Levies 7
Debt Capacity
These schedules present information to help the readers assess the affordability of the City of Menlo Park's current
levels of outstanding debt and the City's ability to issue additional debt in the future.
Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates 8
Principal Property Tax Payers 9
Property Tax Levies and Collections 10
Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type 11
Direct and Overlapping Debt 12
Legal Debt Service Margin Informations 13
Demographic and Economic Information
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the readers understand the environment within
which the City's financial activities take place.
Demographic and Economic Statistics 14
Principal Employers 15
Full Time Equivalent City Employees by Function 16
Operating Information
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the readers understand how the information in the
City's financial reports relate to the services the City provides and the activities it performs.
Operating Indicators by Demand and Level of Service by Function/Program 17
Capital Asset Statistics by Function 18
Capital Asset and Infrastructure Statistics by Activities 19
Water Sold by Type of Customer 20
Water Service Rates 21
Miscellaneous Statistics 22
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Government Activities

Investment in Capital Assets, Net of
Related Debt

Restricted for:
Capital Projects
Debt Service

Community Development
Special Projects
Total Restricted - Government
Activities
Total Unrestricted - Government
Activities

Total Government Activities

Business-Type Activities

Investment in Capital Assets, Net of
Related Debt

Restricted for:

Capital Projects
Special Projects

Total Restricted - Business-Type
Activities

Total Unrestricted - Business-Type
Activities

Total Business-Type Activities

Source: City of Menlo Park

Net Position by Component

Financial Trend:

Schedule 1
June 30, 2016

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
$ 260,060,574 $ 265,272,383 $ 261,153,596 $ 259,274,758 $ 279,942,360 $ 345,357433 $ 347,050,366 $ 344,119,674 $ 341,158,440 $ 345,581,545
17,102,064 20,378,994 18,207,379 19,717,874 14,582,060 9,432,413 14,394,634 13,601,651 14,926,424 7,275,487
10,581,505 10,759,071 12,184,002 12,630,096 12,662,667 2,225,873 1,943,354 2,133,308 2,123,752 1,663,696
5,866,768 6,160,144 6,140,612 6,265,677 - - - - - 22,783,937
809,974 1,034,326 1,203,583 5,857,506 9,176,084 2,842,844 1,501,478 2,238,560 2,010,049 5,572,610
34,360,311 38,332,535 37,735,576 44,471,153 36,420,811 14,501,130 17,839,466 17,973,519 19,060,225 37,295,730
71,773,633 66,120,512 74,932,478 69,032,234 61,310,616 49,224,495 50,586,566 60,530,382 30,340,383 21,095,111
$ 366,194,518 $ 369,725,430 $ 373,821,650 $ 372,778,145 $ 377,673,787 $ 409,083,058 $ 415,476,398 $ 422,623,575 $ 390,559,048 $ 403,972,386
$ 7,391,343 $ 7,532,369 $ 7,620,626 $ 7,790,683 $ 8,536,711 $ 9,524,216 $ 10,079,682 $ 11,005,746 $ 13,990,073 $ 14,878,505
11,851,559 15,383,875 16,518,953 16,944,216 16,771,000 15,381,845 15,273,688 15,212,663 12,445,532 11,441,134
11,851,559 15,383,875 16,518,953 16,944,216 16,771,000 15,381,845 15,273,688 15,212,663 12,445,532 11,441,134
3,710,223 1,216,854 776,214 144,088 (397,806) (431,529) (735,629) (538,996) (431,151) (100,584)
$ 22953125 §$ 24,133,098 $ 24,915,793 $ 24,878,987 $ 24,909,905 $ 24,474,532 $ 24,617,741 $ 25,679,413 $ 26,004,454 $ 26,219,055

(Continued)
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Net Position by Component

Financial Trend:

Schedule 1
June 30, 2016
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
Primary Government
Investment in Capital Assets, Net of
Related Debt $ 267,451,917 $ 272,804,752 $ 268,774,222 % 267,065441 $ 288,479,071 $ 354,881,649 $ 357,130,048 $ 355,125,420 $ 355,148,513 360,460,050
Unrestricted Net Position 75,483,856 67,337,366 75,708,692 69,176,322 60,912,810 48,792,966 49,850,937 59,991,386 29,909,232 20,994,527
Investment in Capital Assets &
Unrestricted Net Position 342,935,773 340,142,118 344,482,914 336,241,763 349,391,881 403,674,615 406,980,985 415,116,806 385,057,745 381,454,577
Restricted Net Position 46,211,870 53,716,410 54,254,529 61,415,369 53,191,811 29,882,975 33,113,154 33,186,182 31,505,757 48,736,864
Total Primary Government Net
Position $ 389,147,643 $ 393,858,528 §$ 398,737,443 $ 397,657,132 % 402,583,692 $ 433,557,590 $ 440,094,139 $ 448,302,988 $ 416,563,502 430,191,441
% of Change - from Prior Year 3.7% 1.2% 1.2% -0.3% 1.2% 7.7% 1.5% 1.9% 5.9% 9.4%
4 N\
Total Primary Government N
$400,000,000
$300,000,000
$200,000,000
$100,000,000
$-
2007 2008
m  Restricted Net Position ] tricé:l Net Position = Investment in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt
N .\ J

Source: City of Menlo Park
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Changes in Net Position Financial Trends:

une 30, 2016 Schedule 2
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
Primary Government-Program Revenues
Governmental Activities
Charges for Services
General Government $ 3,676,393 $ 3,539,934 $ 3,123,825 $ 3,145,514 $ 2,878,920 $ 2,830,591 $ 3,125,908 $ 3,011,181 $ 3,053,753 $ 3,388,132
Public Safety 1,241,847 5,154,247 1,390,649 1,505,640 1,830,534 1,609,755 1,579,674 2,031,899 1,840,342 1,979,203
Public Works 6,541,634 3,837,839 2,753,607 2,922,929 4,109,836 3,650,442 6,924,069 6,189,576 7,472,508 7,149,654
Culture and Recreation 3,291,723 3,345,055 3,323,877 3,434,135 3,077,788 3,679,129 3,873,165 3,782,550 5,348,966 5,410,577
Community Development 6,170,024 3,952,454 4,145,205 2,122,221 3,408,895 4,994,156 3,695,171 5,467,278 5,350,231 8,200,673
Operating Grants and Contributions 3,251,025 2,369,502 2,428,500 2,557,313 2,185,417 2,729,866 1,644,022 1,438,966 1,876,305 1,976,101
Capital Grants and Contributions (1) 520,156 1,030,839 2,569,003 2,549,779 12,342,612 6,922,360 2,353,049 2,341,476 2,262,146 2,123,799
Total Governmental Activities-Program Revenues 24,692,802 23,229,870 19,734,666 18,237,531 29,834,002 26,416,299 23,195,058 24,262,926 27,204,251 30,228,139
Business-Type Activities
Charges for Services 3,881,115 4,483,145 4,352,147 4,258,917 4,935,649 5,750,659 6,633,147 8,046,619 8,165,645 7,647,125
Capital Grants and Contributions - - - - - - - - - -
Total Business-Type Activities Program Revenues 3,881,115 4,483,145 4,352,147 4,258,917 4,935,649 5,750,659 6,633,147 8,046,619 8,165,645 7,647,125
Total Primary Government-Program Revenues 28,573,917 27,713,015 24,086,813 22,496,448 34,769,651 32,166,958 29,828,205 32,309,545 35,369,896 37,875,264
General Revenues & Other Changes in Net Position
Governmental Activities
Taxes
Property Taxes (2) 20,634,276 23,292,838 24,213,136 23,753,592 23,936,578 13,239,856 15,731,889 15,156,065 16,824,728 18,227,209
Sales Taxes 6,799,561 7,676,943 6,865,152 5,499,244 5,988,055 5,938,310 6,043,870 6,444,292 6,527,498 5,425,089
Transient Occupancy Tax 1,375,914 1,474,119 1,351,578 2,074,486 2,453,981 2,939,475 3,468,256 4,158,809 4,720,226 6,268,171
Other Taxes 2,267,911 3,262,586 3,953,097 3,960,714 4,490,992 4,607,758 4,556,371 4,946,135 4,616,187 4,882,372
Total Taxes 31,077,662 35,706,486 36,382,963 35,288,036 36,869,606 26,725,399 29,800,386 30,705,301 32,688,639 34,802,841
Investment Earnings 5,175,930 6,076,112 4,645,732 2,085,808 1,431,440 1,133,432 647,963 982,640 1,205,744 1,169,712
Gain (Loss) on Sale of Capital Assets - - - - - - 547,749 264 45,544 47,567
Miscellaneous 372,534 706,444 193,370 30,125 235,145 255,185 107,652 1,222,100 234,380 1,144,891
Transfers 238,700 184,711 198,814 160,814 165,639 170,605 181,525 185,881 189,041 220,185
Extraordinary gain (3),(4) - - - - - 28,170,332 - 771,822 - -
Total Governmental Activities - General Revenues 36,864,826 42,673,753 41,420,879 37,564,783 38,701,830 56,454,953 31,285,275 33,868,008 34,363,348 37,385,196
Business-type Activities
Investment Earnings 750,700 957,071 667,230 242,433 135,619 103,480 (8,799) 117,849 146,647 111,026
Miscellaneous 344 10,000 935 - (5,953) - - (1,752) -
Transfers (238,700) (184,711) (198,814) (160,814) (165,639) (170,605) (181,525) (185,881) (189,041) (220,185)
Total Business-Type Activities - General Revenues 512,000 772,704 478,416 82,554 (30,020) (73,078) (190,324) (68,032) (44,146) (109,159)
Total Primary Government-Program Revenues,
General Revenues & Other Changes in Net Position 65,950,743 71,159,472 65,986,108 60,143,785 73,441,461 88,548,833 60,923,156 66,109,521 69,689,098 75,151,301

Source:  City of Menlo Park

Notes:

(1) In fiscal year 2010-11 and 2011-2012, capital contributions include construction of Arrillaga Family Gym, Recreation Center, and Gymnastics Center.

(2) In fiscal year 2005-06, Property tax in lieu of Motor Vehicle License fees was reclassified to Property Taxes.

(3) In fiscal year 2011-12, extraordinary gain was due to dissolution of the Community Development Agency. (Continued)
(4) In fiscal year 2013-14 extraordinary gain was due to the sale of the Hamilton Ave property.
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Expenses
Governmental Activities

General Government
Public Safety (4)
Public Works
Culture and Recreation
Community Development (5)
Interest on Long-Term Debt
Total Governmental Activities Expenses
Business-Type Activities
Water
Total Business-Type Activities Expenses

Total Primary Government Expenses

Net Revenue (Expenses)

Governmental Activities
Business-type Activities

Total Net Revenue (Expenses)

Changes in Net Position
Governmental Activities
Business-type Activities

Changes in Net Position

Notes:

Changes in Net Position
une 30, 2016

Financial Trends:

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
6,857,574 8,145,031 6,507,831 6,353,156 8,845,324 7,386,399 6,332,057 8,057,304 8,896,023 7,567,067
11,191,323 15,763,116 13,755,857 13,605,071 20,707,475 14,248,362 14,080,936 14,237,536 17,090,541 14,930,688
9,723,201 12,332,849 10,717,616 10,635,694 10,789,784 10,809,670 10,920,198 11,638,045 10,784,753 14,469,169
8,647,013 11,276,226 9,723,210 9,616,046 9,461,866 9,860,317 11,077,343 11,400,791 11,250,082 11,836,304
6,916,391 9,817,989 12,644,222 12,615,612 9,470,060 6,186,002 4,240,784 4,384,310 4,060,817 4,483,136
5,070,401 5,037,500 3,710,590 4,020,241 4,481,135 2,971,231 1,229,193 1,219,698 850,924 913,633
48,405,903 62,372,711 57,059,325 56,845,819 63,755,644 51,461,981 47,880,511 50,937,684 52,933,140 54,199,997
3,601,919 4,075,876 4,047,868 4,378,277 4,874,711 6,112,954 6,299,614 6,916,915 6,657,761 7,323,365
3,601,919 4,075,876 4,047,868 4,378,277 4,874,711 6,112,954 6,299,614 6,916,915 6,657,761 7,323,365
52,007,822 66,448,587 61,107,193 61,224,096 68,630,355 57,574,935 54,180,125 57,854,599 59,590,901 61,523,362
(23713,101)  (39,142,841)  (37,324,659)  (38,608288)  (33,921,642)  (25045682)  (24,685453)  (26,674758)  (25728889)  (23,971,858)
279,196 407,269 304,279 (119,360) 60,938 (362,295) 333,533 1,129,704 1,507,884 323,760
(23433,905)  (38735572)  (37,020380) _ (38,727,648) _ (33,860,704)  (25407,977) _ (24351,920)  (25545054)  (24,221,005) _ (23,648,098)
13,151,725 3,530,912 4,096,220 (1,043,505) 4,780,188 31,409,271 6,599,822 7,193,250 8,634,459 13,413,338
791,196 1,179,973 782,695 (36,806) 30,918 (435,373) 143,209 1,061,672 1,463,738 214,601
$ 13942921 $ 4710885 $ 4878915 $  (1L,080311) $ 4,811,106 $ 30973898 $ 6743031 $ 8254922 $ 10098197 $ 13,627,939

(4) In fiscal year 2010-11, City paid off a $ 7.1 million pension liability for safety employees.

(5) Includes fiscal year 2005-06 transfer of Hamilton Avenue housing and park site from the Community Development Agency of the City to the developers.

Ve W4 N\
Changes in Net Position Revenues and Expenses
$35,000,000
,000, $100,000,000 ——Total Primary
$30,000,000 $90,000,000 Government-Program
$25,000,000 $80,000,000 Revenues, General
$20,000,000 70,000,000 Revenues & Other
Changes in Net
$15,000,000 SEATHIED Position
$10,000,000 FILY e Total Primary
$5,000,000 $40,000,000 Government Expenses
s $30,000,000
$20,000,000
$(2,000,000) $10,000,000
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 M 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
A RN J
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Fund Balances - Governmental Funds Financial Trend:

Last Ten Fiscal Years Schedule 3
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 % 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
General Fund
Nonspendable $ 202,244 $ - % 1529495 $ 1196456 $ 1435026 $ 2227593 $  1,005376 $  1,076587 $ 1,072,888 $ 1,373,313
Committed 3,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000 14,000,000 14,000,000 14,000,000 16,240,000 15,930,000 20,852,000
Assigned 2,934,623 3,278,658 3,034,172 2,999,575 2,592,173 3,494,188 2,728,033 4,307,634 4,468,298 4,483,513
Unassigned 29,521,304 21,003,074 19,144,493 18,231,011 1,578,736 1,776,214 4,644,239 6,367,022 9,865,646 5,007,430
General Fund Balance 35,658,171 27,281,732 26,708,160 25,427,042 19,605,935 21,497,995 22,377,648 27,991,243 31,336,832 31,716,256
Other Governmental Funds
Nonspendable 6,186,018 6,160,144 6,140,612 2,554,413 2,475,807 4,233,517 4,907,442 565 2,041 -
Restricted 10,581,508 10,759,071 12,184,002 12,630,096 76,633,611 38,934,347 42,501,844 21,704,829 30,573,722 37,295,730
Committed - - - - - - - 14,350,759 17,888,242 12,594,224
Assigned 52,333,571 61,727,238 65,056,016 74,302,453 - - - 15,834,509 17,148,769 20,143,982
Unassigned (880,527) (94,386) - - (105,083) - - (54,106) (63,823) (121,456)
Total Other Governmental Fund
Balance 68,220,570 78,552,067 83,380,630 89,486,962 79,004,335 43,167,864 47,409,286 51,836,556 65,548,951 69,912,480

Total Governmental Fund Balance ¢ 103,878,741 $ 105,833,799 $ 110,088,790 $ 114914004 $ 98610270 $ 64665859 $ 69,786,934 $ 79,827,799 $ 96,885,783 $ 101,628,736

% of Change - from Prior Year 14.0% 1.9% 4.0% 4.4% -14.2% -34.4% 7.9% 14.4% 21.4% 4.9%

@ R
Total Governmental Fund Balance

$140,000,000 30.0%
$120,000,000 20.0%
$100,000,000 10.0%
$80,000,000 0.0%
$60,000,000 -10.0%
$40,000,000 -20.0%
$20,000,000 -30.0%
$- -40.0%
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
B Total Governmental Fund Balance
% of Change - from Prior Year
. J
Source: City of Menlo Park
* GASB 54 "Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions" implemented in 2010-11. (Continued)
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Fund Balances - Governmental Funds Financial Trend:
Last Ten Fiscal Years Schedule 3

Source: City of Menlo Park
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Revenues
Taxes

Secured property taxes
Unsecured property taxes
Other property taxes
Sales taxes
Other Taxes(1)

Special assessments

Licenses and permits

Fines and forfeitures

Use of money and property

Intergovernmental

Charges for services
Other Revenues

Total Revenues

Expenditures

Current
General Government
Public Safety(2)
Public Works
Culture and Recreation
Rehabilitation Loans
Community Development
Urban Development and Housing

Capital Outlay

Capital Expenditures

Debt Service
Principal(3)
Interest and Fiscal Charges(4)

Total Expenditures

Revenues over (under) Expenditures

Source: City of Menlo Park
Notes:

Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds

Financial Trends:

(1) Other Taxes include Franchise & Occupancy, Utility Users, Highway Users and County Transportation taxes.

(2) In fiscal year 2010-11, the large increase was due to paying off the PERS safety side fund.

(3) Principal payment due on the 2006 Las Pulgas Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds on January 1, 2008.

- Schedule 4
Last Ten Fiscal Years cheduie

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
$ 18,597,314 $ 21,081,671 $ 22,050,255 $ 21,912,423 $ 21,810,655 $ 12,258,233 $ 14,854,925 $ 14,081,491 $ 15,400,581 $ 16,927,658
1,337,681 1,752,345 1,817,213 1,422,317 1,577,479 404,916 351,099 384,686 414,466 466,089
699,280 458,822 345,670 418,851 548,444 576,707 525,865 689,888 1,012,292 940,188
6,799,561 7,676,943 6,865,152 5,499,244 5,988,055 5,938,310 6,043,870 6,444,292 6,527,498 5,425,088
4,664,247 5,878,652 5,214,176 5,940,486 6,774,780 7,530,245 8,007,960 9,085,311 9,729,062 11,054,349
2,537,408 2,661,078 2,894,276 2,824,098 2,818,829 2,862,076 2,831,235 3,131,099 2,938,371 2,618,490
3,657,542 4,376,750 3,208,028 3,069,990 3,586,374 4,093,978 4,845,041 6,222,575 5,562,806 6,372,725
897,568 951,145 1,105,836 1,028,825 953,194 1,067,328 998,259 1,253,261 1,346,449 1,349,853
5,542,009 6,162,279 4,528,617 1,918,576 1,406,100 1,102,320 594,476 955,817 1,170,488 1,677,993
2,750,760 3,533,679 3,180,550 3,219,749 2,547,164 2,325,236 2,276,829 1,757,274 2,158,680 2,616,291
13,884,432 10,713,906 10,221,426 8,738,183 10,486,567 11,943,461 13,225,264 13,312,487 14,801,784 16,906,213
372,534 702,342 186,473 334,959 234,550 270,567 202,137 141,434 234,380 331,756
61,740,336 65,949,612 61,617,672 56,327,701 58,732,191 50,373,377 54,756,960 57,459,615 61,296,857 66,686,693
5,938,008 6,168,001 6,372,271 6,442,817 6,209,988 4,545,864 5,204,412 5,567,633 6,297,514 5,521,808
11,212,320 12,476,614 13,371,606 13,532,394 20,568,030 13,978,279 13,831,018 14,194,657 14,955,891 15,933,746
7,387,498 7,774,129 7,991,160 7,768,455 7,929,428 7,886,059 8,174,802 8,130,751 9,795,903 11,352,894
7,813,935 8,359,386 8,669,415 8,570,915 8,286,639 8,287,074 9,014,947 9,330,874 10,015,841 10,055,990
3,233,905 4,325,628 4,533,291 4,354,345 4,061,407 5,560,374 3,937,710 4,248,952 3,513,848 4,533,057
3,439,609 4,101,470 4,236,426 7,312,083 5,399,919 614,951 286,699 133,523 78,606 153,767
2,989,734 4,545,565 6,405,132 8,314,011 16,030,908 10,215,010 7,904,805 5,999,875 1,483,122 1,730,011
2,483,647 8,589,250
475,000 2,115,000 2,215,000 2,305,000 2,420,000 2,570,000 760,000 620,000 1,000,000 1,055,000
3,768,661 4,868,947 3,540,575 3,581,456 4,295,839 4,254,712 1,255,585 1,230,855 862,315 931,400
46,258,670 54,734,740 57,334,876 62,181,476 75,202,158 57,912,323 50,369,978 49,457,120 50,486,687 59,856,923
15,481,666 11,214,872 4,282,796 (5,853,775)  (16,469,967) (7,538,946) 4,386,982 8,002,495 10,810,170 6,829,770

(Continued)

(4) Interest and Fiscal Charges include cost of issuance and bond insurance.
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Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds

Financial Trends:

i Schedule 4
Last Ten Fiscal Years checute
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfer In 16,376,591 7,551,944 10,799,042 7,159,491 7,297,500 9,722,425 6,091,632 2,994,261 4,699,084 9,873,559
Transfer Out (16,148,891)  (10,586,019) (20,058,856)  (7,188,677)  (7,136,686) (9,551,820)  (5,910,107)  (2,808,380) (4,523,543) (9,853,374)
Proceeds from Sale of Fixed/Capital Assets 3,985,446 282,503 - 1,381 3,204 - 766,855 1,080,667 - -
Proceeds from Debt Issuance 72,430,000 - - - 10,440,000 9,830,000 - - - -
Payment to Escrow Agent (70,525,172) - - - - (11,166,467) - - - -
Discount on Issuance of Debt (336,800) - - - 74,971 (73,725) - - - -
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 5,781,174 (2,751,572)  (9,259,814) (27,805) 10,678,989 (1,239,587) 948,380 1,266,548 175,541 20,185
Extraordinary gain(loss)(6),(7) - - - - - (25,814,163) - 771,822 - -
Net Change in Fund Balance $ 21,262,840 $ 8,463,300 $ (4,977,018) $ (5,881,580) $ (5,790,978) $ (34,592,696) $ 5,335,362 $ 10,040,865 $ 10,985,711 $ 6,849,955
% of Change -412.8% -60.2% -158.8% 18.2% -1.5% 497.4% -115.4% 88.2% 9.4% -37.6%
Capital Expenditures
Debt Service as Percentage
of Non-Capital Expenditures 9.8% 13.9% 11.3% 10.9% 11.3% 14.3% 4.7% 4.3% 3.9% 3.9%
4 N )
Net Change in Fund Balance Revenues & Expenditures
Millions $ Millions $
25 80
20
b 70
10 60
5
- 50
6)
(10) 40
15) &
20) 30
(25) 20
(30)
(35) I 10 = T T T T T T T T T 1
Ay A0S A5 AW AU A ANl AL A 206 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
O Net Change in Fund Balance ——Total Revenues ——Total Expenditures
& J )

Source: City of Menlo Park

(6) In fiscal year 2011-12, the extraordinary gain was due to dissolution of the Community Development Agency

(7) In fiscal year 2013-14, the extraordinary gain was due to sale of the Hamilton Ave. property
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Fiscal Year

Ending June 30

2007
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016

Total
Taxes
32,098,083
36,848,433
36,292,466
35,193,321
36,699,413
26,708,411
29,783,719
30,685,668
33,083,899
34,813,372

Source: City of Menlo Park
" General governmental revenues by source consist of the following City funds: General, Special Revenue, Debt Service, Capital Projects and Expendable Trusts.

Special

Assessment

2,537,408
2,661,078
2,894,276
2,824,098
2,818,829
2,862,076
2,831,235
3,131,099
2,938,371
2,618,490

Governmental Funds Reveues by Source

()

Licenses

and Permits

3,657,542
4,376,750
3,208,028
3,069,990
3,586,374
4,093,978
4,845,041
6,222,575
5,562,806
6,372,725

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fines and Use of Money
Forfeitures & Property
897,568 5,542,009
951,145 6,162,279
1,105,836 4,528,617
1,028,825 1,918,576
953,194 1,406,100
1,067,328 1,102,320
998,259 594,476
1,253,261 955,817
1,346,449 1,170,488
1,349,853 1,677,993

Inter-
governmental
2,750,760
3,533,679
3,180,550
3,219,749
2,547,164
2,325,236
2,276,829
1,757,274
2,158,680
2,616,291

“ In fiscal year 2006, Property Taxes in lieu of Motor Vehicle License Fees were reclassified from Intergovernmental to Property Taxes.

p

Charges for Other
Services Revenues

13,884,432 372,534
10,713,906 702,342
10,221,426 186,473

8,738,183 334,959
10,486,567 234,550
11,943,461 270,567
13,225,264 202,137
13,312,487 141,434
14,801,784 234,380
16,906,213 331,756

.
>
Total Governmental Revenues - June 30, 2016
Total Governmental Revenues
m 0.50%
70,000,000
= Total Taxes
m 25.35% Special Assessment
DN u Licenses and Permits
u Fines and Forfeitures
= 3.92Y%
50,000,000 u Use of Money & Property
 2.52% = Inter- governmental
40000000 - = 2.02% = Charges for Services
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 u Other Revenues
 9.56%
0,
V 3.93 /
Total Taxes Special Assessment
40,000,000 3,200,000
3,000,000
35,000,000
2,800,000
30,000,000 2,600,000
2,400,000
25,000,000
2,200,000
20,000,000 T T T T T T T T T ! 2,000,000 -
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
Y N
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Revenue Capacity:

Total Governmental
Revenues
61,740,336
65,949,612
61,617,672
56,327,701
58,732,191
50,373,377
54,756,960
57,459,615
61,296,857
66,686,693

(Continued)

Schedule 5



Governmental Funds Reveues by Source ® Revenue Capacity:

Last Ten Fiscal Years Schedule 5

Source: City of Menlo Park
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Governmental Funds Tax Revenue by Type

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Revenue Capacity:

Schedule 6

Fiscal Year Highway County Franchise Hotel Occupancy Utility Property Tax Total Total Governmental
Ending June 30 Sales Tax Users Tax Transportation Tax Tax Tax Users Tax (1) Secured Unsecured Transfer Tax Other Property Tax Funds
2007 6,799,561 534,699 669,280 1,442,686 1,375,914 641,668 18,597,314 1,337,681 588,158 111,122 20,634,275 32,098,083
2008 7,676,943 580,220 695,066 1,477,768 1,474,119 1,651,479 21,081,671 1,752,345 386,206 72,616 23,292,838 36,848,433
2009 6,865,152 533,784 630,996 1,535,223 1,351,578 1,162,595 22,050,255 1,817,213 278,290 67,380 24,213,138 36,292,466
2010 5,499,244 533,444 618,996 1,565,106 2,074,486 1,148,454 21,912,423 1,422,317 329,368 89,483 23,753,591 35,193,321
2011 5,988,055 770,967 679,286 1,747,605 2,453,981 1,122,940 21,810,655 1,577,479 457,701 90,743 23,936,578 36,699,412
2012 5,938,310 923,796 746,187 1,840,351 2,939,475 1,080,436 12,258,233 404,916 501,161 75,546 13,239,856 26,708,411
2013 6,043,870 783,719 812,249 1,848,480 3,468,256 1,095,256 14,854,925 351,099 460,683 65,182 15,731,889 29,783,719
2014 6,444,292 1,006,294 838,318 1,924,237 4,158,809 1,157,653 14,081,491 384,686 627,644 62,244 15,156,065 30,685,668
2015 6,527,498 950,205 888,189 1,900,746 4,394,156 1,187,020 15,400,581 414,466 947,710 64,582 16,827,339 32,675,153
2016 5,425,088 742,292 869,128 1,954,461 6,268,171 1,220,297 16,927,658 466,089 908,782 31,406 18,333,935 34,813,372
Source: City of Menlo Park and County of San Mateo
(1) City implemented Utility Users Tax in April 2007
@ N 4 \ D
Sales Tax County Transportation Tax
$10,000,000 $1,000,000 $950,000
900,000 $900,000
$9,000,000 2L $850,000
$800,000
$8,000,000 $750,000
$700,000
$7,000,000 $650,000
$600,000
HRLIILY $550,000
! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ' $500,000 T T T T T T T T T !
A —————— 20072008 2003’{0 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 " 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
: -' S y X
R 7 Y -
Franchise Tax
—_— Hotel Occupancy Tax Total Property Tax
$2,500,000
‘ $7,000,000 25,000,000
$6,000,000
$2,000,000 $5,000,000
$4,000,000 20,000,000
$1 ,500,000 $3/000,000
$2,000,000 15,000,000
$1,000,000
$1,000,000 —
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 ! ! : ! : : ! : ! ! !
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 10,000,000 - T T T " T T T T T )
[ ). 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
A A8 /

176



Assessed Valuation, Tax Rates, and Tax Levies
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year Less City's Taxable % of Change - Total Direct
Ending June 30 Secured Unsecured Exemptions Assessed Value from Prior Year Tax Rate
2007 7,919,201,296 544,875,879 (189,778,409) 8,274,298,766 5.8% 0.240%
2008 8,613,253,093 684,419,419 (210,102,184) 9,087,570,328 9.8% 0.240%
2009 9,144,410,123 745,589,266 (220,706,897) 9,669,292,492 6.4% 0.240%
2010 9,525,325,520 733,413,542 (242,215,879) 10,016,523,183 3.6% 0.240%
2011 9,632,437,282 741,119,897 (234,843,253) 10,140,348,118 1.2% 0.240%
2012(*) 9,701,542,385 712,158,100 (244,456,426) 10,169,244,059 0.3% 0.240%
2013 10,059,424,137 819,698,175 (258,752,495) 10,620,369,817 4.4% 0.240%
2014 10,793,653,677 809,314,081 (291,016,106) 11,311,951,652 6.5% 0.240%
2015 11,505,930,742 814,834,786 (305,046,407) 12,015,719,121 6.2% 0.240%
2016 12,752,897,442 927,792,380 (300,228,143) 13,380,461,679 11.4% 0.106%
4 D\
City's Taxable Assessed Valuation
9.8% 11.4%
$14,000,000,000 2 " L 120%
$13,000,000,000
10.0%
$12,000,000,000
$11,000,000,000 8.0%
$10,000,000,000 G
$9,000,000,000
$8,000,000,000 4.0%
$7,000,000,000
2.0%
$6,000,000,000
$5,000,000,000 0.0%
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012(*) 2013 2014 2015 2016
W City's Taxable Assessed Value % of Change - from Prior Year
& J

Source: County of San Mateo

Notes:
In 1978, the voters of the State of California passed Proposition 13 which limited property taxes to a total maximum rate
of 1% based upon the assessed value of the property being taxed. Each year, the assessed value of property may be

increased by an "inflation factor" (limited to a maximum increase of 2%). With few exceptions, property is only re-

asssessed at the time that it is sold to a new owner. At that point, the new d value is re d at the purchase
price of the property sold. The assessed valuation data shown above represents the only data currently available with
respect to the actual market value of taxable property and is subject to the limitations described above.

(*) Redevelopment Agency was transferred to Successor Agency due to dissolution
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Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(Per $1,000 Assessed Valuation)

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
City Direct Rates (1) 0.0024 0.0024 0.0024 0.0024 0.0024 0.0024 0.0024 0.0024 0.0024 0.0011
Overlapping Rates (2)
San Mateo County 1.0000 1.0000 1.0000 1.0000 1.0000 1.0000 1.0000 1.0000 1.0000 1.0000
Menlo Park Elementary 0.0416 0.0384 0.0399 0.0390 0.0410 0.0413 0.0402 0.0381 0.0486 0.0393
San Mateo Junior College 0.0184 0.0171 0.0165 0.0182 0.0193 0.0199 0.0194 0.0194 0.0190 0.0250
Menlo Park Debt Service 0.0052 0.0047 0.0048 0.0046 0.0042 0.0041 0.0038 0.0026 0.0025 -
Menlo Park Parks & Rec Bond 0.0132 0.0140 0.0141 0.0127 0.0127 0.0126 0.0118 0.0144 0.0115 0.0102
Sequoia Union High School District 0.0208 0.0205 0.0282 0.0277 0.0311 0.0358 0.0356 0.0313 0.0433 0.0434
Midpeninsula Reg Open - - - - - - - - - 0.0008
Total Overlapping Rates 1.0992 1.0947 1.1035 1.1022 1.1083 1.1137 1.1108 1.1058 1.1249 1.1187
Total Direct and Overlapping Rates 1.1016 1.0971 1.1059 1.1046 1.1107 1.1161 1.1132 1.1082 1.1273 1.1198
% of Change - from Prior Year 3.1% -0.4% 0.8% -0.1% 0.6% 0.5% -0.3% -0.4% 1.7% -0.7%
>
a e ( ; \) 7 )
% irect and Overlapping Rates
1.1400
1.1200
1.1000
1.0800
1.0600 (A y
1.0400
®U )
1.0200
1.0000
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
& )
Source:

(1) County of San Mateo, Property Taxes
(2) County of San Mateo, Tax Rate Book, Code 08-004
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FY 2015-2016

Principal Property Tax Payers

Current Fiscal Year and Ten Years Prior

Debt Capacity:

Schedule 9

Taxable Assessed Ratio to Total City's

Property Owner Rank Value Assessed Valuation
Facebook Inc. 1 $ 257,922,470 1.92%
Quadrus Sand Hill LLC 2 235,077,713 1.75%
Stanford Research Institute 3 164,847,161 1.23%

Sand Hill Commons Reit Inc 4 149,524,704 1.11%
Giant Properties LLC 5 135,042,133 1.01%
Kilroy Realty LP 6 134,282,024 1.00%
Menlo Prehc I LLC Et Al 7 130,500,528 0.97%
Peninsula Innovation Partners LLC 8 129,131,945 0.96%
BRE FMCA LLC 9 125,457,540 0.93%
Richard Tod Spieker Trust 10 102,863,189 0.77%
Total Top 10 Taxpayers' Totals $  1,564,649,407 11.66%
City's Total Assessed Valuation $ 13,420,964,589 100%
4 N
City's Top Ten Principal Property Tax Payers - June 30,2016
Quadrus Sand Hill LLC | ] 1.92%
Stanford Research Institute | ] 1.75%
Sand Hill Commons Reit Inc [ ] 1.23%
Giant Properties LLC [ 1.11%
Kilroy Realty LP [ 1.01%
Menlo Prehc ILLCEtAl [ 1.00%
Peninsula Imﬁxgtion Partrers ey
BREFMCA LLC [ 0.96%
Richard Tod Spieker Trust [ 0.93% Percentage
to the City's
| I— Total Assessed Valuation
= J
Source:
San Mateo County Tax Roll

California Municipal Statistics Inc
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Property Owner
Sun Microsystems Inc.
Tyco Electronics Corporation
Stanford Research Institute
Menlo Oaks Partners LP
Menlo Business Park LLC
Henry ] Kaiser Family Foundatis
AMB Property LP
Sharon Land Company

Boannon Assoicates
Alza Corporation

FY 2006-2007
Rank Value
1 3 355,306,777
2 265,794,098
3 138,651,818
4 80,248,834
5 66,470,757
6 63,253,187
7 61,411,902
8 53,840,533
9 43,399,107
10 41,144,873

Total Top 10 Taxpayers' Totals

City's Total Assessed Valuation

Taxable Assessed Ratio to Total City's

$  1,169,521,886

$ 8,317,035,365

Assessed Valuation
4.27%
3.20%
1.67%
0.96%
0.80%
0.76%
0.74%
0.65%

0.52%
0.49%

14.06%

100%

( N\
City's Top Ten Principal Property Tax Payers - June 30, 2007
Sun Microsystems Inc. I 4.27%
Tyco Electronics Corporation I 3.20%
Stanford Research Institute I 1.67%
Menlo Oaks Partners LP I 0.96%
Menlo Business Park LLC s 0.80%
Henry ] Kaiser Family Foundation s 0.76%
AMB Property LP s 0.74%
Sharon Land Company WSS 0.65%
Boannon Assoicates W 0.52% Percentage
. to the City's
Alza Corporation EEEE 0.49% Total Assessed Valuation
A )




Debt Capacity:
Schedule 10

Property Tax Levies and Collections
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year Property Tax Property Tax Percentage Subsequent Total Percentage
Ending June 30 Levies Collections of Collections Year Collections  Collections  of Collections
2007 20,634,275 20,634,275 100.00% - 20,634,275 100%
2008 23,292,838 23,292,838 100.00% - 23,292,838 100%
2009 24,213,138 24,213,138 100.00% - 24,213,138 100%
2010 23,753,591 23,753,591 100.00% - 23,753,591 100%
2011 23,936,578 23,936,578 100.00% - 23,936,578 100%
2012 (*) 13,239,856 13,239,856 100.00% - 13,239,856 100%
2013(**) 15,731,889 15,731,889 100.00% - 15,731,889 100%
2014 15,156,065 15,156,065 100.00% - 15,156,065 100%
2015 16,824,725 16,824,725 100.00% - 16,824,725 100%
2016 18,333,935 18,333,935 100.00% - 18,333,935 100%
Property Tax Collections
$25,000,000
$20,000,000
==t=Property Tax
Collections
$15,000,000
$10,000,000 T T T T T T T \
< ® o S S D A ) ©
WQQ '&Q f\,QQ WQN '19'\ Q‘Q'\ o WQ\ '\9'\ WQ’\
> P

Source:

County of San Mateo, Estimated Property Tax Revenue and Estimated Tax Increment Revenue

City of Menlo Park

Notes:

(*) In prior years, property tax levies included property tax increment from ther former Community Development Agencies.
The last year of such tax increment received was in 2010-11.

(**) One time property tax increase due to dissolution of the Redevelopment Area.
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Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year General Obligation Tax Allocation Total Primary Percentage of
Ending June 30 Bonds(1) @ Bonds ®  Government Debt Personal Income
2007 15,575,000 72,430,000 88,005,000 4.02%
2008 15,070,000 70,820,000 85,890,000 4.17%
2009 14,535,000 69,140,000 83,675,000 3.94%
2010 24,487,472 @ 67,395,000 91,882,472 4.10%
2011 23,874,973 65,585,000 89,459,973 not available
2012 21,775,595 © - ® 21,775,595 not available
2013 21,016,779 - 21,016,779 not available
2014 20,397,966 - 20,397,966 not available
2015 19,399,153 - 19,399,153 not available
2016 18,345,340 - 18,345,340 not available
N\
$100
2
5
= $80
=
$40
$20
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
= Total Primary Government Debt
J
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Debt Capacity:
Schedule 11

Outstanding Debt

Per Capita
2,825.56

2,728
2,626
2,853
2,760
672
639
617
582.40
548.46

@) ®)

Source: City of Menlo Park
Notes:
(1) General Obligation Bonds consists of 1996, 2002, 2009 General Obligation Bonds

(2) The City issued $10,440,000 in 2009 General Obligation Bonds
(3) General Obligation Bonds consists of 1996, 2009, & 2012 General Obligation Bonds

(4) Tax Allocation Bonds consists of 2006 Las Pulgas Project Tax Allocation Bonds

(5) The 1996 & 2000 Tax Allocation Bonds were refinanced with 2006 Refunding Bonds
(6) In fiscal year 2011-12 former Community Redevelopment Agency was dissolved
and all debts transferred

(7) County of San Mateo's personal income per capita

(8) U.S. Census Bureau, Quickfacts.Census.gov, Population



Direct and Overlapping Debt

June 30, 2016
Fiscal year 2015-16
City Assessed Valuation M $ 13,420,964,589
Outstanding Debt ~ Percentage Estimated Share of Ratio to City's
6/30/2016 Applicable ® Overlapping Debt Assessed Valuation
Direct and Overlapping Tax and Assessment Debt
San Mateo Community College District $ 644,384,027 7.525% $ 48,489,898 0.36%
Sequoia Union High School District 419,320,000 17.932% 75,192,462 0.56%
Las Lomitas School District 41,360,000 37.112% 15,349,523 0.11%
Menlo Park City School District 121,872,155 60.936% 74,264,016 0.55%
Ravenswood School District 7,410,000 43.775% 3,243,728 0.02%
Redwood City School District 31,768,206 2.240% 728,763 0.01%
Midpeninsula Regional Park District 45,000,000 5.952% 2,678,400 0.02%
City of Menlo Park 18,345,000 100% 18,345,000 0.14%
Total Direct and Overlapping tax and Assessment Debt $ 238,291,790 1.78%
Overlapping General Fund Debt
San Mateo County General Fund Obligations $ 432,359,816 7273% $ 32,535,076 0.24%
San Mateo County Board of Education Certificates of Participation 9,890,000 7273% $ 744,223 0.01%
Midpeninsula Regional Park District Certificates of Participation 122,305,886 5.872% 7,279,646 0.05%
Menlo Park Fire Protection District Certification of Participation 11,015,000 46.364% 5,175,398 0.04%
Total Overlapping General Fund Debt $ 45,734,343 0.34%
Overlapping Tax Increment Debt - Successor Agency 51,505,000 100% $ 51,505,000 0.38%
Total Direct Debt $ 18,345,000 0.14%
Total Overlapping Debt $ 317,186,133 2.36%
Combined Total Debt (2) $ 335,531,133 2.50%

- Total
Source: California Municipal Statistics, Inc.

Overlapping
Debt,
$317,186,133,
95%

®  Total Direct
Debt,
$18,345,000, 5%

(1) The percentage of overlapping debt applicable to the City is
estimated using taxable assessed property value.
(2) Excludes tax and revenue anticipation notes, enterprise revenue,

mortgage revenue and non-bonded capital lease obligations.
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City's Taxable Assessed Valuation

Conversion Percentage

Adjusted Assessed Valuation

Debt Service Limit Percentage

Debt Service Limit

Less:

General Obligation Bonds

Legal Debt Service Margin

Legal Debt Service Margin as a

Debt Capacity

Legal Debt Service Margin Information
Schedule 13

Last Ten Fiscal Years

2007

2008

2009

$ 8,274,298,766 $ 9,087,570,328 $ 9,669,292,492 $

2010 (1) 2011 2012 @ ® 2013 2014 2015 2016

10,016,523,183 $ 10,140,348,118 $ 10,169,244,059 $ 10,620,369,817 $ 11,311,951,652 $ 12,015,719,121 $ 13,380,461,679

2,068,574,692  2,271,892582  2,417,323,123 2,504,130,796 2,535,087,030 2,542,311,015 2,655,092,454 2,827,987,913 3,003,929,780  3,345,115,420
310,286,204 340,783,887 362,598,468 375,619,619 380,263,054 381,346,652 398,263,868 424,198,187 450,589,467 501,767,313
15,575,000 15,070,000 14,535,000 24,487,472 23,874,973 21,775,595 21,016,779 20,397,966 19,399,153 18,345,340

$ 294,711,204

$ 325,713,887

$ 348,063,468

351,132,147 $ 356,388,081 $ 359,571,057 $ 377,247,089 $ 403,800,221 $ 431,190,314 $ 483,421,973

Percentage of Debt Service Limit 95.0% 95.6% 96.0% 93.5% 93.7% 94.3% 94.7% 95.2% 95.7% 96.3%
4 M)
Legal Debt Service Limit
$500,000,000
$450,000,000
$400,000,000 ~#—Debt Service
Limit
$350,000,000 \
$300,000,000 —e—Legal Debt
Service Margin
$250,000,000 Source: County of San Mateo, Assessed Valuation Reports
$200,000,000 Notes:
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 (1) The City issued 2009 General Obligation Bonds
(§)) 2, 3 (2) The City refinanced 2002 Bonds with issuance of 2012 General Obligation Bonds
L J (3) Community Development Agency was transferred to Successor Agency
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Demographic and Economic Statistics
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Calendar City's County's Personal Income  K-12 Public School
Year Population Unemployment Rate Unemployment Rate Per Capita Enrollments
2007 31,146 3.0% 4.0% 72,941 4,177
2008 31,490 4.1% 4.7% 70,211 4,297
2009 31,865 7.5% 9.2% 65,414 4,498
2010 32,206 7.4% 9.2% 66,629 4,477
2011 32,412 7.0% 8.6% 69,577 4,678
2012 32,412 5.7% 71% not available 4,719
2013 32,881 4.6% 5.7% not available 4,835
2014 33,071 3.5% 4.3% 67,072 4,976
2015 33,309 2.5% 3.2% 69,802 5,062
2016 33,449 2.4% 3.1% 69,802 5,218

4 N\

Unem ployment Rates
10.0%
8.0%
=t City's
6.0% ;.{J:teemployment
4.0%
~—@— County's
U 1 t
2.0% Rate L en
0.0% | T T T T T T T T T
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
(S J

Source:

U.S. Census Bureau, Quickfacts.Census.gov, Population 2014 Estimate

U.S. Department of Commerce, bea.gov, CA1-3 Personal Income Summary, County of San Mateo Per capita personal income 2008-2014

California Department of Education, Data Quest/Enrollment over time, school year 2014-15 Menlo Park Elementary Schools K-12 and Menlo Atherton High School
California Labor Market Information, EDD, labormarketinfo.edd.ca.gov, October 2015
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Principal Employers
Current Fiscal Year and Ten Years Prior

2015-2016 2006-2007
Total Percentage of Total Total Percentage of Total
City's Principal Employers Rank Employees City's Labor Force Employees  City's Labor Force
Facebook, Inc 1 7,091 36% n/a n/a
Intuit Inc 2 3,931 20% n/a n/a
SRI International (*) 3 1,373 7% 1,200 8%
TE Corporation 4 597 3% 1,040 7%
Pacific Biosciences of California 5 330 2% n/a n/a
SHR Hotel, L.L.C. 6 315 2% n/a n/a
E*Trade Financial Corporation 7 313 2% 239 2%
Intersect Ent 8 275 1% n/a n/a
United Parcel Service (¥) 9 274 1% 244 n/a
Safeway Stores Inc (*) 9 245 1% n/a n/a
City of Menlo Park 10 259 1% 234 n/a
Top 10 Employers 15,003 77% 2,957 17%
Total Employment of the City's Labor Force 19,500 100% 15,400 100%
' )
City's Top 10 Employers, 2015-2016
Facebook, Inc [ r A 7 1 36%
Intuit Inc T =1 20%
SRI International (*) ] 7%
TE Corporation [ 3%
Pacific Biosciences of ... 2%
SHR Hotel, L.LL.C. [ 2%
E*Trade Financial...2] 2%
Intersect Ent [ 1%
United Parcel Service (*) [ 1% Percentage
Safeway Stores Inc (*) [ 1% of the City's Total Employment
City of Menlo Park [ 1% Labor Force
(& J
Source:

City of Menlo Park, Finance, Business License, calendar year, non-profit organizations' data is not available

State of California, Employment Development Department, Labor Force Report, Unemployment Rates/Labor Force, June 2004, 2013

Notes:
(*) Reflect 2014-15 data, updates not available
n/a Not Available
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Full Time Equivalent City Employees by Function Demographic and
Last Ten Fiscal Years Economic
Information:
Schedule 16
FTE by Department 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
Administrative Services 21.50 25.35 25.35 25.00 22.50 22.50 22.50 23.50 24.00 26.25
City Council 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00
Public Safety 69.50 76.00 76.00 75.75 74.75 69.781)  69.75 68.75 70.00 70.00
Public Works 56.25 57.25 57.25 56.00 55.00 55.50 54.50 54.50 55.50 68.00
Community Services 4975 4925 50.75 5150 52.00 48252 4825 4850 4750 4875
Library 15.75 15.75 15.25 14.50 13.75 13.75 13.75 13.75 13.75 14.00
Community Development 18.00 19.15 19.15 18.00 15.00 15.00 16.00 16.75 21.75 27.00
Total Full Time Equivalent Employees 235.75 247.75 248.75 245.75 238.00 229.75 229.75 230.75 237.50 259.00
e N 4 )
Total Full Time Equivalent Employees Full Time Equivalent Employees -
June 30, 2016
™ Community
Services \ ™ Library
20% / 6%
M Community
Development
® Public Wo! 9%
23%
® Administrative
Services
10%
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
™ City Council
® Administrative Services u Public Safety M Public Safety 2%
= Public Works ® Community Services 30%
u Library = Community Development L )

(.

Source: City of Menlo Park, Human Resources

Remarks:

M Reduction of 5.0 FTE includes the loss of the San Carlos dispatch contract, which resulted in the elimination of 4 FTE's for dispatch

@ Reduction of 3.0 FTE Housing Division during fiscal year 2011-12
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Operating Indicators by Demand Level of Service, by Function/Program Operating Information:
Last Ten Fiscal Years Schedule 17

Fiscal Year Ending June 30,

FUNCTION/PROGRAM 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
Public Incidents 36,206 37,997 41,200 39,217 40,675 44,405 41,206 40,964 39,605 39,456
Safety Calls for Service 18,721 19,736 20,015 19,840 19,752 20,469 22,383 21,021 21,293 21,384
Officer Initiated Incidents 17,485 18,261 21,185 19,377 20,923 23,936 18,823 19,943 18,312 18,072
Public Works Transportation:
Shuttle Passengers(1) 70,712 68,201 81,837 86,503 83,246 86,004 80,774 82,420 82,663 71,597
Engineering:
Encroachment Permits Issued 274 319 310 289 290 272 300 365 372 447
Culture and Parks and recreation:
Recreation Number of Activity Hours Provided (2) 21,902 119,674 37,869 48,270 37,964 1,662,457 2,403,979 3,095,612 3,312,426 3,354,773 (5)
Number of Recreational Activities Participants (3) 42,424 237,968 61,514 64,762 88,032 706,830 931,490 1,119,365 1,196,406 981,761 (6)
Library:
Books Volumes held 142,735 149,927 151,650 146,429 146,356 150,017 157,155 165,118 167,970 149,524
Video/DVD held 11,092 15,148 14,989 13,688 14,262 14,728 13,348 16,704 17,344 17,556
Books Volumes added 9,587 7,613 15,162 9,826 9,587 9,239 11,183 10,966 10,202 8,760
Total Circulations 590,261 707,073 756,808 742,555 726,189 624,699 672,967 682,381 609,387 587,909
Community Building Permits Issued:
Development Residential Buildings - Count 745 787 652 667 733 655 728 717 734 900
Residential -Value ($1000s) 70,643 84,006 51,761 42,033 49,618 44,545 64,932 65,386 118,952 215,219
Commercial Buildings - Count 185 170 187 160 202 231 229 180 187 174
Commercial -Value ($1000s) 112,118 73,820 42,435 32,419 46,756 78,055 61,201 238,585 282,621 151,139
Accessory Buildings - Count 99 99 74 87 85 73 100 91 90 138
Accessory -Value ($1000s) 1,290 2,337 1,039 1,188 1,812 1,925 1,876 3,752 3,999 3,985
Building Inspection Conducted 10,036 11,197 10,532 8,797 9,928 9,733 10,171 10,004 10,639 12,103
Housing and Redevelopment:
Below Market Rate - Units sold 8 16 5 2 2 2 1 4 0 0
Below Market Rate - Units resold 2 0 0 1 3 3 0 2 1 1
Housing Rehabilitation - New loans 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Housing Rehab Loans - Cumulative $ 1,744,741 1,459,047 1,440,877 1,340,433 1,312,380 1,210,372 960,179 917,315 799,640 698,128
Housing Rehab Homes - Cumulative Count 47 41 41 36 33 32 28 26 22 17
RDA - Housing Rehabilitation - New loans (4) - - - 4 3 0 0 0 0 0
RDA - Housing Rehab Loans - Cumulative $ - - - 193,000 347,785 337,285 328,676 299,139 258,558 236,375
Count - - - 4 7 7 7 7 5 5
Administrative Finance:
Services New Business License Applications 649 708 564 308 458 829 811 661 691 718

Source: City of Menlo Park
Note:
(1) Public demand of the free shuttles was increased in 2006-07 as a result of frequent promotions of the free service by the
City of Menlo Park Transportation Department and the participating companies who promote commute alternatives in peak hours.
(2) Increased programming in rooms previously used for child care at Burgess and new programs at the Onetta Harris
Community Center. The method of calculation may vary from previously submitted information.
3) Park and Recreation: Differences in department programming from year to year result in substantial variances in some totals.
4) Redevelopment Agency-Housing Rehabilitation Program started in fiscal year 2009-2010 and ended in January 2012
5) During fiscal year 2011-12, Activity Hour was changed to count every hour each participant in a program or using City service
6) During fiscal year 2011-12, Activity Participant was changed to count each visit (Continued)

(
(
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Operating Indicators by Demand Level of Service, by Function/Program Operating Information:
Last Ten Fiscal Years Schedule 17

Source: City of Menlo Park
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Capital Asset Inventory by Function Operating Information:

Last Ten Fiscal Years Schedule 18
Function Facility 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
General
Wl Civic Center-Administration 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Public Safety
Police Stations 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Streets (miles) 101 101 101 101 101 100 100 100 100 100
Streetlights 1718 1718 1718 1719 2233 2233 2233 2233 2233 2233
Traffic Signals 22 22 22 22 22 22 22 22 22 22
Public Works  waier:
- Daily average introduced into system
(1,000 gallons) 3431 3693 3230 3042 3038 3221 3238 3531 2633 2202
- Water storage (millions of gallons) 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6
- Water lines (miles) 55 55 59 59 59 59 59 59 63 59
Child Care Centers 5 5 6 6 6 3 3 3 3 3
Recreation Center 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Library 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Parks 13 13 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14
Community Centers 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 1 1
Parks and Senior Center 2 2 2 2 2 1 1 1 1 1
Recreation
Gymnasium 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Gymnastics Center 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Pools (locations) 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Medical Clinic 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 0 0
Gate House 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Dog Park Areas n/a 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2

Source: City of Menlo Park
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Capital Asset and Infrastructure Statistics by Activities

Operating Information:

Last Ten Fiscal Years Schedule 19
Non-Depreciable Depreciable
Land Real Estate  Construction Total Share Use Other Less: Accumulate( Total Combined
Land Improvement Held for Sale in Progress Non-Depreciable Buildings  Facilities Equipment Improvements Infrastructure Depreciation  Depreciable Total
204,949,233 32,900,109 - 600,561 238,449,903 46,933,785 - 5,912,705 12,717,853 105,533,229 (61,481,901) 109,615,671 348,065,574
204,949,233 32,900,109 - 2,971,197 240,820,539 46,933,785 - 6,162,913 12,782,089 106,952,666 (65,743,622) 107,087,831 347,908,370
204,949,233 32,900,109 - 3,318,133 241,167,475 46,933,785 - 6,383,215 12,792,366 107,911,764 (69,349,289) 104,671,841 345,839,316
204,949,233 32,900,109 446,725 5,889,419 244,185,486 47,218,382 2,600,000 6,384,363 12,792,366 108,730,291 (73,724,714) 104,000,688 348,186,174
204,949,233 32,900,109 648,285 6,979,308 245,476,935 65,959,147 2,600,000 6,464,074 12,878,068 109,994,804 (76,800,272) 121,095,821 366,572,756
199,254,256 32,900,109 1,643,404 2,112,344 235,910,113 76,591,580 2,600,000 6,929,594 16,259,990 110,974,228 (80,489,073) 132,866,319 368,776,432
199,256,305 32,900,109 733,597 2,537,004 235,427,015 76,762,760 2,600,000 7,064,784 16,370,783 113,871,991 (83,296,591) 133,373,727 368,800,742
199,256,305 32,900,109 - 1,953,563 234,109,977 77,022,447 2,600,000 7,329,067 173,248,051 114,657,739 (88,526,395) 130,407,663 364,517,640
199,256,305 32,921,636 - 2,362,145 234,540,086 77,198,498 2,600,000 6,818,988 17,615,799 115,318,426 (93,534,204) 126,017,507 360,557,593
199,256,305 32,921,636 - 4,007,088 236,185,029 78,908,590 2,600,000 6,978,110 17,865,240 119,176,312 (98,528,975) 126,999,277 363,184,306
1,066,454 - - 277,361 1,343,815 4,165,957 - 589,093 - 6,812,639 (5,520,161) 6,047,528 7,391,343
1,066,454 - - 561,544 1,627,998 4,159,460 - 621,809 - 6,812,639 (5,689,537) 5,904,371 7,532,369
1,066,454 - - 793,183 1,859,637 4,159,460 - 566,303 - 6,812,639 (5,777,412) 5,760,990 7,620,627
1,066,454 - - 1,133,544 2,199,998 4,159,460 - 569,755 - 6,812,639 (5,951,168) 5,590,686 7,790,684
1,066,454 - - 2,041,278 3,107,732 4,159,460 - 503,003 - 6,812,639 (6,046,123) 5,428,979 8,536,711
1,066,454 - - 1,555,026 2,621,480 4,159,460 - 542,565 - 8,371,534 (6,170,823) 6,902,736 9,524,216
1,066,454 - - 2,310,988 3,377,442 4,159,460 - 542,565 - 8,371,534 (6,371,319) 6,702,240 10,079,682
1,066,454 - - 3,436,621 4,503,075 4,159,460 - 540,323 - 8,371,534 (6,568,646) 6,502,671 11,005,746
1,066,454 - - 6,607,112 7,673,566 4,159,460 - 494,276 - 8,371,534 (6,708,763) 6,316,507 13,990,073
1,066,454 - - 2,256,956 3,323,410 7,823,985 - 525,118 - 10,111,882 (6,905,890) 11,555,095 14,878,505

Source: City of Menlo Park
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Capital Asset and Infrastructure Statistics by Activities

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Source: City of Menlo Park

g N
Capital Assets & Infras‘xh:u‘cture = Capital Assets & Infrastructure -
Governmental Activities Business-type Activities
Millions
ECl $15,000,000
$10,000,000
350
$5,000,000
300 : -
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 —
008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
_ J & /\
4 Y
Construction In Progress - o sAtion In Progress -
Governmental Activities iness-type Activities
$8,000,000
$7,000,000
$6,000,000
$5,000,000
$4,000,000
$3,000,000
$2,000,000
$1,000,000
2007 2008 2000 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 ' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' '
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
N |
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Water Sold by Type of Customer Operating Information:
Last Ten Fiscal Years Schedule 20

(in CCF)
Fiscal year ending June 30, ___
Type of Customer 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
Single Family 652,204 644,785 623,012 543,758 516,958 521,341 529,161 473,312 432,062 349,573
Multi-family 106,339 103,263 98,672 104,032 149,228 158,342 158,386 141,634 13,487 119,843
Commercial 253,596 251,400 258,675 229,159 211,796 190,988 215,162 245,206 235,530 212,187
Industrial 467,379 456,315 343,516 319,117 291,137 316,857 295,864 287,567 282,021 232,846
Landscape/Irrigation 159,097 170,846 160,021 142,781 163,080 166,262 181,100 155,937 148,509 110,982
Public Facility 107,003 127,811 119,814 89,655 67,389 85,474 77,494 66,833 61,828 50,526

Total Water Sold - CCF 1,745,618 1,754,420 1,603,710 1,428,502 1,399,588 1,439,264 1,457,167 1,370,489 1,173,437 1,075,957

Direct Rate(*) $ 68 $ 761 $ 848 $ 944 $ 1101 $ 1278 $ 1486 $ 1724 $ 2003 $ 20.86

( O AN |
Water Sold by Type of Customers @ Water - Direct Rate(*)
In CCF ° %
A $ $10.00 $20.00 $30.00
600,000 T
ingle &ily 2007 1
500,000 2008
Mu! mily 1
2009
(IGO0 /—O— 'ommercial 2010
300,000 —s— Industrial 2 I
2012 | )
200,000 —— [
Landscape/Irrigat ZuLs ]
100,000 —a—"Public Facility AE | /
2015 4
01 , , , , , , , , , ) 2016 |8 o
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 L
& AN J

Source: California Water Service Company, City of Menlo Park
Notes: 1 unit is 748 gallons
*Rate based on a minimum monthly service charge based on size of meter plus a charge for water consumed plus a surcharge per unit
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Water Service Rates Operating Information:

Last Ten Fiscal Years Schedule 21
Monthly Base Rate Fiscal Year Ending June 30th
by Meter Size 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
5/8" 5.60 6.26 7.01 7.84 9.14 10.65 12.41 14.46 16.84 20.08
3/4" 5.60 6.26 7.01 7.84 9.14 10.65 12.41 14.46 16.84 20.08
1" 8.95 10.02 11.21 12.54 14.61 17.03 19.85 23.12 26.94 33.47
1-1/2" 18.46 20.66 23.12 25.87 30.15 35.14 40.95 47.70 55.57 66.94
2" 29.65 33.18 37.13 41.55 48.42 56.43 65.77 76.62 89.26 107.10
3" 54.27 60.73 67.96 76.04 88.62 103.27 120.36 140.21 163.35 200.82
4" 83.93 93.91 105.09 117.59 137.04 159.71 186.12 216.83 252.61 335.36
6" 186.31 208.48 233.29 261.06 304.24 354.56 413.20 481.38 560.81 669.39
8" 413.47 462.67 517.73 579.34 675.16 786.83 916.98 1,068.28 1,244.54 1,071.02
10" 917.58 1,026.77 1,148.96 1,285.68 1,498.33 1,746.16 2,034.97 2,370.74 2,761.91 1,539.59
Additional charges (*)
First 5 units 0.90 1.00 112 1.25 1.46 1.70 1.98 2.30 2.68 -
Next 6-10 units 112 1.25 1.40 1.57 1.83 213 248 2.90 3.38 -
Next 11-25 units 1.34 1.50 1.68 1.88 219 2.55 2.98 3.47 4.04 -
All units over 25 1.79 2.00 224 2.51 293 3.41 3.97 4.63 5.39 -
First 6 units - - - - - - - - - 4.75
Over 6 units - - - - - - - - - 5.32
Capital Facility Surcharge (per unit) 0.35 0.35 0.35 0.35 0.41 0.43 0.47 0.48 0.51 0.78
4 N ™
Monthly Base Rates by Water Meter Size 2007 m 2016 Water - Additional Charge Rates(*)
Meter Over 6 units
Size §.| $10/ 5201 530/ $40/ $501 $60| $70| $80 | $90/$100 18110 15120 1130 $140/$150 || | 2016 < First 6 units
5/8" igii B Capital Facility Surcharge
/4t 2013 . g:::l‘;nl:::lls
1" 2012
2011 u Next 6-10 units
e 2010 BNext 1125 units
2" 2009
- 2008  All units over 25
" 2007
$0.00 $1.00 $2.00 $3.00 $4.00 $5.00  $6.00
N\ J \ J

Source: City of Menlo Park, Master Fee Schedules
Notes: (*) Additional charge is based on monthly meter readings, one unit is 748 gallons; Structural rate change in 2015-16.

The Menlo Park Municipal Water District charges an excess-use rate above normal demand.
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Miscellaneous Statistics Operating Information:

June 30, 2016 Schedule 22
Date of Incorporation November 23, 1927 ( Population by Race, 2014 B White alone N Housing Characteristics
Form of Government Council / Manager Total housing units 13,046
City Council Members 5 05.1% B 0.3% 3 10.9% [ African Amercian alone Occupied housing units 12,397
City Commissions 10 ® 1.8% . . Homeownership rate 55.9%
Arts, Bicycle, Environmental Quality, Finance & Audit, Housing, W 5.0% st Avasiganlone Housing units in multi-unit structures 38.1%
Las Pulgas, Library, Parks & Recreation, Planning, & Transportation o 72.8% 0 41% Ak dlene Median value of owner-occupied homes $ 1,000,001
Latitude, Longitute 3745N,12218 W X . Foreign born persons 23.4%
W Native Hawaiian & Other
Elevation 60 feet _ Pacific Islander alone J
Land Area in square miles, 2010 10.1 Social Characteristics Schools
Sunny Days a year 265 Percentage Speak English only Preschools 16
Average Annual Rainfall 15.71" Age5-17 18.6% Public schools, K-12 6
(Average Monthly Temperatures & Precipitations ) Age 18-64 65.6% Private schools, K-12 o
Age 65+ 15.8% Charter schools 2
Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Percentage Speak a language other than English: Adult education institutions 2
2(5) gg Age5-17 18.5% Colleges, public & private 3
60 %g Age 18-64 70.0%
gg %g Age 65+ 11.6% Utilities and other services:
45 D I:l I:l I:l D 05 Education Attainment -Population 25 years and over Water Services 4
40 0.0
Less than high school graduate 6.5% Sewer Service 1
[ W irmpeaime(Rypamn i iiel) == Ao Fed, @) High school graduate or equivalent 8.2% Refuse Removal & Recycling Service 1
_ J Some college or associate's degree 14.4% Gas & Electricity Service 1
Demographic Profile Bachelor's degree 30.7% Police protection, stations 2
Population, 2014 Estimate 33,309 Graduate or professional degree 40.2% Menlo Park Fire District, stations 7
People per square miles, 2014 3,289 Marital Status Hospitals/Medical Clinics 3
Male Persons, 2014 47.6% Never married 30.6% Health Support 4
Female Persons, 2014 52.4% Now married - except separated 54.1% U. S. Post Offices, branches 2
Median age (years), 2014 38.1 Divorced or separated 10.9%
Widowed 4.4% Local attractions, culture & recreation
Population by Age Group, 2014 Citizenship Status Allied Arts Guild
Native, 5 years and over 74.8% Menlo Atherton Performance Arts Center
18.4% Foreign-born, 5 years and over 25.2% Stanford Linear Accelerator Center (SLAC)
15.3% 12.0% A e - .
7.2% 43% 7.3%  6.2% Naturalized U.S. citizen 10.8% Sunset Publishing Corporation
Nota U.S. citizen 14.4% United States Geological Survey (USGS)
Under5 519 2024 2534 3554 55-64  65-74 75 and older Poverty Status in the past 12 months, 2012 Movie theater, the Guild 1
Below poverty level 6.5% Clubs/Orgainizations 13
At or above poverty level 93.5% Places of worship 22

Source: Menlo Park Chamber of Commerce, City of Menlo Park
Countrystudies.us/ united-states / weather/ california/ menlo-park.htm

U.S. Census Bureau, 2010 Demographic Profile Data , ACS Demographic & Housing Estimates 2008-2012
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AGENDA ITEM I-3
Administrative Services

STAFF REPORT

City Council
Meeting Date: 1/10/2017
Ty oF Staff Report Number: 17-007-CC
MENLO PARK
Informational Iltem: Information Technology Master Plan

Recommendation

This is an information item and does not require City Council action. A formal presentation as well as
request for direction will be presented to the City Council at their meeting on February 7, 2017.

Policy Issues
The Information Technology Master Plan (ITMP) fulfills a portion of City Council Work Plan item number 44.

Background

Faced with the daunting task of replacing several mission critical technology systems that are either at the
end of their useful lives or cannot provide user-friendly interfaces, the City Council’'s 2015 and 2016 Work
Plan identified an extremely important need to develop a comprehensive Information Technology Master
Plan (ITMP). The purpose of an ITMP is to serve as a multi-year road map for development,
implementation and utilization of technology in a coordinated effort organization-wide. The City contracted
with ClientFirst Consulting Group, LLC in August 2015 and staff has worked with the consultant over the
past 18-months to develop the attached ITMP. Completion of the ITMP marks a significant milestone for the
City since it has not had this type of structured plan in the past for what are arguably the most critical tools
necessary to deliver modern and efficient public services.

Analysis

The following discussion is intended identify three critical considerations as one reviews the ITMP. A more
detailed analysis of the plan’s content as well as a recommendation on next steps will be provided to the
City Council at their meeting on February 7. When reviewing the plan, the reader is encouraged to
consider the following:

1. The City’'s current technology systems are in critical condition and action over the next five
years is required to deliver modern and efficient public services. As contained in the
attachments to this cover memo, the ITMP identifies 110 strategic initiatives that address the dire
condition of the City’s current technology systems. Of the 110 initiatives, ClientFirst recommends
twelve initiatives as top priority. Top priority initiatives include technology backbone investments that
are largely considered prerequisites to successful implementation of other initiatives. Top priorities
also include application recommendations to replace critical business systems including a new
Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) system which provides information systems for financial,
human resources, planning and building operations. Additional applications recommended for
replacement are the City’s electronic content (city records) management system and the parks and
recreation registration system.

City of Menlo Park 701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025 tel 650-330-6600 www.menlopark.org
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In their assessment of the City’s IT systems, ClientFirst observed that the City’s current business
systems have resulted in significant inefficiency. Regular everyday tasks that may appear simple on
the surface are cumbersome. Tasks such as running financial reports or retrieving records from the
City’s document management system are extremely time consuming. In fact, the City’s financial
systems are so cumbersome that some operating departments have created their own financial
records and databases to provide for their management needs. This duplication of effort is an
inefficient use of the City’s resources but cannot be resolved unless the City prioritizes technology
investment and staff training.

ClientFirst’'s assessment also observed that current business systems are inadequate to facilitate
self-service processing of certain tasks. Internally, the City continues to use a paper timecard
system which relies on multiple longhand calculations by multiple employees to ensure that staff
members are properly compensated for hours worked. A self-service online timecard system would
significantly reduce the duplicative effort currently expended on the bi-weekly payroll processing.
Externally, the City’s planning and building system is at the end of its useful life and is no longer
supported by the software vendor. As a consequence, online self-service tasks such as pulling
certain simple building permits are not possible at present time. Both of these examples are ripe for
improvement through the implementation of modern software applications but will only succeed if the
City prioritizes technology investment and staff training.

2. Effective implementation of new technologies requires a substantial commitment of time and
both financial and human resources. The ITMP documents many opportunities for the City to
modernize its operations. Technologies, however, are only as good as the implementation effort and
the organization’s commitment to continuous training and process improvement. A case in point is
the annual production of the City’s budget and financial statements. As annual processes, many
aspects of the budget and financial statement preparation are prime for automation. In fact, the
City’s current systems have significant capacity to accommodate automation that streamline
production of these documents. Unfortunately, the City’s past implementation and ongoing
maintenance of the financial management systems did not make use of built-in efficiencies. In place
of automation, cumbersome manual processes concentrated in two key employees prevailed for
over a decade. When those two key employees left the City in 2015-16, the Administrative Services
Department’s ability to produce the budget and the financial statements was significantly impaired.
With proper resources dedicated to the financial management systems’ implementation, ongoing
upkeep and staff training, the loss of key employees would not have encumbered the city’s financial
operations. As the organization moves forward with the ITMP, it is critical that all departments have
the resources necessary to focus on high quality technology implementations, ongoing training, and
regular process improvement. In addition to resources, departments must make a commitment to
develop and own their core business systems and not rely on the IT support staff to build or maintain
department specific technologies. Without such ownership and a sustained multi-year commitment,
the initiatives outlined in the ITMP may not be a good use of public resources.

3. Implementation of the certain aspects of the ITMP is already underway due to business
necessity. In 2015, the City Council acknowledged the significant need for technology investments
and transferred $3 million from the General Fund to the General Capital Improvement Projects Fund.
This transfer has allowed staff to move forward with smaller initiatives that are necessary to maintain
business operations. The Administrative Services Department has begun work on top priorities such
as the network redesign and improvements to the IT server room. Additionally, the department is in
the process of implementing an online timecard and human resource management system to
streamline payroll processing. Finally, the department has undertaken a significant upgrade to the
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City’s financial reporting system that will provide unprecedented access to the City’s financial
records for both internal users and the public at large.

As an information item, the City Council is not being asked to make any decisions at its January 10"
meeting. Rather, given the size of the report, the information is being transmitted in advance of the staff's
presentation on February 7" so that the Council has the opportunity to review the document and make any
requests for clarification from staff over the next three weeks. At the Council’s February 7" meeting, staff
will be accompanied by ClientFirst and will present a proposed roadmap for the next five years and
discussion of the required funding to move forward. The action item on February 7™ will be a request for
Council direction about whether to include major ITMP initiatives in the upcoming and subsequent Capital
Improvement Program budgets.

Impact on City Resources

The ITMP is an informational item. As a multi-year planning document, it should be noted that the total price
tag of all General Fund initiatives is approximately $7.25 million, $3.0 million of which the City Council has
already earmarked for technology improvements. According to ClientFirst, the City of Menlo Park’s ITMP
budgetary requirement, $7.25 million, is in the middle of comparably sized municipalities taking into account
that Menlo Park is not the only municipality to have deferred investments in IT staff, equipment, and
application software.

The funds are not required all in the first year but will be necessary as individual components of the ITMP
come before the City Council for award of contract on items that exceed the City Manager’s signing
authority. Given the time required to complete the requisite needs assessment and subsequent Request for
Proposals process, it is unlikely that an award of contract will be presented to the City Council in the next six
to nine months.

Environmental Review
Environmental review is not required.

Public Notice

Public Notification was achieved by posting the agenda, with the agenda items being listed, at least 72
hours prior to the meeting.

Attachments

A. Report of Information Technology Master Planning
B. Information Technology Master Plan Appendix: IT Initiatives
C. IT Master Plan Report: Implementation Resource Requirements Matrix

Report prepared by:
Nick Pegueros, Administrative Services Director
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Engagement Purpose and
Background

Information Technology Master Plan Objective

The objective of the Master Plan included developing and articulating a vision for the effective
use of technology to support the work of the City, identifying strategies for developing and
implementing technology initiatives, and highlighting the cost benefits of doing so.

As a result of the need to go beyond IT strategies and have the Plan include specific tactical
and actionable IT initiatives, the terminology changed. The term “IT Strategic Planning” gave
way to a new term called “IT Master Planning”. The IT Master Plan deliverables included
strategies, as well as tactical and actionable IT initiatives.

We created a well-documented plan to guide the IT Team over the next five years in planning,
procuring, implementing, and managing current and future technology investments and
resources related to Information Technology Services provided to the City. The plan is the
result of a thorough analysis of the following:

e EXxisting hardware and network infrastructure, staffing, funding, applications, business
systems, projects, processes, telecommunications, training, and other investments and
resources currently in use by the City

e Interviews and workshops involving all levels of the City’s staff, including the Management
Team, end-users, and other stakeholders, recognizing limited staff availability

¢ Identification and prioritization of projects that the IT staff should undertake over the next
five years

e Identification of needs to accommodate current and future technology requirements, such as
data storage and management, legal requirements, security requirements, etc.

Deliverables

The Master Plan includes:

IT Vision and Principles

IT Initiatives (Projects) by priority
Top Priority Initiatives

Moving Forward

Timelines

Project Purpose and Background

¢ Methodology for implementation and
maintenance of the Master Plan

e Current Information Technology
Environment Summary
Key Benchmarking Metrics

e Strategies, Goals, and Objectives

IT Plan Budgets
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Methodology and Approach

We utilized a five-phase methodology on which we base our IT Master Planning projects. This
served as the cornerstone of the project, allowing the collaborative process to shape and
develop our recommendations and approach, enabling us to tailor each step to fit the City’s
unique specifications. We worked in partnership with the City to improve the IT environment so
it can better meet the needs of staff and constituents.

Project Initiation and
Technology Inventory

Set Expectations
Technology Inventory
Review Documentation

Needs Assessment
Workshops

Non-IT Department
Workshops

IT Infrastructure, Operations
and Staffing Review

Preliminary Documentation

CLIENTFIRST TECHNOLOGY CONSULTING

Research and
Preliminary Plan
Development

Assess Strengths and Weaknesses

Define Strategies, Goals and
Objectives

Develop Preliminary Initiatives and
Staffing Recommendations

Research Alternative Solutions

Preliminary Budgets and
Prioritizations

Planning and
Prioritization
Workshops

Project Sponsor and IT
GIS
Project Committee
Executive Management
Cost/Benefit, ROl Analysis

Final Report and

Presentations

Develop Final Reportand
Leadership Presentations
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Current Information Technology
Environment Summary

Summary IT Environment

City of Menlo Park
IT Environment Summary

City Hall
IT Staff (Full-time Equivalent - FTE)
City Employees (FTE) 250
User Log-Ins 350+
PC’s 385+
Public Safety Mobile Computers 30+
Laptops 30+
Mobile Devices (e.g.Tablets, Smart Phones, Cell phones, etc.) 20+
Telephones 275+
Cellular/Smart Phones 25+
Physical Servers 22+
Virtual Servers 85
Network Devices 75+
HE{]i Sl Windows, RedHat Linux
DEIELESIM  MS SQL, MS Access
Citywide software applications/modules Approx. 136
Avg. Reported Help Desk Tickets per Week 50
Closed 24 Hours n/a
Closed 48 Hours n/a
Closed 72 Hours n/a
Average Resolution Time n/a
Average Open after 7 Days 7

City management and staff have done an exceptional job of maintaining information technology
systems with the limited financial and staff resources available. The IT Manager and staff
deserve credit for how well the current IT envornment has functioned. Operating on the existing
situation is a testament to the patience of IT Management and staff.

Although the organization has gotten by with limited expenditures, a significant portion of the IT
infrastructure and some of the enterprise business applications, which are the backbone of
departmental operations and citizen services, are out of date, end of life, underutilized, and
behind peer municipalities. Continuing with outdated systems and undertrained employees is a
significantly less than the optimal approach. It takes more recurring staff time (and therefore
labor cost) to make up for the lack of up-to-date IT systems that are common in other municipal
governments.

Over the last few years, citizens have begun demanding more efficient interaction, online
transactions, and more transparent information availability. The City will not be able to manage
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these changes without updating, improving the management, and better utilizing enterprise
business applications and the IT infrastructure that supports them.

Key Statistics and Metrics

The following analysis provides feedback on three key measurements regarding IT operations:

NIV oo [eiaNaleVi=NQo e e NOIE=IM I T Spending vs. Operating Fund Budgets and Users

ARSI NRE I Overall IT Staffing vs. Key Equipment Counts
(RO T INSETETTNETESTO I RIS | T Equipment Replacement Schedules

These measurements provide an indication of issues that may affect the organization’s IT
effectiveness as it relates to providing IT support of systems and application solutions.

IT Spending versus Operating Budgets provides an overall indication of whether the IT function
receives a sufficient level of organizational resources to provide the necessary services.
Underfunding over time typically reduces IT’s ability to respond to requests, reduces system
availability, and negatively impacts organization-wide productivity.

IT Staffing Levels Versus Key Equipment Counts (e.g., servers, PCs, and total number of
logins) are often a reflection of IT staff productivity. With current up-to-date technology and the
proper productivity tools, an individual IT staff member can support more users, reducing overall
costs.

Capital Equipment Replacement is an important measure of the ability of hardware to
adequately support the ongoing vendor changes to application software. These changes often
require additional resources and hardware that are more robust. Slow capital replacement
cycles can result in increased downtime and slower system response times, overall.
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IT Spending versus Operating Fund Budgets

The following table depicts Menlo Park’s IT Spending versus Recommended Best Practices and
a municipal benchmark of 34 agencies.

Menlo Park Recommended Recommended
Benchmark

FY 15-16 Low High
2.35% 2.5% 2.82% 4.5%

Recommended High

Benchmark

Recommended Low

Menlo Park FY 15-16

T il

0% 1% 2% 3% 4% 5%

M Menlo Park FY 15-16 Recommended Low m Benchmark ® Recommended High

The 2015/2016 adopted budget for the general fund was $48,168,045, and the IT expenditure
budgets total for the same period was $1,132,313. The municipal spending benchmark range
from the survey was between 1% and 8%, with an average of 2.82%. The percentage of IT
expenditures versus operations budgets at Menlo Park is below the recommended low and the
average benchmark for other municipalities. The 2015/2016 budget period is the first year of
the City’s establishing an IT Internal Service Fund and therefore past years for IT expenditures
were not consistently reliable to represent and provide historical spending trends.

Overall, it represents recognizable underspending versus industry standards for IT infrastructure
and overall information technology solutions and support. The result of this underspend has
been an IT infrastructure that is obsolete in places, and a portfolio of application systems that
include many aging and underutilized departmental applications. A greater level of funding
would bring IT infrastructure up to date and improve the departmental applications tools
resulting in increased productivity throughout the City, and greater citizen transactions, service
access, and interactions through the City’s website.
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IT Staffing Ratios

The following table depicts Menlo Park’s IT Staffing Ratios for logins and equipment versus a
municipality benchmark of 47 similar agencies. These are commonly used measures in the
industry to validate staffing levels. As the number of individuals served and the amount if
equipment increases, staffing levels should also increase.

City of Menlo Municipality Recommended

Park Benchmark Best Practice
Logins 70 68 75
Servers 17 7 10
Computers 7 57 60

In this comparison, the City’s IT staff support more user logins and significantly more computers
and servers than their peers, and than advised by recommended best practices. This confirms
the findings in the report that describes IT staff training required and additional IT staff
necessary to support and secure the citywide IT environment as well as the City’s user
community.

Logins Servers
_/ _/
90 -0 75 20 17
75 iV 68
15
60 -

10

Computers
100
77
80
60
40
20
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Equipment Replacement

The following table represents IT Equipment Replacement Recommended Best Practices and a
municipal benchmark of 39 agencies.

: Municipal Recommended

37 VB TS Benchmark Best Practices
Laptops 4 4 4
PCs 4 4 5
Servers 5 5 5

The City’s current policy is in line with hardware replacement best practices. Although a four-
year replacement cycle for PCs is preferred, many of our clients have moved to a five-year
replacement plan, due to reduced capital funding.

We would recommend limited use of laptops as loaners for Internet browsing or as training
stations after four years of productive life, in order to avoid additional expendentures.
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IT Strategies, Goals, and Objectives

The strategies for leveraging and maximizing information system utilization in delivering City
services are listed below. Within each strategy, we have listed initial goals and objectives for
the City. We have translated those goals and objectives into specific initiatives in the Appendix
of the report. Additionally outlined later in the report are the budgetary costs for each initiative,
resource requirements, implementation time frame and, if appropriate, the next steps toward
implementation.

Improve Staff Productivity

e Introduce application management best practices.

Improve departmental ownership of applications.

Identify key roles and responsibilities for core business applications.
Increase user application training.

Provide key departmental personnel with report writer training.

* 6 o o

e Conduct process reviews and document application feature/function requirements to identify
automation and opportunities to streamline processes and reduce duplication, including:

Find areas for automating existing manual processes.
Perform processes within core application systems and eliminate side-bar spreadsheet
work and other shadow systems.

+ Fully implement reporting capabilities to ensure output that supports better business
decisions and measurement of performance goals (performance measures or KPIS).

e Utilizing return-on-investment (ROI) principles, identify areas for improvement, and use ROI
principles to justify additional applications to improve productivity and service.

e When justified, move to next-generation mobile computing (tablets and laptops).

e Provide the public and citizen online information and self-service capabilities, reducing staff
phone time and counter activity.

e Implement dual monitors for staff productivity gains.

e Use sustainability planning strategies to improve and maintain high network speed, network
reliability, and full citywide access.
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Implement IT Staffing Improvements

e Add senior network engineer level third party Subject Matter Expert (SME) to reduce burden
on IT Manager and provide specific expertise on a project by project basis.
e Add Business Systems Analyst position to assist with the following:

Selection and implementation of current generation software applications
+ Improvement of business processes to leverage new technology and increase efficiency

o Develop a training plan for each existing staff member.

Select and Implement a New Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) System

¢ Follow a system selection best practices approach to select an ERP system to replace the
following core application systems:

Cayenta (Financials)

ADP (HR and Payroll)

Tidemark (Community Development)
HdL (Licensing)

e This process should include the following:

* 6 o o

Assess and define needs.

Develop an RFP based on the needs assessment and defined needs.
Analyze and determine short-list.

Conduct detailed tailored demonstrations.

Perform reference checks.

Conduct site visits.

Select finalist.

Conduct due diligence and contract review and negotiation.

® 6 6 6 6 6 o o

e Implement per best practices with Project Management Office, utilizing PMI (project
Management Institute) standards.

Move Towards a Citywide GIS/Geospatial Application Perspective

e Move to a centralized GIS environment, and consolidate existing GIS system activity.
Provide further and improved GIS/Mapping services to the public on the City’s website.

¢ Include geospatial requirements as specifications for all future software application
acquisitions.

e Create a GIS Master Plan to identify GIS priorities and resource requirements.

e Move to a more collaborative model for collecting and updating GIS data with Web- and
mobile-based GIS applications.
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Ensure IT Governance and IT Best Practices

o Adopt a Best Practices approach to software selection and management.
+ Improve application analysis and reporting capabilities within the departments.

e Create and maintain project inventory.
e Utilize project management principles for larger projects.

¢+ Become date and project-schedule driven.

e Finalize documentation.

+ Create standard operating procedures.

Implement IT Governance Best Practices through IT Steering Committee

e Formalize an IT Steering Committee and Governance mechanism.

Review Help Desk metrics and identify training needs.
Monitor and review IT Initiatives.

Develop and review standards and policies.
Collaborate on projects and initiatives.

Act as a sounding board for management and staff.

* 6 6 o o

Maximize Utilization of Application Systems

Utilize software selection best practices for all new application procurements.
Follow implementation project management best practices.

Maintain a complete Application and User License Inventory.

Plan for and fund adequate user training and support.

Train key users so they can fulfill their roles without extensive work-arounds and
unnecessary reconciliations.

¢ Implement application management best practices, including:

¢ Fund an Application Support Specialist (Business Analyst) to support the applications
and the associated application users in the business departments.

¢ Create a culture of departmental enterprise application ownership for ERP system and
any other core departmental applications.

e Commit all levels, from management to line staff, to taking responsibility for adapting and
improving processes, and integrate them with core application software applications.
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Improve Application Management and Support

Improve departmental ownership of applications.
¢ |dentify key roles and responsibilities for core business applications.

Process Owners

Application Champions
Application/Business Process Analysis
Ad Hoc Report Writers

* 6 o o

e Add Business Analyst (Application Support Specialist) skill sets.

e Improve application analysis and reporting capabilities within the business departments
and/or the IT Division.

o Perform process reviews and document specific feature/function requirements for inclusion

in RFPs when procuring new applications.

Create and maintain Application and User License Inventory.

Follow software selection best practices for new software acquisitions.

Follow implementation project management best practices.

Create standard operating procedures.

Utilize industry subject-matter experts (SMES) for large, complex projects.

Strengthen Infrastructure Resilience and Disaster Recovery Capabilities

Identify high-priority systems and recovery time frames.

Expand virtual servers to reduce server count and increase failover.

Consider implementation of redundant Internet connections with automatic failover.
Finalize disaster recovery capabilities and plan.

Exercise plan annually.

Expand Citizen Communication and Online Customer Service

Increase online transaction capabilities.

Implement an integrated Citizen Request Management (CRM) system.
Online Planning Appication and Electronic Plan submittals.

Implement the following:

¢ Online Permits.

Online Permit Inspection Requests and Scheduling.

Online Code Enforcement Complaints.

Online Licensing Renewals.

Online Park and Recreation Program Registration and Payment.

* 6 o o0
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Improve IT Operational Efficiencies

Implement Help Desk software to effectively log calls and track/measure service levels.
e Develop metrics for the measure of IT service levels and measurement of IT performance.

+ Report on these metrics regularly.

e Analyze and track infrastructure performance and application response time.
e Implement an IT Services Portfolio and project management capabilities.

¢ As a part of the IT Services Portfolio, work with the IT Steering Committee to reach
agreement on reasonable service levels for Help Desk support.
+ Review responsibilities for services provided by IT to validate their necessity.

e Utilize these and other Operational Tools to report on the success of IT to the IT Steering
Committee.

Modernize IT Infrastructure and Create Uptime Metrics

e Insure that space planning and computer equipment room meets standards for space,
access, etc.
e Implement the following initiatives as included in the plan:

+ Network Redesign
¢ Core Switch Replacement
¢ Power Distrubution (UPSs and PDUS)

e Improve resiliency and uptime of infrastructure.

+ Design infrastructure to include cost-effective redundancies to reduce downtime.
¢ Create and track uptime metrics.

Implement Best Practices for Procurement and Project Management

e Procure large or complex equipment and services through a competitive process.
¢ Conduct an initial design phase for use during competitive bidding.

o Utilize best practices project management techniques for the implementation of larger,
complex projects.

+ Develop a project planning expertise and utilize project planning techniques to report on
project progress to management and the IT Steering Committee.

+ Integrate project management with management of the IT Services Portfolio and Project
Inventory.
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Information Technology (IT)
Principles

Vision / Mission Statement

The City of Menlo Park is dedicated to providing the highest quality technology-based services
in the most cost-effective manner to deliver services effectively and efficiently on a sustained
basis in a manner that reflects the organization's dedication to excellent customer service. The
City will ensure that its information systems are maintained in a secure environment, capable of
supporting technology advancements made by the City, and will exist in an integrated
environment that fosters an open, collaborative, and unifying culture. Information Technology is
committed to the values of:

Reliability

Professionalism and Integrity

Efficiency and Effectiveness

Innovation

Excellence

o gk wDdh e

Collaboration and Teamwork

e Given Finite IT Resources, the City will focus these resources on the most productive and
cost-effective projects.

o City departments will agree on a Collaborative Long-Term IT Vision and Strategies,
which requires active participation in setting IT priorities through an IT Committee made up
of department leadership.

e City will strive to Maximize Utilization of Existing Systems and prior investments in
application software, as well as to expand functionality and seek enhancements to existing
applications.

e City is committed to ensuring Sufficient Staff Training and Application Software
Knowledge of existing vendor systems.

e Department Ownership is fundamental to achieving maximum return-on-investment of
applications. Departments recognize the importance of assuming responsibility for
managing and implementing their specific core business applications, with the support of IT
staff. City departments are committed to taking responsibility for adapting and improving
processes to best integrate them with the application software.

e The City will develop an IT Services Portfolio so that all interested parties and stakeholders
understand the IT Division’s roles and responsibilities in servicing the City overall.
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IT Initiative Summaries

Introduction

IT Master Planning is a process to assess, research, prioritize, budget, and plan future
information technology initiatives. Some of the following initiatives are ready for approval and
implementation, while others require further assessment and research before the City can make
a final determination as to priority, resource requirements, and cost-benefit.

Productivity Improvement — Many of the following initiatives will have
a direct impact on overall productivity within the organization. Some of
these initiatives will significantly impact specific processes, reducing
staff time required to complete a certain process, while others will ease
or speed delivery of services to City residents.

Cost Savings — Many of the initiatives outlined herein will have direct
or indirect cost savings when implemented. Extensive return-on-
investment (ROI) calculations are not within the scope of this report.
An ROI Considerations discussion is included in the Appendix of the report.

IT Initiative Categories

The master planning process resulted in 110 initiatives. Combined, there are hundreds of
findings and recommendations. CLIENTFIRST classified the major findings and recommendations
into eight categories, including:

BEST PRACTICES IT OPERATIONS
DEPARTMENTAL APPLICATIONS TR
AND SYSTEMS

TELECOMMUNICATIONS

IT INFRASTRUCTURE IT STAFFING
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Best Practices

A best practice is a method that consistently provides results greater
than those achieved with other methods. CLIENTFIRST believes the
following best practices will enhance the City’s ability to select,
procure, and maintain more effective technology solutions in the
future, as well as improve the overall productivity of staff.

The IT Initiatives addressed within this category, explained in greater depth in the Appendix,

include:

IT Initiative Description

Return-on-Investment
Considerations

Overview showing how to understand ROI opportunities in the City
through various technology investments

IT Governance

Utilizing an ongoing IT Steering Committee to drive technology
education, policies, and the implementation of the IT Master Plan
over the next five years

Technology framework to ensure alignment of IT with the

COBIT environment through the adoption of best practices, metrics, and
oversight
ITIL Technology framework intended to assist organizations with IT

service strategy and IT operations

Applications Management Best
Practices

Establishing roles and responsibilities for IT Division, departments,
and users to improve overall utilization of software assets
maintained by the City

Applications and User Licensing
Inventory

Determining existing software applications and resources in use
by City staff

User Training and Support

Improving ongoing user training to maximize system utilization
and gain productivity and efficiencies

Training Room

Maintaining a room for testing applications that are being
implemented or for staff to improve existing competencies

Software Selection Best Practices

Following best practices needs assessments, evaluation, and
procurement when considering new or replacement software
solutions

Project Planning and
Implementation Best Practices

Implementing a best-practices approach for project planning,
implementation, and management

Maintaining Software Updates

Maintaining software updates for all applications and operating
systems for all users in a timely manner

IT Project and Services Portfolio

Developing a portfolio of City Applications and IT Division services
and standards, and communications to all management and staff
which can be used to delineate roles and responsibilities between
departments and IT, as well as set proper expectations

Sustainability Planning

Providing a more practical or realistic way to determine and plan
for the ongoing operational system needs and expenses of major
technology systems

Cloud Computing

Utilizing IT services or equipment that are not internal but
available through the Internet

Centralized Land and Parcel
Management

Consolidating Land/Parcel information for improved accuracy and
data retrieval and consistency of address and parcel information
across all software applications
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Departmental Applications and Systems

The Applications/Systems category includes initiatives primarily related to department business

applications identified during the needs assessment process. Many of these initiatives and
recommendations can have a significant impact on overall productivity, enhanced

communications, and information sharing, improved constituent service, improved transparency,

and in many cases, cost efficiencies.

The IT Initiatives addressed within this category, which are explained in greater depth in the

Appendix, include:

IT Initiative

Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP)
Replacement

Description

technologies to significantly improve City operations

and customer service. Common Application suites for

ERP systems include:

e Financial Management

e People Management (e.g., HR, Payroll, Time
Keeping)

e Land Management/Community Development

o Work Order/Maintenance Management

e Citizen Request Management

Replacement of existing system and adoption of newer

Project and Grant Accounting

Utilize Project and Grant Accounting modules

Contract Management

Utilize software to manage contract lifecycles

Cashiering Needs Assessment and
Replacement

Assessing each department’s cashiering needs to
determine optimal cashiering processes and solutions

Work Orders/Maintenance and Asset
Management System

Automating of work order and asset management
functionalities

Fleet Management

Automating fleet management with software

Land Management System Replacement

Replacing existing system and adopting newer
technologies to significantly improve City operations
and customer service. Modules commonly offered in a
Land Management application include:

e Project Planning / Zoning

Permits

Inspections

Code Enforcement

Business Licensing

Parcel / Address Management

Electronic Plan Submittals and Reviews

Receipts and reviews of electronic architectural plans
related to City permitting and planning processes

Human Resources System Improvement or
Replacement

Robust Human Resources system improvements or a
replacement of existing solutions

Employee Self-Service

Explore employee self-service needs and options

Time, Attendance, and Accruals Tracking

Automating and improving employee time and
attendance processes

Performance-Evaluation Software

Automating staff reviews based on individual
performance

Applicant Processing

Improving applicant processing capabilities in order to
reduce staff efforts
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Description

Training Management Software for improved
management and reporting of staff training and
ongoing requirements

Staff Scheduling System

Automating personnel scheduling through the use of a
technology solution

Project and Construction Management

Project and Construction Management Software to
provide automation in planning, scheduling, monitoring,
controlling, and reporting on City projects

Parks and Recreation Software
Replacement (eGov)

Replacement of current Parks and Recreation software
in order to gain more efficiencies and obtain more
functionaility

Citywide Facilities Scheduling/Events
Calendar

Benefits of a Citywide facilities scheduling and Events
calendar

Childcare Management System

Utilizing a solution that provides childcare capabilities

Electronic Content Management System
(ECMS) Replacement

Replacing current system with one that provides
advanced document and content management
features that include, but are not limited to, managing
records, managing record retentions, document
capturing, storage and retrieval, workflow automation,
FOIA request management, and providing electronic
forms and application capabilities with routing and
approvals (many of these systems also offer integrated
Agenda and Legislative Management for Council
meeting automation and managing resolutions and
ordinances)

Agenda Creation and Management Software

Obtaining an agenda management solution to improve
access to information for all departments involved in
the agenda process

Legislative Management

Using legislative management software for managing
and tracking resolutions and ordinances

Granicus Media Management Assessment
(Replacement)

Replacement of Council/Board meeting media
management system to allow for more capabilities at at
a more affordable cost

Large-File Sharing Tool

Consolidation of applications being used for sharing of
files that are too large for sharing via email

Video Capture and Editing (Video Events
and Other)

Migrating to a single video capturing and editing
environment

Photo Management and Storage Software

Professional-quality software that stores, manages,
and retrieves the extensive photo archives from
various City departments

Publishing Software Consolidation

Consolidation to a comprehensive all-in-one publishing
software solution, versus multiple vendors and
programs

Real-Time Utility Usage Access (Automatic
Meter Reading-AMR)

Realtime utility meter reading information that can also
be shared online for customers to monitor their usage
more frequently or potentially in real time

Website Improvements

Addition of features to the website to improve customer
service and streamline departmental website content
management
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Description

Using a single tool for simultaneously notifying City
residents and staff about important information, events,
status updates, or emergencies

Develop GIS Master Plan

Developing a Master Plan and business case for GIS
implementation and investment on a citywide basis

Department-Centric / GIS Self-Service

Ability for departments to access and utilize Web
mapping or GIS applications to perform ad hoc
inquiries and for customized citizen access

RIMS (CAD/RMS) Gap Analysis and
Application Maximization

Performing gap analysis to identify functionalities not
implemented but available in the existing RIMS system

Alarm Tracking and Billing Software

Automating processes currently being performed
manually for Alarm permitting and billing

Ticket Writer Software Replacement
(Duncan to TDS)

Continuing migration to the new TDS system

Officer Radio Transmission ldentification

Automatic identification of officers when they make
transmissions using their personal radios

Replace MDC'’s with RIMS Mobile/GIS
System

Considerations for moving to the RIMS new MDC GIS
mobile system

Tow Company Billing System

Automated tow billing software

FirstNet Preparation Planning

Continue efforts for current implementation of FirstNet
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Other Application and Departmental Systems Initiatives

IT Initiative Description

Police Audiovisual Format Conversion Tool Conversion of third-party surveillance systems to a
common file format.

Panic Button Use of panic buttons in more City facilities

Penal Code/Vehicle Code Reference Digital penal code/vehicle code software on computer

Software desktops

Portable Wireless Camera for Surveillance Portable wireless camera for surveillance

Wireless PA Radio PA/Sound System High-quality wireless radio system for events

Instant Messaging Instant messaging capabilities internally and with the
public

PA Announcements Automatic PA announcements in the Library

Parking Sensors and Management Reduction of traffic congestion by implementing
parking space sensors and electronic signage

Constituent Satisfaction Surveys Allow the public to complete satisfaction surveys

Laptop Borrowing Program System that manages public borrowing of laptops

Library Subscription Provider Statistics Analytics program for improved and quicker decisions
regarding Library subscription providers

HVAC Zonal Climate Control System Improved HVAC management
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Gov 2.0 (E-Government)

Gov 2.0 is a growing body of shared knowledge regarding the utilization of new technologies in
combination with creativity, information sharing, and the collaborative process to better serve
and interact with the public. The principles of Gov 2.0 include:

Principle 1 - Serve as the primary source of reliable,
accurate, and timely City information, L _
dselivered to the customer on his/her : :
platform of choice. T,

_ 1Gov 2.0

Principle 2 - Maintain a real-time, interactive, and user-
centered website that offers easy access to
public information and online services.

Principle 3 - Offer opportunities for online civic
engagement and social collaboration.

The possible benefits of developing such communication methods go beyond just simple
release of information. The advantages include:

e Increased efficiency and cost reduction for public

services offered electronically i
e Allowance of greater government transparency j e
e Better-informed and more involved public ?
e More collaborative efforts between the City and the

public
e Faster and more convenient access, promoting public satisfaction and approval

The IT Initiatives addressed within this category, which are explained in greater depth in the
Appendix, include:

IT Initiative Description

Citizen Request Management (CRM) Implement an integrated CRM system to track various
requests initiated by citizens online or over the phone,
including automated internal routing and status

reporting

Online Payments, Transactions, and Services | Provide citizens with 24/7 online transaction
capabilities.

Video/Web Conferencing Need to accommodate video conferencing
capabilities in City meeting facilities/conference rooms

Council Chambers Audiovisual Systems Improve Council Chambers room audiovisual
maintenance capabilities.

Conference Room Audiovisual Improve and standardize audiovisual capabilities for
all City conference rooms.

Social Media Policy and Procedures Develop a strategy for implementation, management

and utilization of social media in a secured, controlled
and standardized manner.

Mobile Computing Increasing productivity by adding remote computing
capabilities for staff in various departments

Newsletter Need to streamline newsletter signups and distribution

Dual Monitors Improve staff productivity by allowing an additional

workstation monitor for certain users — studies show
significant return on investment resulting from dual
monitor implementations
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IT Infrastructure

CLIENTFIRST conducted a detailed IT infrastructure assessment, including the network, servers,
equipment, inside/outside cable plant, and other communication infrastructures.

The IT Initiatives addressed for this category, which are explained in greater depth in the

Appendix, include:

IT Initiative

IT Computer Room and Teledata Closet
Improvements

Description

Enhanced computer room to meet industry standard
best practices

Wireless Network

Upgraded wireless network devices and improve public-
facing wireless

Internet Bandwidth

Increased Internet bandwidth capacity

Electronic Mail (Exchange)

Recommended improvements to the current Microsoft
Exchange platform

Enhanced Internet Security and
Connectivity (DMZ)

Improvements to the existing DMZ for internal and
external network security

Remote Access Upgrade

Improved remote access to SCADA systems for certain
staff members

Network Redesign

Redesign of core network for improved performance,
management, and elimination of single points of failure

Core Switch Replacement

Replacement of core switches that are not adequate for
the City’s current and future needs

Power Distribution

Procurement of additional power distribution units for
better control and monitoring of power to particular
network devices

Virtual Server Migration

Continued upgrading of existing virtual server
enviroment

Storage Area Network (SAN) Upgrade

Procurement of additional iISCSI-based SAN for failover
and redundancy (replication), which include instituting
Storage Tiering to improve performance of core data
and applications

Technology Support for the EOC

Upgrading equipment and technology to support use of
EOC in a large-scale emergency

Redundant CAD/RMS System

Redundant, secondary server in case the primary server
fails

Computer Upgrades (Windows XP & Office)

Considerations for upgrading to more current version of
Microsoft's operating system

Video Camera and Surveillance System
(Citywide Standard)

Asessment of the City’s multiple camera systems and
opportunities for improvement

Secure Managed Access (Wireless/Keyless
Security)

Assessment of the City’s access and control
requirements and potential for using a single, citywide
system
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IT operations are the daily support and maintenance of all IT infrastructure and user support.
These include the processes and procedures used by IT staff to maintain the network,
applications, and workstations. Initiatives related to IT operations are often focused on
productivity improvements and implementing IT best practices.

The IT Initiatives addressed for this category, which are explained in greater depth in the

Appendix, include:

IT Initiative
Help Desk Ticketing System

Description

Implementation of a citywide Help Desk
ticketing system and to establish IT response
time metrics

Mobile Device Management

Implementation of a Mobile Device
Management software to track, control, and
manage all mobile devices

Network Management Tools (Alerts/Alarms)

Implementation of network monitoring, alerts,
and alarms to provide early warnings for
potential problems and improve IT response
times

IT Support Metrics

Development of Help Desk ticket response
time and resolution goals, based on urgency,
and track response metrics by team member

Desktop Management

Imaging tool to deploy, install, and manage
basic application packages on computers

IT Automation Tools (Patch Management)

Software to automate installation of
application and security patches

IT Policies and Procedures

Revision of IT policies for passwords,
encryption, data usage, new hire and
termination procedures, backup procedures,
Web filtering, social media, etc.

IT Procurement Practices

Using objective best practice procedures for
procuring IT investments to ensure
independent specifications and best
cost/value is obtained for the City

IT Cost Recovery (IT Budget Allocations)

Developing an IT cost recovery model to
allocate IT costs fairly, using holistic review
and measurable to ensure use of services are

charged proportionately

:
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IT Security

IT Security refers to all security systems and practices, including Disaster Recovery, used to
protect City systems and data.

IT Initiative Description

Disaster Recovery Planning Developing capabilities to survive a major failure or
catastrophic event involving IT resources and facilities

Backups Improving maintenance and security for routine back up
procedures

IT Security Assessment Implementing improvements to network security

PCI Compliance Standards and laws that govern payment processing for
public and City security (mainly enabling secure card
transactions)

Records and Data Retention Policies and procedures for disposal/destruction of
electronic records and data

Two-Factor Authentication Implementation of user verification methods as an
additional security layer to user logins (i.e., “something
you have, plus something you own”).

SCADA Security Comprehensive auditing of SCADA systems and
installation of firewalls between networks

Disaster Recovery Planning

Disaster Recovery Ongoing DRP
Recovery Plan Systems DRP Testing Updates
(DRP) Implementation

Disaster
Recovery Kit
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Telecommunications

IT Initiative Description

Phone System Redundancy Implementation of additional digital telephone
connections to protect against single points of failure

IT Staffing

IT Initiative ‘ Description
IT Staffing Assessment of current staff size, additional staffing
needs, and potential solutions

Ability for IT Division operations to provide
application/business analyst roles and skill sets

Enterprise Applications Support Specialist
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Top Priority Initiatives

The following are a list of the Top Priority Initiatives that have been determined. The City has
made note of these as the inititiaves from this plan that should be kept in the forefront during the
future implementation of this IT Master Plan.

It should be noted that these initiatives are prioritized, denoted by “TP” (Top Priority) in the IT
Master Plan Capital Budget that is included as part of this IT Master Plan.

It should also be noted that these “Top Priority Initiatives” are not ranked in any particular order.
The City is contemplating such a ranking prior to beginning the implementation of the IT Master

Plan.

IT Initiative

Applications Management Best
Practices

Initiative
Number

Why on the Top Priority List?

The City has not had in place, nor followed
consistently, any policies, processes, or best
practices for the selection and implementation of
application software. As a result, there is a
significant amount of software duplication. There
also is a gap in IT for the support of software
applications. Best practices can manage software
acquisitions, and Application Management talent
(Business Systems Analysts) can help ensure
effective implementations and adequate software
management to realize a return on investment.

Centralized Land and Parcel
Management

15

This is heavily related to GIS and the need for the
City to develop a GIS Master Plan (see initiative
46). The core to City operations are land, parcels,
and addresses. The existing fragmentation and
lack of integration between applications has
resulted in separate addresses in multiple systems
that are the same but are not structured or spelled
the same, making it impossible to report on
addresses across all City environments. This
initiative will establish GIS as the master address
for all applications to use to ensure all addresses
and parcels are synchronized in all of the City’s
applications.

ERP System Replacement

16

This is the core system for the entire City. The
existing Cayenta, Tidemark, HdL, and ADP ADG
systems have aged and/or no longer meet the
needs of the City. Other ancillary systems and
shadow systems have been acquired or
developed that do not interface/integrate and
would not be necessary with the implementation of
a new ERP system. The ERP system is the set of
core applications that are used to operate all of the
City’s most common operations. It is critical to
update the the City’s ERP environment and to
keep it up to date into the future.
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IT Initiative JUEHE: Why on the Top Priority List?
Number

Land Management System 22 The City currently uses Tidemark as the main

Replacement system for Planning, Permits, Inspections, and

(To be executed as part of the Code Enforcement. The existing system has

ERP inititiative) aged, no longer meets the City’s needs, and is not
integrated with the rest of the City’s applications.

Human Resource System 24 The City is currently contracting with ADP for

Improvement or Replacement payroll and HR. The system has been difficult to

(To be executed as part of the maintain, and there have been difficulties in

ERP inititiative) implementing time keeping and time clocks. The

ADP system is hosted at ADP facilities and the
City pays a high annual fee for these systems.
Replacement of this system with new payroll and
HR applications as part of the new ERP system
would provide better capabilities and full
integration with the rest of the ERP system at a
much lower annual cost.

Parks and Recreation Software 32 The Parks and Recreation Department is a
Replacement (eGov) revenue-producing department in the City. The
system in use for managing operations and
collecting revenues is a system called eGov, which
has worked for the City up to this point. However,
eGov is not a park and recreation system, and it
cannot fully meet the needs of the City and of the
park and recreation patrons in the long term.

Electronic Content Management 85 Electronic Content Management Systems (ECMS)
System (ECMS) Replacement are enterprise systems that help store and retrieve
documents, impages, video, audio, and much
more. Other modules within the ECMS system
include Agenda Management, Legislative
Management, and the ability to integrate with
media management and the City’s Website. The
trend to utilize ECMS within cities is prevalent and
should be of high consideration for the City.

Develop GIS Master Plan 46 GIS and spatial maps are the future and will drive
many of the City’s operations moving forward. GIS
and maps also provide a visual interface for
citizens to access services and information.

Having a citywide approach to GIS will set the City
on a course to meet these geospatial and mapping
needs in the future.
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S Initiative A :
IT Initiative Why on the Top Priority List?
Number
IT Computer Room and Teledata 76 As part of the City’s existing space planning efforts
Closet Improvements plans have been made to move the existing IT

computer room and Teledata equipment. It was
determined that the exising plan for movement
lacks the proper requirements, including:

e Improper clearance behind the computer racks
(requirement is for 36 inches and City plan is for
24 inches)

e Server racks located directly beneath sprinkler
systems, placing them at risk for water damage

e Some equipment not connected to properly
grounded lines, and some not connected to
generator

e Lack of locally controlled HVAC service

e No environmental monitors in computer room

The City should seriously consider locating and
establishing the proper environment for its
computer room and teledata closet.

Network Redesign 82 The City’s network is the highway for
communication and the infrastructure upon which
all applications and tools reside and data travels.
Without a solid network design for MANs, WANS,
and LANSs, the investment in application software
tools will not be realized.

IT Policies and Procedures 98 The IT Manager expressed the need to allocate
resources to this endeavor to ensure proper
documents for day-to-day operations, but to also
ensure that document is in place, in case of any
turnover in staff resoucres.

IT Staffing 109 The talent to properly maintain the City’s IT
infrastructure and the City’s application systems
environment is critical to ensuring that IT
investments provide the level of productivity and
return expected. The alignment, positions, and
training recommended will ensure this is
accomplished.
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Benefits of Modern ERP Software

An Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) System automates and integrates many core, citywide
functions into a single solution, while automating manual processes and providing a central
location of information and reporting. An enterprise system allows collaboration and sharing of
information between divisions, departments, and citizens to provide a transparent and efficient
government operation. The benefits of an enterprise system are numerous and include:

e Built-in integrations between Land, Work, Financial, and People Management application
suites

Newer technology platform (processing, capacity advantages)
Real-time notifications/queues

Task tracking

Real-time access to information

Elimination of duplicate data entry

Improved data integrity

Centralized location and customer account maintenance
Reliable information

Workflow capabilities

Centralized cash receipt capabilities

Efficient revenue collection

Reduced operating costs

Improved internal communication

Foundation for future improvement

Potential reduction in annual maintenance and support fees
Improved online information for citizens to access

Example Enterprise Applications Overview

Wireless / Mobile
= Code Enforcement .
= Field Inspections Integration
= Work Orders
Revenue Management

" Accounts Grant
Citizen Access Receivable Management
Citizen Contact -

Management (CRM)
Cashienng
Integration
Work Requests

Reporting Citizen Relationship
Management (CRM)

Request
Management

Complaint
Tracking

Integration

Maintenance Management

Financial Management

» Code Enforcement
Applicant Tracki
Online Payments

ment/File Repository
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Financial and People Management

The financial management suite is a suite of an enterprise system that encompasses the
financial tasks and processes performed to ensure all organization-wide activity is properly
accounted for and accurately reported to local, state, and federal agencies. Benefits of a
financial management suite include:

Quick generation of financial reports

More efficient budgeting processes

Real-time access to available budget and funding

Better spending controls for departments and projects
Management of grants and funding sources

Real-time inquiries into capital improvement project progress

The people management suite manages the organization’s workforce and provides automation
to the human resources, payroll, time keeping, and applicant tracking functions. Employee self-

service is also available to allow employees the
flexibility in retrieving their information at their
convenience. Benefits of a people
management suite include:

Paperless personnel forms

One-time data entry

Tracking or misplacement of employee

paper files

Incorporation of employee self-service

(ESS)

Integration between time keeping, payroll,

HR and financial management

Quick and reliable reporting to federal and

state agencies

Improved employee satisfaction

Automated Time Entry Approvals and

Payroll Calculations

Minimal steps between processing payroll

and issuing direct deposits and checks C—
I

i | ]
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Employee Self-Service

Employee self-service (ESS) empowers employees to provide, change, and retrieve their
personal information through an online employee portal, thereby reducing the manual
interaction required with the Human Resources
Department. ESS offers an online option for 2
employees to access and manage information for m ————
themselves: I e

L

Address changes

Tax allowances changes

Open enrollment benefits
Dependent changes
Leave/vacation accrual balances
Electronic paystub copies
Year-end W-2s

Populating and retrieving time sheets
Time requests

Tax forms

Many other forms and applications

Reporting

The number one problem that is commonly seen when utilizing disjointed applications is the
extensive time users dedicate to the consolidation of information for reporting purposes.
Enterprise systems allow information to be quickly retrieved from a single source with numerous
readily available reports. Users are also able to create their own reports without requiring them
to be technical experts. This allows staff to spend more time
studying analytics rather than manually assembling reports.
Benefits of improved reporting include:

e Aggregated data across divisions, departments, and
organization

Improved data accuracy and reduced human error
Intuitive report creation capabilities

Board-ready reports

Sharing of created reports

Elimination of labor-intensive report creation

Individual User Dashboards

Dashboards form part of a user's home page and display reports, key indicators, and other
metrics regarding day-to-day operations, activities, and historical trends. Benefits of
dashboards include:

Quick links for immediate access to required tasks and approvals ‘
Easy modification of dashboards for each user’s preference —
Automated generation of dashboard information =
Transformation of data into visual information .
Easy-to-understand graphics

Real-time analysis T :
Drill-down access to activity detail LUTTTETD

b,
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Mobile Computing

Mobile computing provides the flexibility to operate a more mobile and productive workforce. An
enterprise system can allow staff to utilize applications while in the field in order to perform their
job functions while away from their office. Common benefits of
mobile computing include:

Completion of work while in the field

Real-time access to information

Inspection results in the field

Receipt of notifications and job assignments
Reduced travel to and from office locations

Map routing based on location of activities
Retrieval of mapping information

Management of code enforcement cases in field

Online Citizen Access

Online citizen access enables a more transparent government by providing the public with 24/7
access to real-time information for inquiries and payment processing. This empowers residents
to retrieve online information that is pertinent to each individual, and for them to take further
actions, which improves customer relations by
eliminating the need to be physically present at City
Hall. The following are examples of online citizen
access transactions:

Online permit applications

Submit and access plan review comments
Online payments

Submit complaints

Submit citizen requests

Submit inspection requests

Access to inspection results

GIS maps (zoning, voting cities, etc.)

Citizen Request Management

A citizen request management system is used to track, manage, and resolve citizen concerns
and requests in a timely manner by automatically routing citizen requests to the appropriate
department. It also provides the citizen with the flexibility to submit and track their complaints
through the Web or a mobile phone application.
Common benefits of a citizen request management
system include:

e Ability for citizens to submit requests 24/7
through a phone application or the website

e Automatic assignment and routing of requests,
by type, to appropriate department(s) or staff

e Ability for citizens to view current request status
Conversion of requests to work orders

e Ability to include photos and geolocation of a
request

¢ More effective and efficient processes

e Improved transparency and citizen relationships
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Land Management

The Land Management system is one of the suites that are offered by enterprise application
systems and manages the creation, issuance, and tracking of community development activities
related to planning and zoning, permitting, building inspections, licensing, and code
enforcement. Benefits associated with the utilization of the application include:

e More automated permit processing from application through permit issuance
Automatic routing for permits requiring reviews and approvals

e Single electronic file for all permit applications and
documents

e More automated tracking of reviews, inspections,
and fees by permit and development projects

e Tracking of timelines, tasks, and required group
reviews

e Viewing all project and permit information at a
glance

e Readily accessible planning and zoning records
¢ Automatic generation of case documentation
e Centralized current and historical parcel information

GIS Integration

Enterprise systems offer real-time integration to geographic information systems (GIS) in order
to display land-use, zoning, and infrastructure layers on a map, as well as parcel, permit,
inspection, code enforcement, and work order activity that resides within the enterprise system.
Benefits of GIS integration include:

e Viewing system activity on a map (e.g.,
active projects, permits, cases, etc.)

e Map routing of work orders, service

request, and daily inspections

Displaying locations of infrastructure assets

Generating asset condition analysis

Ability to overlay multiple map layers

Integration to website for resident inquiries
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Maintenance/Work Order Management

Another suite of an enterprise system is the maintenance/work order management system,
which provides automation in managing the maintenance and day-to-day operations related to
infrastructure assets, buildings, facilities, and fleet vehicles, while being able to capture and
report on the labor, equipment usage, and materials costs associated with a work order and
preventative maintenance. System benefits include:

Electronic routing of citizen requests

Centralized task and maintenance management

Completion of work orders from the field

Streamlined public works operations

Retrieval of historical work order information and

costs

Quicker work order completion times

e Improved decisionmaking through access to real-time
information

e Viewing of asset and activity trends visually through

GIS mapping capabilities

e Better replacement planning and forecasting

e Enhancement of staff productivity

e Improved compliance with regulatory standards

e Improved safety and risk management

CLIENTFIRST TECHNOLOGY CONSULTING 40

OPTIMAL TECHNOLOGY GUIDANCE

PAGE 159



Report for Information Technology Master Planning

City of Menlo Park, CA

Conclusion

Moving Forward

Moving forward, over the next 18 to 24
months, the focus of Information Organization Strategies, Goals, and ’J:
Objectives

Technology should be on infrastructure

upgrades as well as training and _

increasing IT support staff to meet the IT

ge?ds of letI'Cer'ltury technology. Core Business Applications and Master
oftware application improvements G Plan

should also be considered, and the City
should proceed after a ranking and

IT Infrastructure and Services
sequencing the Top Priority initiatives \/
identified in the Plan. While some

software applications improvements are possible during this time, major software system

utilization improvements and replacement system implementations must follow the initial focus
on infrastructure. IT must work to position itself in the following ways:

IT Infrastructure — Follow best practices in performing the Computer Room Relocation, the
Network Redesign and the core Switch Replacement.

IT Staffing — The IT function does not have the staffing and training to update and maintain the
existing City infrastructure primarily regarding the City’s network. The City is also focusing IT
management on the maintenance and support of the existing core software applications. The
addition of a Business Applications Analyst will allow the IT leadership to redirect network
engineering skills to redesigning and supporting the City’s network. The addition of this
Business Applications Analyst will provide long-term benefits and increase application utilization
and organizational productivity.

Application Utilization — City departments want to improve their core business processes and
fully utilize their applications. The City should work to encourage a sense of application
ownership and continuous improvement by the departments. Improved application utilization is
one of the most effective ways to increase staff productivity and customer service.

ERP Replacement — The entire effort to select and implement a new ERP solution to replace
existing Cayenta and other core systems will logistically require two years. The City needs to
ensure that all its applications needs have been identified and that appropriate funding has been
budgeted for a replacement ERP by conducting a comprehensive needs assessment and
developing a Request for Proposals (RFP). Additionally, because the City has not conducted
this type and complexity of project with these specific business analysis, documentation, and
negotiation requirements, the City should obtain assistance from a municipal ERP Applications
Subject-Matter Expert (SME).

Governance — The formation of the internal IT Steering Committee will foster cooperation and

collaboration in setting priorities and executing multi-department initiatives. Over the long run,

the IT Steering Committee will oversee and maintain the execution and occasional modification
of this plan.

We expect the projects outlined in this report to result in improved productivity and customer
service, as well as improved sustainability.

Third-party Subject-Matter Experts (SMES) will be helpful for projects that are (1) high priorities,
(2) beyond the scope of City skill sets, and/or (3) lacking internal resource availability.
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Additionally, we recommend that action plans be developed by the departments and IT for all
active, short-term initiatives. The action plans should include all identified needs, recommended
solutions, responsible individuals, and target due dates. These action plans can ensure that all
needs are being addressed and/or that a decision has been made not to pursue an initiative.
These action plans will also prove beneficial to annual resource and budget planning
requirements.

The City should review and update the plan annually, using an abbreviated version of the
master planning methodology. In this way, the plan will be a vehicle to continuously guide the
information technology activities of the City. The annual IT Master Plan update should be
synchronized with the City’'s annual budget process, so the City’s IT Plan initiative costs can be
properly represented in the City’s annual budget.

Benefits

The completed plan should not be viewed as static, but rather as a dynamic tool that is revised
and updated as business conditions and requirements change. If the planning function is not an
ongoing process, certain objectives and benefits will not be realized, because the objectives
themselves may change as the organization and its environment evolves.

Major benefits that are (or should be) realized through the implementation of this IT Master Plan
include:

e Increased collaboration and communication between the departments and IT

e Transformation of the organization’s overall understanding, knowledge, and stewardship of
information technology

o Clear direction for IT operations and IT projects for the next five years, focused on meeting
the organization’s needs

e Citywide department consensus and understanding of all IT Initiatives and their priorities

e Foundational process and methodology for evaluation of project investments and analyzing
business case justification

Immediate Next Steps

It is recommended that the IT Steering Committee begin work by reviewing the plan and
priorities, including the ranking and sequencing of the “Top Priority” initiatives. Next, assign
lead and participatory resources to these Top Priority IT initiatives and also to all other high-
priority IT initiatives. This should include the finalization of target due dates for immediate next
steps of those initiatives. Initiative leaders should then report status updates for active initiatives
to the IT Steering Committee as part of each agenda.

Major issues for each initiative should be discussed among the Committee and/or sub-
committees for general feedback, collaboration, and lessons learned, as many of the
IT/application initiatives cross-departmental boundaries.

In order to improve the culture of application utilization, management, and support, it is also
recommended that a series of training seminars be developed for all key department
stakeholders and all enterprise business application users throughout the organization. This is
an effective way to maintain momentum and kick off the tremendous change that is to occur in
improving operations and constituent services.
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IT Master Plan Capital Budget

The IT Master Plan budget on the following pages is NOT an entirely new set of spending
requirements. The plan encapsulates all information technology issues and needs of all
departments in the City. Some projects, initiatives are normally funded by departments

themselves, some initiatives already have capital reserves set aside and others are part of
normal annual IT budgeting.
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Appendix 1 — IT Master Plan
Initiatives

The following section contains the IT Master Plan Initiatives documentation in their entirety. The
intitiatives documentation reflect the results from the needs assessment workshops conducted
with the City’s departments.
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Appendix 2 — Implementation
Resource Requirements

The following contains the Implementation Resource Requirements. This is presented in a
Matrix format which includes a list of all the initiatives with notations on which initiatives will or
may require additional resurces from outside the City.
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Best Practices are methods that consistently
provide results greater than those achieved with
other methods. We believe that the following best
practices will enhance the City’s ability to select,
procure, and maintain solutions that are more
effective in the future, as well as improve overall
productivity of staff.

Return-on-Investment Considerations

IT Governance

COBIT

ITIL

Applications Management Best Practices
Applications and User Licensing Inventory
User Training and Support

Training Room

Software Selection Best Practices

Project Planning and Implementation Best Practices
Maintaining Software Updates

IT Project and Services Portfolio
Sustainability Planning

Cloud Computing

Centralized Land and Parcel Management
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Organization Strategies, Goals, and
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1. Return-on-Investment Considerations

IT Infrastructure, Operations, and Support

Limiting the number of software and technology vendors supporting City functions will decrease
IT infrastructure, operational costs, and support costs in the medium-to-long term. The following
is a list of technology areas impacted when determining the number of applications necessary to
support and maintain an organization’s core business solutions:

e Hardware — Servers required to house the applications
Software — Additional software, such as key operational software applications, and the
number of different database tools required to support core applications

e Licensing — Increased licensing due to an increased number of vendor applications and
various associated database tools

e Business Continuity — Increased Disaster Recovery Planning effort, testing, and recovery
complexity to support multiple-vendor applications

e Support Costs — IT support costs for hardware and software as vendor application volumes
increase

e Operation Costs — Increased training for employees to meet expertise requirements as
more vendor applications and different database tools are introduced

Further analysis outside of the scope of this project would be required to determine specific
potential cost savings.

Departmental Labor Costs

Many organizations do not adequately understand the impact that improved automation—and
the resulting reduction in manual processes and shadow systems—uwill have when considering
implementation of new systems or conducting process improvement analysis. Most productivity
analyses show that, over time, labor cost savings far exceed the cost of reasonable automation
efforts. The savings associated with the avoidance of one new hire or the elimination of a
position due to natural attrition may be $40,000 to $70,000 or more per year (including total
payroll, taxes, benefits, and other costs). The life of some new systems should be over ten
years, making the savings from the avoidance of just one new hire and/or elimination of vacant
positions the equivalent of $400,000 to $700,000 over ten years. Ten years should be the
minimum expected life cycle for major/large applications systems.

Return-on-Investment (ROI) for Applications Systems

Improved utilization of applications systems can result in immediate and sustained savings in
time spent performing specific tasks or processes. These individual improvements do not
always equate to immediate, “hard” savings. They may result in intangible benefits to the City,
the population that the City serves, or cumulative savings from reduced long-term personnel
needs.

User Training and Support

Applications software is continually evolving. Improvements and enhancements are made
yearly. Maintaining staff efficiency and improving productivity over time requires ongoing
training of all staff. Users are typically not trained on all aspects or capabilities of particular
software applications or other technology-based tools during initial implementation. Therefore, it
is important for the organization to develop methodologies to carry out functionality use,
reporting, and training requirements in order to utilize the City’s important technological assets
to their fullest potential over time.
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Calculation Examples

Whenever possible, we recommend that staff calculate tangible and intangible benefits when
requesting approval for a project. The following calculations can be utilized in those efforts. We
believe in being conservative and practical. Exhaustive ROI studies should not be necessary.
Focusing on a limited number of reasonable examples, as outlined here, should normally be
sufficient to provide adequate justification for strategic projects.

Labor Efficiency Savings = Labor Hours Saved X Gross Hourly Rate
Tangible Labor Cost _ New hire avoidance, elimination of position through
Savings ~ attrition, consolidation of work load and positions, etc.

Hard Cost Savings

Hardware

Software
Maintenance
Inventory Reductions

Intangible Benefits

Increasing Levels of Service

Improved Service to Public Users

Safety

Transparency

Improved Public Communication

Improved Employee Communication and Satisfaction
IT Planning and Improvements

Return-on-Investment (ROI) Considerations
A study conducted by Macquarie University! discovered the following:

e Overall ROl in IT projects is around 30%.
e The projects that deliver at least some benefits should be about 52.5%.
e Successful IT projects can have an ROI of around 400%.

1 Macquarie University, 2006.
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2. IT Governance

Findings and Observations

The City requires cooperative technology to meet its goals. The Information Technology Master
Plan implementation provides a great opportunity for City departments to collaborate on future
technology use and applications.

IT Governance

Traditionally, key IT decisions are made by IT professionals and a select few organization
managers. This does not always ensure the most effective benefit to all stakeholders (all
departments and constituents). IT governance can provide a collaborative forum for major
decisions, planning, internal communication, and department/staff training regarding such
matters. IT governance is committed to the stewardship of IT resources on behalf of the
stakeholders who demand a benefit and/or return on the investment.

IT Steering Committee

The IT Steering Committee is a group of employees and
managers from a variety of departments and disciplines
that provide long-term direction and oversight for an .
organization's IT resources. This committee can provide a & {
stabilizing influence and focus for development of 4
organizational concepts and planning. Some of the A
responsibilities the group may carry out include:

Identifying and developing of technology initiatives
Prioritizing initiatives

Monitoring and reviewing initiatives

Project management of IT Master Plan implementation
Providing a forum for lessons learned during implementation of technology projects
Providing an initial review process of technology-related projects requested by individual
departments

Reviewing and providing feedback on long-term unresolved Help Desk issues
Developing and reviewing standards and policies

Updating standards and policies as changes occur in the organization and technology
Helping to achieve support across the organization

Reviewing Help Desk statistics, issues, and long-term unresolved needs

Acting as a sounding board for management and staff

Implementation of IT Governance can be an effective forum for departments to become more
knowledgeable about technology and how it can be used effectively to enhance customer
service and create efficiencies throughout the City’s business process environments.

Recommendations

Assemble and formally implement an IT Steering Committee, including an IT Steering
Committee Charter, to discuss technologies and recommend priorities, assist in policy
development, communicate with department staff, and manage, as well as oversee, the
implementation of the IT Master Plan.

It is recommended that the City consider engaging CLIENTFIRST to review the IT Steering
Committee Charter in order to make specific recommendations and to assist in conducting a
Steering Committee Development Workshop, including make-up of Steering Committee
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members and structure, as well as review Steering Committee roles and responsibilities. As
part of the same engagement, CLIENTFIRST would also conduct a workshop to cover and educate
on Steering Committee best practices.

Utilize the IT Steering Committee as the initial forum for the IT Division and other Departments
to propose/present new technology-related projects to ensure best practices are followed and
applied to the review, selection, approval, procurement, implementation (project management),
and ongoing technology maintenance.

The IT Governance strategy and implementation of an IT Steering Committee can be an
effective forum for departments to become more knowledgeable about technology and how
technology can be used effectively to enhance customer service and create efficiencies
throughout the City’s business-process environments.

Benefits

More transparency, responsibility, and accountability
Prioritization of initiatives

Improved compliance and consistency

Enhanced communication and collaboration

Higher degree of business and technology alignment
Widespread personal and professional growth

Next Steps
o Determine potential IT Steering Committee members who are:

+ Interested in participating on the Steering Committee
+ Have the ability to speak for Department Head

e Develop and implement an IT Steering Committee focused on:

Determining priorities, based on limited IT resources
Annual IT budget review and prioritization

IT policy reviews

New project reviews and feedback

Lessons learned from ongoing projects

* 6 6 o o

o Determine representation of all departments on the Steering Committee for regular IT
communication, ongoing education, and continued collaboration.
e Assign a lead and/or sub-committee for all IT Master Plan initiatives.
Monitor and discuss active/in-process IT Master plan initiatives at each Committee meeting.
e Form sub-committees, as appropriate.
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3. COBIT

Control Objectives for Information and related Technology, also known as COBIT, helps to
ensure alignment of IT with the environment through the adoption of incentives, metrics, and
oversight. IT governance is the responsibility of executives and the Board of Directors, and
consists of the leadership and organizational structures and processes that ensure that the
enterprise’s IT sustains and extends the organization’s strategies and objectives. For IT to be
successful in delivering, management should put an internal control system or framework in
place. The COBIT control framework contributes to these needs by:

Making a link to the organization’s requirements

Organizing IT activities into a generally accepted process model
Identifying the major IT resources to be leveraged

Defining the management control objectives to be considered

Information

Monitor & Plan &

Evaluate IT Organize
Resources

Acquire &
Implement

The orientation of COBIT consists of linking organizational goals to IT goals, providing metrics
and maturity models to measure their achievement, and identifying the associated
responsibilities of organization and IT process owners. The benefits of implementing COBIT as
a governance framework over IT include:

Better alignment, based on an organizational focus

A view of what IT does that is understandable by management

Clear ownership and responsibilities, based on process orientation

General acceptability with third parties and regulators

Shared understanding among all stakeholders, based on a common language

COBIT is an IT governance framework and supporting toolset that allows managers to bridge
the gap between control requirements, technical issues, and business risks. COBIT enables
clear policy development and best practices for IT control throughout organizations. COBIT
emphasizes regulatory compliance, helps organizations to increase the value attained from IT,
enables alignment, and simplifies implementation2. CLIENTFIRST utilizes the concepts from
COBIT throughout its IT Planning process.

2 www.isaca.org — COBIT, 2009.
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Staff Feedback

e IT —IT has had challenges with COBIT especially when it comes to citywide planning of best
practices framework. Organizational requirements often are not defined or audited.

Benefits

Reduction in unplanned work

Increase in number of successful changes

Improved operations management

Secure sharing of infrastructure and asset information

Increased anticipation and management of technology upgrades
Reduction in total cost of ownership

4. ITIL

This lifecycle approach to IT organization P
results in strategies that align service s
s N mprovement
management with business strategy,
structures IT services to meet the real
business environment, and builds a support
model for the day-to-day procedures needed
to support business objectives. Through an
understanding of Information Technology
Infrastructure Library (ITIL) and how it relates
to IT operational environments, CLIENTFIRST
can identify the strategy and resources -,
needed to accomplish the business objectives 5 S
based on the current structure of the IT The service lifecycle  |Senice
PP Improvement
Division.

Continual
Service
Improvement

Ly

ITIL provides a common framework understood by suppliers, clients, vendors, and businesses
through a set of global standards. CLIENTFIRST utilizes these concepts for service delivery
throughout its IT planning process to provide a sound approach to support IT initiatives®. ITIL is
a framework intended to assist organizations with the alignment of IT operations with business
objectives through an IT service strategy of continuous realignment. ITIL is considered a best-
practice approach to IT service delivery that can be molded to fit all organizational structures.
ITIL v3 groups IT service into four (4) categories: Strategy, Design, Transition, and Operation.
CLIENTFIRST recommends that all IT Managers obtain at least foundational certification in ITIL.

Benefits

Reduction in unplanned work

Increase in number of successful changes

Improved operations management

Secure sharing of infrastructure and asset information

Increased anticipation and management of technology upgrades
Reduced recovery times

Reduction in total cost of ownership

Improved alignment of technology with business requirements and needs

3 www.itil-officialsite.com — ITIL, 2009.
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5. Applications Management Best Practices

Findings and Observations

City of Menlo Park, CA

The City utilizes over 136 different software applications or modules throughout all departments.

Major systems include:

Application Functionality ‘ Vendor ‘
Financial/Accounting Management Cayenta
Personnel Management ADP Workforce Now
Land Management Tidemark
Work Orders/Maintenance and Asset Management None
Public Safety CAD/RMS RIMS
Electronic Document and Records Management ApplicationXtender
Geographic Information System (GIS) Esri

A more comprehensive example listing of City applications is included below.

Note: This is not an official inventory.

e 3SI Technologied
Adobe
+ Acrobat Reader
+ Acrobat XI Pro
+ Creative
Suite/Cloud
Illustrator
InDesign
Photoshop
Premiere
e ADP Workforce Now
+ Employee Benefits
Tracking
+ Human Resources
Payroll
Performance
Evaluations
¢ Time Tracking
Alco-Sensor IV
ALLDATA Online
Apple iTunes
ApplicationXtender
ArborAccess
BaseCamp
BEC System
Box.com
Cal Photo
CalOpps
CalPERS
Cayenta
+ Accounts Payable

* 6 o o
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Ad Hoc Reporting

Financial Reporting

General Ledger

Requisitions and

Purchasing

CCIN

CDMIS

Cellebrite

Citrix work order

system

CivicPlus

¢ Calendar

¢ Intranet

¢ Subscriber
Notifications

+ Website Content
Management

CNIPS

Comcate

Cummins INSITE

Digital Watchdog

Direct Connect

DOJ

Dropbox

Duncan Systems

+ Autocite

¢ Autoissue

eGov

¢ Class Registrations

¢ Email Marketing

+ Reporting

L 2R SR R 4

¢ Room Rentals
ENERCALC

Esri

+ ArcCatalog

+ ArcMap
Eventbrite
Evernote
Facebook

Fill & Sign PDF Forms
Firefox

Ford Diagnostic
Solutions
Geocortex viewer for
Silverlight

Google Chrome
Google Earth
Google Maps

Gov QA

Granicus

HdL Prime

Hub Manager
Innovative Sierra
Insight e-Tools
MAC Final Cut Pro
Microsoft

¢ Access

Excel

Internet Explorer
Outlook

Paint
PowerPoint

* & 6 o o
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+ Project + Mobiles +  Shift Swaps
¢ Publisher ¢ Property + Vacations
+ Skype * Reports o TextMe
+ SQL Server ¢+ RMS e Tidemark
+ Word + Training + Code Enforcement
e MPGIS e Ron Turley and + Mobile Inspections
e Musco Control-Link Associates (RTA) (TES/TIM)
e Open Budget e Sage ¢ Parcel/Address
e Paypal e SAM Management
e PBT Group TEAMS e SCADA Wonderware ¢+ Permits
e Phoenix e ShoreTel e TM1
e Print Wizard Communicator e Training Information
e QuickReg e Signage Manager Management Systems
e QwikRegister e SketchUp (TIMS)
e Rain Master, Evolution e SmugMug e Trimble Field Service
I e SonicWALL / VPN Management
e RD Client e SonicWALL e Turbo Data Systems
o Redflex Traffic e SS-Verification Dept. + eAppeals
Systems Homeland Security ¢ ticketPRO
e RIMS e SurveyMonkey J V_erlfone Omni 3730
+ CAD e Team Sideline e View
¢ CLETS e TeleStaff e Virtual Merchant
+ Digital Imaging s Comp Time e \West Coast Arborist
¢ E911 + Scheduling mobile app
+ Mapping +  Shift Bidding XC2

Many City software applications, modules, and systems are underutilized, resulting in loss of
productivity due to manual processes, inefficient workarounds, and inefficient or unnecessary
reconciliations. Additional user training is needed for many software applications (see User
Training and Support initiative). The City does not have sufficient resources to document
practices and procedures, develop needs for applications systems, prioritize needs, evaluate
solutions, and identify sufficient implementation and ongoing management and support
resources for these solutions. Additionally, the City has insufficient effective IT resources to
ensure quality applications utilization, increase department process improvements, and gain
significant efficiencies in labor throughout the organization.

Gaining greater utilization of the existing application modules is vital to significant increases in
productivity by staff throughout the City. The ability to accomplish this is difficult because of
limited resources and the diversity of applications providers in use.
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Future Applications Management Best Practices

The City can benefit greatly by changing traditional applications management practices. Use of
the following recommendations can lead to improved functionality, use, and increased overall
productivity.

Future Applications Roles and Responsibilities

Applications support and management roles and responsibilities will have to be identified and
assigned to departments' operational applications and modules. We recommend starting with:

ERP (Finance and Accounting) P —

Personnel Management e

Permitting e T e
Contact Management P o e | e | Mem | A ~ | = ]
ECMS o :
Work Orders/Maintenance and Asset
Management

e CAD/RMS and Citations

Identification and assignment will help the City spot
capable resources to fulfill the roles and
responsibilities for Applications Management Best Practices in the future.

11
g
¥
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i
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Thamas Lorrie Debbie

Thamas Lorrie Debbie
Denise. Thomas Sherry
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Rish Rish | William

BLERRE ¥
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Process Owner

o Staff “resident expert” who is responsible for a given departmental process or function

e May also be responsible for oversight and delivery of the daily, weekly, monthly, and annual
processes that the application or module is utilized to fulfill

e Primarily makes final decisions on process policies, procedures, and deliverables for their
area of expertise

e Stays current with the applicable industry best practices, technology, and applications
capabilities

e Stays current with existing applications vendors’ capabilities, offerings, and enhancements

Application Champion

An expert on a specific application or module

Possesses greatest knowledge of application or module

Lead trainer or support person for other staff that utilizes application or module

Usually has formal training and is responsible for application configuration setup and

changes on an ongoing basis

Often trained to provide ad hoc report writing capabilities for the application or module

e Stays current with the applicable industry best practices, technology, and application
capabilities

e Stays current with existing application vendors’ capabilities, offerings, and enhancements

Business Process and Application Analyst

e Assigned to work with process owners, application champions, report writers, and users

o Reviews business processes, current utilization of application, manual processes, and
shadow systems (i.e., spreadsheets and other databases) in an effort to increase
automation, improve efficiencies, and increase utilization of the core business application

e Assists in the development of user, application, and process requirements

e Assists in developing and documenting standard operating procedures (SOPS)

Note: An Application Analyst may be a person already fulfilling one or more of the above roles.

CLIENTFIRST TECHNOLOGY CONSULTING
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Ad Hoc Report Writer

e Aptitude to develop ad hoc reports using vendors’ report writing tools, which may include
third-party tools such as Crystal Reports, Cognos, or Microsoft SQL Server Reporting
Services (SRSS)

e Assigned as the “go-to” person for ad hoc reports that other users cannot quickly generate
on their own

IT roles and responsibilities should be defined by application module. Consider taking the
following actions:

o Identify role of IT for a given application or module (primarily server and network support).
Departments are to take as much responsibility as possible for applications management of
modules utilized by their primary business-process functions, as the IT Division does not
currently and will never have all the resources to fulfill all applications management support
and maintenance roles for the entire organization.

Please note that the organization may not have an identified resource in some instances, and
that some applications may not require certain roles. It is also likely that, in some instances, the
same person(s) will fulfill more than one role for a given application/module.

Business Department Application Training

As applications software changes and grows in complexity, training staff to use software
properly becomes more critical. We believe that a renewed emphasis on targeted staff training
on the City’s applications software will pay off significantly in increased staff effectiveness and
productivity. An inventory of high-priority training is essential to achieve expected productivity.
The City can identify and assess future training needs for all applications and users upon
completion of an application/user matrix (see Applications and User Licensing Inventory
initiative).

Staff Feedback

e HR — ADP's performance evaluation software is licensed but not implemented

Recommendations

o Departments should be encouraged to become more responsible for changes to application
setup and configurations with assistance from IT. If department personnel are unable to
make these changes, training should be provided.

e Training department personnel to perform their own simple report writing (basic listings and
extracts in tabular form) is challenging, but beneficial. More complex reporting often
requires specific understanding of database structures in the application. There is currently
very limited capacity to provide such support from IT.

o Consider adding more specialized application/business analyst personnel and database
administration to the IT Division to provide increased and improved applications support to
departmental users for departmental business applications (e.g., ERP, Personnel
Management, Permitting, ECMS, CAD/RMS, Work Orders/Maintenance Management etc.)

¢ Over time, we believe that applications utilization by departments will improve if applications
sponsors (Process Owners and Application Champions) take a more active role in
monitoring upcoming functionality improvements from new software releases that will benefit
the City. In addition, it would be helpful if applications sponsors and sponsoring
departments monitored and discussed applications usage with other peer organizations and
entities to gather information and potential productivity improvements that could be
incorporated into the City's systems.
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Specifically assign a process owner, application champions, primary business analysts,
applications administrators (setup and configuration responsibility), and ad hoc report writers
for each application or module.

Key assignments should encompass responsibility for understanding industry best practices
and solutions or processes available, and taking the lead in continually assessing and
inventorying needs.

Inventory current and future feature/function, reporting, training, and support gaps, and
maintain improvement needs lists

Benefits

e Increased use of applications features resulting in higher return on software investment
e Higher degree of user independence and less reliability and cost for vendor assistance
¢ Identification of applications user roles and responsibilities

e Improved efficiencies and productivity

e Improved customer service

Next Steps

Each department should complete Application/User Matrices for current and future
applications usage and applications management roles, and IT Steering Committee should
review completed matrices.

Identify process owner(s) for each module, or insert “N/A” if not applicable.

Identify application champion(s) for each module.

Identify application analyst(s) for each module, or insert “N/A” if not applicable.

Identify ad hoc report writers, or insert “N/A” if not applicable.

Differentiate (e.g., by color shading, annotations, etc.) if individuals are expected to assume
roles in future with additional training.

Define IT Division roles and responsibilities for all applications or modules.
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6. Applications and User Licensing Inventory

Findings and Observations

A citywide applications and user inventory can be helpful in
understanding/confirming licensing compliance, over/under
seat license needs, and identifying training and user roles
mentioned in the Applications Management Best Practices
initiative.

Recommendations

Create an inventory of all organization software applications/modules currently in use, as
needed. This is necessary for multiple initiatives/projects and developing and budgeting a
multi-year user training budget.

Identify all current user license holders, as well as those that need additional licenses.
Determine which users that don’t have a valid need for a license and determine if these
licenses can be transferred to other users.

Identify user’s roles as “F” (Full), “I” (Inquiry), or “R” (Reporting Only).

Recommend differentiating between current/licensed and non-current/non-licensed users,
so that budgeting can be addressed for additional user-license requirements.

Determine software applications that can be run centrally from a server or shared computer
for infrequent users.

Obtain ongoing sustainability cost estimates.

Consider development of an IT Applications Support Portfolio to document departmental
ownership and IT Division service-level agreements (SLAS).

Benefits

Assurance that investment in licenses are matched to users truly in need

Assurance that investment of licenses match the organization’s software needs

Better ability to identify potential integration requirements

Ability to obtain proper support and reference information for licensed software

Ability to better schedule and conduct training for staff, based on software usage

Better, well-informed decision making for applications acquisitions or maintenance
cancellations

Potential reduction in applications license and maintenance fees by cancelling applications
no longer in use

Mitigation of legal risk from use of non-licensed software
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7. User Training and Support

Software systems are tools utilized to conduct business
operations. Like other tools (e.g., phones, audiovisual
equipment, backhoes, plotters, equipment, etc.), gaining
greater utilization of these tools through sufficient training and
installation of other available software modules (tools) is key to
significant increases in productivity and greater efficiency, as
well as achieving cost savings in many areas.

Findings and Observations

e Software applications that are underutilized will gain significant increases in staff productivity
if more training were provided.

e A complete inventory of all applications and/or modules by department and user does not
currently exist.

e This list can be helpful in understanding and confirming licensing compliance, over/under
seat license requirements, and identifying training needs and user-responsibility roles, as
discussed in the Applications Management Best Practices initiative.

e Examples of requested training are included below.

Staff Feedback

CMO - Need training on Photoshop

CMO - Need training on Basic GIS

CMO — Need training on Granicus

CMO - Need training for staff on new technologies

Comm. Dev. — Need training on Microsoft Office (Word/Excel/PowerPoint in particular)
Comm. Dev. — Need training on Tidemark (+ any successor permitting system)

Comm. Dev. — Need training on Adobe Acrobat

Comm. Dev. — Need training on SQL Server/other database systems

Comm. Dev. — Need training on updating menlopark.org website

Comm. Dev. — Need training on Social media/other new communications methods
Comm. Dev. — Need training on existing scanning equipment

Comm. Serv. — Need training on eGov

Comm. Serv. — Need training on branding standards

Comm. Serv. — Need training on website use

Comm. Serv. — Need training on MS Office applications

Comm. Serv. — Need training on graphic design

Comm. Serv. — Need training on Adobe Creative Suite

Comm. Serv. — Need training on financial applications

Finance — Need beginner and advanced Microsoft Office (Word, Excel, PowerPoint) training
Finance — Need citywide Cayenta training

HR — Need training on ADP

HR — Need training on Cayenta

HR — Need training on CalPERS

Library — Need training on Cayenta

Library — Need training on Outlook (e.g., calendar functions, mass email importing/sending,
etc.)

Library — Need training on ADP portal

e Library — Need training on phone basics (e.g., transfer, pickup, park/unpark, forwarding
calls)
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Library — Need training on intranet searches

Library — Need training on marketing form request procedure/details
Police — Dispatchers need true training in the use of Blackboard
Police — Need Adobe Design Studio training

Police — Need training on Excel

Police — Need training on Portable Wireless Camera system

Police — Need training on 3SI technology for GPS tracking purposes
Police — Need training on Training Information Management Systems (TIMS) to track
department inventory specifically in regards to weapons

Police — Need training on Windows Explorer

Police — Need training on Word

Police — Need training on Excel

PW — Need training on ApplicationXtender

PW — Need training on AutoCAD

PW — Need training on Comcate functions

PW — Need training on Internal Web-based GIS

PW — Need training on Tidemark

Return-on-Investment (ROI) Consideration

¢ In a study conducted by Nucleus Research, an organization drove productivity gains of up to
50% through ongoing, successful user trainings4.

Recommendations

o Complete the Applications/User Matrices by department and
user.

o Identify all current user license holders, as well as those that
need additional licenses.

¢ Conduct a survey, by user, to determine what training
would be helpful and to determine actual need and planned
attendees. This should be driven by department managers
to elicit participation when training is made available.

o Identify approximately 500 square feet of space for use as a
Training Room (See Training Room initiative).

¢ Optimum configuration would be twelve PCs and two printers for hands-on training.
e Determine strategies for accomplishing training needs:

Self-learning aids

Internal classes (internal or external trainers)

On-site vendor training

Lunch-and-learns

Go-to Application Champions

Training opportunities at software vendor annual user conferences

* 6 6 6 o o

o Create a repository of basic “how to” training aids and other training information (e.g.,
videos, past class information, etc.)

e Consider procuring a screen capture video solution to assist with developing internal video
training aids.

4 Nucleus Research, 2010.
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Current and future needs can be evaluated and prioritized through a combination of
mechanisms, including the IT governance function.

Consider class attendance as a factor in performance evaluations. This can be
accomplished by having department management involved and agreeing to which classes
each employee would benefit from.

Consider efforts to reduce and/or limit the total number of software vendors and databases
whenever possible. This will reduce and limit overall cost-of-ownership, support
requirements, training and reporting needs, and improve overall integration capabilities.

Benefits

Improved operations management

Improved utilization and efficiency of software applications

Activation and use of existing functionality that is currently unknown, but important to the
City

Review and activation of new functionality provided in future applications software releases
Increased information sharing

Better identification of training needs

Increase training alternatives

Improved software administration (fewer staff required to service user community)
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8. Training Room

A Training Room serves as a great opportunity for staff to become
familiar with applications or expand on their current skills. It serves as a
best practice to promote professional growth and continued
improvement through increased utilization of existing or future
organization applications to be released to staff. A dedicated Training
Room is also a requirement for all major software implementation
projects.

Findings and Observations

e The City has existing conference and meeting rooms that are multi-use that are often used
for training.

e The City will benefit from a full-time Training Room in order to successfully complete the
projects outlined in this plan.

Staff feedback

e CMO - Need a configurable classroom for training staff on systems
e Comm. Serv. — Need City-supported computer labs with latest hardware and software

Recommendations

e The organization should maintain a Training Room for testing applications that are being
implemented or for staff to improve upon existing competencies.

¢ Identify approximately 500 square feet of space for use as a Training Room
With so many applications in use, a permanent Training Room will be needed if the
organization implements ongoing user training, refresher training, and meet other training
needs, as well as support applications management best practices.

e A minimum of twelve computers/workstations should be maintained in a room that provides
adequate individual space for each workstation.

e Virtual Desktop (VDI) technology is often used for Training Room computers.

e Utilizing the recommended City VDI infrastructure will allow the City to place older PCs in
the Training Room.

e Computers can also be used as a lab or resolution environment for staff experiencing
extensive computer difficulties or those waiting for a computer replacement.
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9. Software Selection Best Practices

Findings and Observations

Selecting the right system and technology is more critical today than ever before, because the
efficiency and effectiveness of the organization is directly dependent on its use of technology

Organization Strategies, Goals, and
Objectlves

and information systems. Organizations
are realizing they must take greater
advantage of automation and technology
to ensure a better position to meet growing
constituent and public demands.
Additionally, many agencies must provide
better service to their constituents, users,
and the general public, while coping with
greater budget constraints.

Return-on-Investment Consideration

While new software solutions can transform certain
operations, processes, and constituent services,
consider these facts:

e Without proper preparation, planning, and a
methodology for selection and implementation,
organizations face many problems and risks,
including:

¢ Spending hundreds of thousands—and,
potentially, millions—of dollars more than
necessary in total cost of ownership

+ Failed or prolonged implementation

+ Implementation of systems that still do not
meet the organization’s functional needs
Low productivity
Poor contract negotiation position
Lack of and/or reduced integration between
other software systems

e Organizations typically fall short of their
implementation goals due to one or more of the
following factors:

+ Insufficiently defining system objectives and
requirements

¢ Failing to adequately involve both
management and users

¢ Underestimating the costs and effort
required
Failing to adequately plan for expansion
Failing to properly evaluate software

CLIENTFIRST TECHNOLOGY CONSULTING

Data and Business Processes

Application Modules and Systems

IT Infrastructure

’J:

Feature/
Function and
System
Requirements

7

STARTLING STATISTICS:

Only 32% of projects are on time, within
budget, deliver all required features and
functions, and achieve measurable
business and stakeholder benefits.
Approximately 44% of projects are
“challenged” (late, over budget, and/or
have less than the required features and
functions).

69% of project failures are due to a lack of

and/or improper implementation of project

management methodologies.

Nearly 40% of those surveyed said that a

"lack of employee buy-in and executive

support" was the biggest challenge facing

a successful implementation.

A recent customer survey shows that

enterprise implementation projects:

= Have only a 7%chance of on-time
implementation.

o Will likely cost more than estimated.

o Will likely deliver unsatisfying results
(only 21% will realize half or more of
expected benefits).

In a past study of local government

enterprise implementations published in

Government Finance Review, it was found

that the average project was 176% over

budget and 243% beyond the planned
implementation timeline.
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In order for key software systems to be implemented properly and for the organization to
reap the full benefits, the organization should utilize a structured analysis and selection
methodology. A structured approach to selection and implementation results in significant
benefits, including:

Reduced risk of a failed or prolonged implementation

Lower total cost of ownership

Independent and objective analysis of potential alternatives

Well-defined objectives and requirements

An education process for the organization

Selection of technology that meets the organization’s short- and long-term objectives
and requirements

Effective contract negotiation through well-prepared and documented needs

Overall project time savings

Improved implementation readiness

* 6 6 O o o

Staff Feedback

CMO — We don't always follow a method that leads to the selection of the right software
CMO — We often have departements go off and buy software that another department
already has

Recommendations

Utilize best practice selection methodology when evaluating new software solutions (see
example work plan below).

Consider third-party consults when selecting or improving complex or highly specialized
solutions.

Ensure process reviews are completed and detailed feature/function specifications are
documented as part of the RFP (see example below).

Ensure detailed feature/function specifications are utilized with test scripts before going live
on new applications implementations.

Include all stakeholders in each software evaluation and implementation project.

Ensure detailed feature/function specifications are utilized in post-implementation reviews
and ongoing training (see example work plan pages below).

Benefits

Reduction in hardware/software requirements

Reduction in preparation time for deployments

Better identification of integration requirements

Reduced license fees

Increased utilization of applications systems

More effective due diligence

Increased staff buy-in, consensus, and morale

Improved decision making (selecting software that is the best fit for your needs)
Improved implementation results (time, costs, and results)
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Comments

4020

VENDOR - ADDRESSES - Prowide formubioie addressss pervendor (must
support non-LI.5A addresses) with 2 mimmum of fowr addnesses and frve Bnes
each.

4028

VENDOR APPROVAL - Abdsty Tor depariments o selup a temporary vendor
with only purchasing to apgrove new vendors.

4035

ON-LTHEREGUIEIT ONPO AFPROVAL - Frovias Tuncionaily calng [0 rous
requisitions or puchaseonders to apprpeiate users (or theirbackup user) wilh
notifications for ther appeoval or disapproval. Allow entry of disaporoval notes
and abiity to restort the approval process ifrequired.

4038

ON-LTNETRACKINGOF APPROVED REQUISITIONS - Abdty fouse anfne
query for all purchase requisibons that are awasing the user's approval

4041

ENCUKEBRANCEACCOUNTING

4042

ENCUMBRANC EACCOUNTING - Provide 2 proosdurd funcionz of an
encumbrance sys emncuding veriicaton of budget avaiability befor
accepting invoice, nequisition and purchase onder framsachons.

4048 | PURCHASE REQUISITIONS
FORMAL BID FUNCTIONALLY - Provide formal biddng funcfionafity and Future release
4047 | process, wihich ties with bof purchased requisitions and purchase onder
functions.
. Syatlem efer stast workdiow
4050 BU DGE[_J PURCHASE LIMIT CONTROLS - Providesecunty controistoelfer | i, i mol ok dee thel
allow or dezaliow amounts 1o be enersdthat excesdbudget amounts. sxceed budget amount

40352

RECURRING REQUISITIONS - ARcwr recording, reporing, refeenal, and
editing of recuring requisitons.

4054

ELECTRONIC REQUISITIONING - Proweds fie abiity fo genestesiechonc
requisitions by muitige end-users.

40949

DEPRECIABLE ASSET - Absty o code iiems a3 degreciable assets.

This is avalatkeat the PO levd

4107

PURGHASE ORDER PROCESSING

4109

POIRCHASEORDER GENERATION - Alcwiems 1o besplt from requisiions
o mubtiple purchase onders.

4140

PORCHASEORDER — THRESHOLD AROUNT - foitylozsia bmi
{cumulative} fora singlevendor in 2 year for purchases.

yeany Bmit Fackedvia mscuser
defined fisld

4158

CONTRACT EXPIRATION ALERT - The system shoukd provide 3 waming of
block paymentsif 3 coniracts mewance has expred.

[nformation is avadalte wia dnl
dowm

4160

APPROVALS - Abdity fior an appronval 1o be rowted to muliple appeovers, via
wiork fiow rules, wihene eifer appover, butnotboth, is notrequired.

4194

PORCHASEORDER CORMMTTIERT REPOR TING - Gensrals 3 purthase
order commitmentreport reflecing the dollar amount of anticpated deliveries
by vendor.

4198

INTEGRATION

41948

INTEGRATION - ACCOUNTS PAYAELE - Frowice Tor 2utomatc ransier of
purchasing information to Accounts Payalle (e.q., vendor, address, amount,
purchase order number, etc)

41949

INTEGRATION - BUDGET - Provide capanity 1o vaihdete funds avalizbity for
Requisition and Purchase Onder ransactins. Allow oveside capabity.

4202

INTEGRATION - GENERAL LEDGER - Abdty fo covnioad purchasng cad
transaction e {bd) to postiransaction detal to General Ledper by geners
edger account oode. Moke: each transaction ks associated with a speciic
general kedger account number in the textfile

standard P-Casd nteyyaton is
availabie via impoet i Accounts
Payabie

4203

INTEGRATION - PROJECT AC COUNTING - Purchase Drier ranzacions
coded to Projects must ntegraie with Prosect Accountng andfor Wioek Onder
Managementsysiems.
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Step

Appendix — IT Initiatives (IT Master Plan)
City of Menlo Park, CA

Software System Selection
Work Plan

Phase 1 — Needs Assessment and Recommendations

Kick-Off and Project Team Development — Hold a formal Kick-Off Meeting, and then work with the

1 Project Manager to finalize the makeup of the selection Project Team and document required roles and
responsibilities. Include representatives from all key stakeholder groups.
IT Infrastructure and Staffing Readiness Review
IT Information Meetings and Interviews — Conduct information-gathering activities focused on the ability
of the existing IT staff and infrastructure to support the needs of the organization and to review the
2 . . : .
readiness to implement and support the platform that will be required for the new software system,
including:
IT Network and Infrastructure
Storage and Backups
Servers, Server Applications, and Management
IT Security
Disaster Recovery
Desktop Environment
Printers
3 Documentation — Document information and summarize the required preparation initiatives, findings, and
recommendations.
IT Assessment Memo — Prepare a memo assessing gap and readiness of IT infrastructure to support the
4 organization's general needs and to support the introduction of the new software system. The memo is to
include the following:
General readiness of IT to support the organization's needs and support the introduction of a new
software
IT Initiatives with findings and recommendations, including the following scope:
IT Environment and Infrastructure
IT Applications Support Staffing Structure
Business Department Needs Assessment Interviews
Business Process Review and Feature/Function Analysis — Meet with the identified personnel by
5 functional area and software modules to review existing manual and automated systems and operations,
including any custom-developed work-around systems/processes. Include a cross-section of all user types
in each needs assessment workshop.
6 System Requirements Documentation — Document information gathered during interview process and

develop feature/function requirement specifications specific to your organization.

Phase 2 — RFP Development

Preliminary Vendor Research, Communication, and Coordination — Research vendor community to
identify qualified vendors meeting the organization's system and services requirements, and communicate

! with potential vendors. Vendors do not respond to all RFP’s, so pre-communication is helpful to obtain
proposals that are in the organization’s best interest to consider.
Develop Request for Proposal (RFP) with Electronic Response Forms — Prepare a Request for
Proposal (RFP) document and work with the organization to make adjustments and revisions, as well as
8 ensure it complies with the organization’s purchasing guidelines and is distributed per policy (assumes

development of a single RFP document). RFP should include, but will not necessarily be limited to, the
following:
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Step

Appendix — IT Initiatives (IT Master Plan)
City of Menlo Park, CA

Software System Selection
Work Plan

Comprehensive list of functions/requirements with prioritization

Cost, including purchase or other financial payment plan options

Required technical specifications

Installation costs

Migration from existing to new system (cost and timeline)

Training cost and training schedule

New system hardware/network/system software requirements

Phase 3 - Vendor Evaluation and Demonstration Management

9

Facilitate RFP Response Activities — Facilitate pre-proposal activities, including:

Manage vendor questions and answers during established proposal response timelines.

10

Proposal Evaluation — Analyze and evaluate proposal responses. Provide an initial Summary Vendor
Comparison Worksheet that provides side-by-side comparison of key system evaluation requirements,
including feature/function compliance statistics.

11

Analysis Results Workshop to Determine Vendor Finalists (Short List) — Conduct a collaborative
review workshop with a key stakeholder committee and determine which vendors are to be short-listed.

12

Develop Demonstration Documents — Prepare an agenda and sample demonstration scripts for vendor
demonstrations to be sent to vendor finalists for their advance preparation. Also, prepare vendor
demonstration evaluation forms for use by selection committee members during demonstration sessions.

13

Reference Check Form Preparation — Prepare form to be used by project team members during finalist
reference checks/calls.

14

Schedule and Facilitate Vendor Demonstrations — Schedule demonstration dates and facilitate initial
vendor demonstrations to ensure that pertinent requirements are addressed (estimate three vendors at X
days each).

15

Develop Site-Visit Documents — Prepare an agenda for each vendor site visit and a site visit evaluation
form for organization selection committee members to complete during each visit.

16

Post Demonstration/Visit/Reference Check Due Diligence and Follow-Up — Track follow-up issues and
conduct comprehensive due diligence. This may include additional demonstrations, Q&A facilitation,
reference checking, and site-visit assistance, efc.

17

Finalist Selection — Conduct a meeting with the organization selection committee to facilitate discussion
and finalize the vendor selection.

18

Review Selected Vendor's IT Requirements — Review the IT (server, workstation, network, etc.)
requirements provided in the selected vendor's proposal, and prepare a memo outlining observations and
recommendations for IT.

Phase 4 — Contract Review and Negotiation Assistance

Implementation Plan Review — Review implementation plans, project management office, resource

19 . N
requirements, and timelines.

20 Implementation Team Organization — Establish Implementation Project Team based upon PMI and
COBIT Project Management Office (PMO) principles and applications management best practices.

21 Contract Review and Negotiation Assistance — Conduct contract reviews and negotiations with an SME

and legal representation.
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Appendix — IT Initiatives (IT Master Plan)
City of Menlo Park, CA

10. Project Planning and Implementation Best Practices

Findings and Observations

A best practices approach should be followed for all

significant implementation projects. The complexity and .@‘

risk determine the actual level of due diligence that @
should be performed. The following is an outline of

project planning and implementation best practices: & L 4

Determine Scope of Work — Work with all stakeholders @
to determine what needs to be accomplished.

5 A
Design — For larger, more complex projects, the design a _
effort may become a separate project. For smaller suppart © . g
projects, design is integrated into budgeting. @

Specifications — Make sure an appropriate level of
vendor-agnostic specifications are included with procurement requests that reduces ambiguity
and provides better comparisons between vendors.

Collaborate — Include input and requirements of all stakeholder groups to ensure all
requirements are included in specifications and all stakeholders buy-in to the final solution. IT
Steering Committee should review as part of the Committee’s role and responsibilities.

Develop Budget — Project budgets include hardware, software, and consulting/SME costs.
Consulting costs are estimated by outlining the various work steps and estimating the hours
required to complete them.

Gain Sign-Off — Once the budget is complete, review the scope of work and costs with the
project sponsor and gain their approval before continuing, including consent by the IT Steering
Committee.

Create Project Plan — Based on all stakeholder needs, delivery dates, and the tasks to be
completed, develop a project plan and estimated implementation date.

Outline Communication Plan — Outline the process for communicating implementation dates,
improvements, and training to appropriate staff members.

Document Other Plans — Other plans may include training, testing, contingency, and back-out.
These plans are developed on an as-needed basis.

Configure and Implement — Utilizing planning methodologies and technical expertise,
configure the necessary system components, and implement the solution with the least possible
impact to staff and productivity. The IT Steering Committee should receive status reports on the
progress of the implementation, including whether the project is on time and on budget, whether
user needs are being met, and that vendors are following through with their contractual
obligations.

Post-Implementation Review — Complete a post-implementation review with successes,
lessons learned, and any loose ends requiring vendor assistance. Report the results of the IT
Steering Committee.

Post-Implementation Support — All implementations that affect multiple users require on-site,
post-implementation support to eliminate remote response times.

Documentation — Develop any necessary procedures and update documentation as part of the
project.
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Appendix — IT Initiatives (IT Master Plan)
City of Menlo Park, CA

Recommendations

Develop a project portfolio for all IT and software-related projects.

Follow planning and implementation best practices.

Review all major active and upcoming projects during IT Steering Committee meetings.
Obtain services of third-party project managers/subject-matter experts, as appropriate
and/or cost beneficial.

Benefits

Prioritization of projects

Reduced periods between transitions

Increased information-sharing capabilities

Enhanced communication and consensus

Increased anticipation and management of technology upgrades
Improved analysis and planning

Increased departmental collaboration

Measurement and tracking of results/outcomes

11. Maintaining Software Updates

Findings and Observations

e Best practice for the maintenance of applications software is to maintain a minimum of N-1
(current major release or the one prior).

+ Software vendors often only support the current release and the one prior.

+ Falling further behind often creates upgrade scenarios with several intermediate steps,
risking additional problems, and potentially makes upgrades more expensive and time-
consuming.

Staff Feedback

e Comm. Dev. —IT is required for updates/upgrades of simple software/applications

e Comm. Serv. — A number of staff are operating on old versions of Office software, email etc.

e HR —Would like access to update/upgrade simple software/applications without needing to
wait for IT. (Adobe, Java, etc.)

e HR - Are at least 4 versions behind on ADP
Library — Would like access to update/upgrade simple software/applications without needing
to wait for IT. (Adobe, Java, etc.)

Recommendations

e The City’s normal practice is to maintain software updates as recommended.
e Maintain consistent updates across all users.

+ Utilize the inventory created in the Applications and User Licensing Inventory initiative to
understand version issues.

¢+ Complete implementation of previously purchased patch management software to
provide software updates across the City for desktop software updates to provide
consistency and automation. Includes software updates in sustainability and
replacement planning.

e Provide appropriate user training with each release.
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Appendix — IT Initiatives (IT Master Plan)
City of Menlo Park, CA

12. IT Project and Services Portfolio

An IT Support Services Portfolio is a complete list of IT projects and services provided to City
staff and the public. The support services portfolio outlines IT responsibilities for each service
and any service-level agreements for those services (e.g., 24/7 support required, disaster
recovery priorities, user-access permissions, report writing for certain software modules, server
uptime requirements, etc.) Applications support, partially addressed in the Applications
Management Best Practices initiative, is only one aspect of the complete portfolio. Other IT
services include projects, Help Desk, data network, telephone systems, IT security, etc.

Recommendations

o We recommend the IT Division create an IT Projects and Services Portfolio to effectively
communicate and set expectations for all users regarding what support services IT provides
and communicate service-level standards.

o Utilize results of IT Master Plan as the basis for a five-year project portfolio and budget.

o Utilize the Applications Management Best Practices, Applications and User Licensing
Inventory, and User Training and Support initiatives as a basis to complete the services
portfolio.

13. Sustainability Planning

Findings and Observations

Sustainability Planning is the process of mapping the acquisition, maintenance, upgrade,
improvements, training, and eventual replacement for major applications systems over a long-
term period (i.e., five to ten years). Sustainability Planning helps in two significant ways:

1. Reducing the significant periodic spikes in capital expenditures of large software solutions
2. Scheduling upgrades and replacements of departmental business applications systems in a
convenient and timely manner

The growing practice of Sustainability Planning provides a more practical or realistic way to
determine and plan for the ongoing operational needs of all departments.

Because software applications are the primary technology tools of the operational departments,
in order to increase productivity and efficiencies, improve customer service and transparency,
and take advantage of technology improvements, the City can benefit from the implementation
of sustainability planning versus the more limited practice of replacement planning.

Recommendations

o Develop a sustainability plan for IT software applications.

+ Microsoft licenses should be replaced N-1 (i.e., every other version).

+ Larger core applications (e.g., Financials, Land Management, Work Order Management,
Recreation, etc.) benefit most from sustainability planning, because these should only be
replaced every 10-15 years, if procured and managed properly.

e Investigate and track annual maintenance and support, and upgrade costs for all major
systems to determine if the cost structure is sustainable. If the cost structure is not
sustainable, consider alternatives and priorities over the next five-year period.
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Benefits

Increased long-term investment through scalability
Reduced maintenance expenses

Increased trust in systems

Reduced risk and liability

Reduction in total cost of ownership

Avoidance of unforeseen upgrades

Informed purchase timing

Software lifecycle evaluation

14. Cloud Computing

Cloud computing can be described as IT services or equipment that are not internal, but
available through the Internet. This can range from having a server hosted in an organization or
facility other than the local organization, accessing information from a portable device,
procession requests from the field, subscribing to an Internet-based software solution per a
subscription model, etc. The benefits of cloud computing allow individuals to collaborate and
remain centralized, regardless of location.

Cloud computing is one the most prominent discussions among current trends in IT. Significant
benefits can be achieved, including security, disaster recovery, and cost savings. However,
cloud-computing options for many systems are still not cost-effective or the most secure
approach.

Findings and Observations

e The organization has already utilized some forms of cloud computing.
e Several infrastructure improvements will be required for the organization to be able to fully
utilize cloud-based systems.

Staff Feedback

e FIN — Need to evaluate on ROI

e OPS - Any discussion of cloud computing should take into account the realities of our work
environment, which is that a significant number of staff are frequently not connected to any
networks, Internet, etc. and should be able to do their work on stand-alone computers when
necessary.

Recommendations

e Before moving any significant applications to the cloud, the City should:

¢ Upgrade the local area network (LAN)
+ Geographically separate Internet provider services
+ Move to most current version of Active Directory

Cloud-computing options should be considered for future projects.
e Cost/benefit should be the overriding factor for most final decisions.
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15. Centralized Land and Parcel Management
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